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December 26, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health, to
amend an existing sole source agreement with Harbor Homes, Inc. (Vendor #155358-8001), 77
Northeastern Boulevard, Nashua, New Hampshire 03060, to support ongoing efforts of the Peer
Recovery Support Services Facilitating Organization to develop infrastructure and provide program
support to a growing number of Recovery Centers, statewide, by increasing the price limitation by
$647,000 from $7,802,058 to $8,449,058, with no change to the completion date of June 30, 2020,
effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval. 100% General Funds

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on June 1, 2016
(Item #13) and amended on June 7, 2017 (Item #20), July 11, 2018 (Item #15), September 20, 2018
(Item #22), June 26, 2019 (Item 29C). and September 2019 (Late Item C).

Funds are available in the following account(s) for State Fiscal Year(s) 2020, with authority to
adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through
the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-491510-29890000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEFT
OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, SVCS,
GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS

SFY Class/Account Class Title Activity/Job
Number

Code

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased/

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2016 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 49158501 $2,820 $0 $2,820

2017 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 49158501 $813,180 $0 $813,180

Subtotal $816,000 $0 $816,000
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05-95-491510-29900000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT

OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, SVCS,
CLINICAL SERVICES

SFY Class/

Account

Class Title Activity/Job
Number

Code

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased/

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2016 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 49156501 $3,180 $0 $3,180

2017 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 49156501 $796,820 $0 $796,820

Subtotal $800,000 $0 $800,000

05-95-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SVCS, GOVERNOR
COMMISSION FUNDS

SFY Class/

Account

Class Title Activity/Job
Number

Code

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased/

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 92058503 $700,000 $0 $700,000

2019 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 92058503 $700,000 $0 $700,000

2020 102-500734

Contract for

Social Svs 92058501 $1,275,000 $0 $1,275,000

Subtotal $2,675,000 $0 $2,675,000

05-95-92-920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT
OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SVCS, CLINICAL
SERVICES

SFY Class/

Account

Class Title Activity/Job
Number

Code

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased/

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 92056501 $904,098 $0 $904,098

2019 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 92057501 $800,000 $0 $800,000

2019 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 92056505 $140,293 $0 $140,293

2020 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 92056505 0 $647,000 $647,000

2020 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 92057501 $1,000,000 $0 $1,000,000

Subtotal $2,844,391 $647,000 $3,491,391
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05-95-47-470010-79480000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS

DEPT OF, HHS; MEDICAID & BUSINESS POLICY OFFICE, OFFICE OF MEDICAID AND
BUSINESS POLICY MEDICAID CARE MANAGEMENT

SFY Class/

Account

Class Title Activity/Job
Number

Code

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased/

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2019 102-500731

Contracts for

Social Svc 47000254 $500,000 $0 $500,000

2020 101-500729

Medical

Providers 47000254 $166,667 $0 $166,667

Subtotal $666,667 $0 $666,667

TOTAL $7,802,058 $647,000 $8,449,058

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the increase in funding exceeds 10% of the original contract
price limitation. Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs in State Fiscal Year 2016 approved
funding to initiate this service. Subsequently, the Department published a request for proposals. Per RSA
12-J. the Department is carrying out the administrative functions of the Commission. The State Fiscal
Years 2020-2021 budget included the additional General Funds support for these services.

The purpose of this request is to increase vendor capacity as the Peer Recovery Support Services
Facilitating Organization. The additional funding enables centers to provide a minimum of 12,000
Recovery Community Center-generated services to individuals in recovery by expanding center-based
programming with two (2) additional Recovery Community Centers.

The Contractor supports on-going efforts to develop infrastructure and provide program support
to a growing number of RCCs across the state. The current contract supports twelve (12) Recovery
Community Centers. This amendment adds two (2) Recovery Community Centers: one (1) in an urban
area and one (1) in the North Country. The Contractor also continues to provide support to existing
Recovery Community Centers and efforts to bill third party payers for Peer Recovery Support Services
and continues collecting, aggregating and reporting Recovery Center development and outcomes.
Additionally, the Contractor actively promotes the availability and value of Peer Recovery Support
Services, statewide.

The Department's strategy to address the disease of addiction requires a full continuum of care
inclusive of prevention, intervention, treatment and recovery supports. This contract ensures the
development and provision of recovery supports throughout many areas of the state. This amendment
adds support for Recovery Community Centers in two (2) regions of high need so that Recovery Center
Organizations can continue serving the needs of indviduals who seek to gain, maintain and enhance their
recovery, thus improving their lives and the lives of their families and reducing costs to the Department
and the State for more intensive services.

The Department will monitor the effectiveness of the delivery of services required under this
agreement using the following performance measures:

•  Fourteen (14) Recovery Centers will be open and providing services.

•  82,000 recovery support services will be provided within these Centers.

•  The Contractor will collect, aggregate and report on RCO development and outcomes.
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Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Department's overall
strategy to address the disease of addiction to alcohol and drugs may be negatively impacted, with fewer
individuals gaining and maintaining recovery. Without access to a community-based Peer Recovery
Support Services, many individuals may require additional intensive treatment services. Additionally,
some individuals may continue in their active addiction, leading to negative medical, legal and child
welfare consequences for those persons, their families and society, incurring much higher costs to the
Department and State.

Area served; Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds

Respectfully submitted.

Cerrin A. Rounds

Acting Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
PRSS Facilitating Organization Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #6 to the PRSS Facilitating Organization Services Contract

This 6^ Amendment to the PRSS Facilitating Organization Services contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #6") is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Harbor Homes, Inc., (hereinafter
referred to as "the Contractor"), a (nonprofit corporation) with a place of business at 77 Northeastem
Boulevard, Nashua, New Hampshire 03060.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Govemor and Executive Council
on June 1, 2016 (Item #16), as amended on June 7, 2017 (Item #20), July 11, 2018 (Item #15), September
20, 2018 (Item #22), June 26. 2019 (Item #29C). and September 18, 2019 (Late Item #C), the Contractor
agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as
amended and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation to support continued delivery of services;
and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #6 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.4, Contractor Address, to read:

77 Northeastern Boulevard, Nashua, New Hampshire 03060.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$8,449,058.

3. Exhibit A Amendment #4, Section 2, Scope of Services, Subsection 2.2 to read:

2.2 The Contractor shall enter Into an agreement with a minimum of fourteen (14) RCC's by
June 30, 2020, in at least six (6) different Public Health Regions as approved by the
Department, in order to increase and expand capacity for PRSS within each of the selected
fourteen (14) RCCs. The Contractor shall:

2.2.1 Ensure that priority is given to Public Health Regions that do not have an RCC.

2.2.2 Provide a copy of each executed RCC agreement to the Department within five (5)
days of agreement execution.

4. Exhibit A Amendment #4 Section 4, Deliverables, Subsection 4.6 to read:

4.1 The Contractor shall have provided a minimum of 82,000 RCO-generated services to
community members for the period of July 2019 through June 2020, including, but not
limited to:

Harbor Homes, Inc. Amendment #6 Contractor initials

16-DHHS-BDAS-GCF-RFA-02-A06 Page 1 of 4 Date A



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
PRSS Facilitating Organization Services

4.1.1 Individual recovery coaching.

4.1.2 Telephone recovery support services.

4.1.3 Therapeutic services.

4.1.4 Center-based programming.

4.1.5 Crisis management and systems navigation.

5. Exhibit A Amendment #4 Section 2, Scope of Services, Subsection 2.16 to read:

5.1 The Contractor shall actively promote the availability and value of PRSS across the State of
New Hampshire. The Contractor shall list all promotional efforts In quarterty and annual
reports, to Include, but rtot be limited to:

5.1.1 Post on the New Hampshire Recovery Hub website;

5.1.2 Publish In each Recovery Fix e-newsletter; and

5.1.3 In conjunction with RCO leadership, present at local and state-wide meetings,
workshops and conferences. The Contractor shall provide, not to be limited to:

5.1.3.1 Location.

5.1.32 Title of meeting, work8hop(8), or conference(s).

5.1.3.3 Date.

6. Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3, to read:

6.1 Payment for expenses shall be on a cost reimbursement basis only for actual expenditures
in accordance with the approved line Item budgets shown in Exhibit B-1 through Exhibits B-
5 Amendment #5.

7. Add Exhibit B-5, Amendment #6, Budget.

Harbor Homes, lr*c. Amendment #8 Contactor tnKiab
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
PRSS Facilitating Organization Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date Name: Katja S. Fox
Title: Director

Date '

Harbor Homes, Inc.

Name:

Title:

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of y^^Countv of 'On. on /R , before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

Si otarv Public or Justice of theiFteaceat re

and it e of h

My Commission Expires:

otary or Justice of the Peace

Harbor Homes, Inc.

16-DHHS-BDAS-GCF-RFA-02-A06

Amendment #6
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
PRSS Facilitating Organization Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Name: / j CfirrH6tl,il^6 fll^S
T"le: Ly

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Harbor Homes, Inc. Amendment #6 Contractor Initials

16-DHHS-BDAS-GCF-RFA-02-A06 Page 4 of 4 Date /{^//



Harbor Homes, Inc.

Exhibit B-5, Amendment #6

Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name: Harbor Homes, Inc.

Budget Request for: PRSS Facilitating Organization Services

Budget Period: SFY 2020 (July 1, 2019 • June 30, 2020)

Total Program Cost ^

Line Item

Direct

'  Incremental

Indirect

Fixed

Total

1. Total Saiarv/Waqes $
2. Employee Benefits $ .

3. Consultants $ 9,280.00 $ 9,280.00

$ .

4. Equipment: $
Rental $
Repair and Maintenance $
Purchase/Depreciation $

5. Supplies: $
Educational $
Lab $
Pharmacy $
Medical $ .

Office $ 2,000.00 $ 2,000.00
6. Travel $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00
7. Occupancy $ 11,250.00 S 11,250.00
8. Current Expenses $ .

Telephone $
Postage $
Subscriptions S

Audit and Legal $
Insurance $

Board Expenses $ .

9. Software $ 1,000.00 $ 1,000.00
10. Marl^etinq/Communications $ 4,000.00 $ 4,000.00
11. Staff Education ar>d Training $ .

12. Subcontracts/Agreements S 614,470.00 s 614,470.00
13. Other (specific details marKjatory): $ .

$

$

$ .

TOTAL $ 647,000.00 $ % 647,000.00

16-DHHS-BDAS-GCF-RFA-01 PRSS-A06

Exhibit B-5. Amendment #8

Page 1 of 1

Contractor's Initials

Date



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the Slate of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that HARBOR HOMES, INC. is

a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on February 15, 1980.1 ftirther certify

that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this

office is concerned.

Business ID: 62778

Certificate Number: 0004516965

y

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

[ hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this I7ili day of May A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, hereby certify that:
feme of tne e^Kted Officer of the Agency: cann^e contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of _ Moryirt<; .
(Agency Name) 7

2. The following Is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on /^ //^//? :
(Datef

RESOLVED: That the _
(Title of Contract Signatory)

Is hereby authorlzed:on behalf of this Agency to enter Into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other Instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The foreoolng resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain In full force and effect as of

the day of f)e[lJ'IV^er. 20i£.
(Date Contract Signed)

4. /^eJleJier _ is the duly elected _
(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

he d Officer)

County of

The foregoing Instrument was acknowledged before me this. , day of

Officer of the Agency)

(Notary^ubllc/Justice of the Peace)

(NOTARY SEAL)

Commission Expires:

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote V^thout Seal

mill,,,.

•••

July 1, 2005



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATC {MM/Domnno

11/19/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER,

IMPORTANT; if the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Eaton & Berut>e Insurance Agency. Inc.
11 Concord Street
Nashua NH 03064

NAMF**^^ Kimberlv Gutekunst
603^82-2766 moI:

AfWRFM- KautekunskSleatonberube.com

INSURERfS) APPORDING COVERAGE NAICll

INSURER A; Hanover Insurance

INSURED HARHO
Harbor Homes. Inc
77 Northeastern Boulevard
Nashua NH 03062

INSURER a: Philadelphia Insurance Companies

INSURER c; Eastem Alliance Insurance Group

INSURER D: Selective Insurance Group 14376

INSURER E:

INSURERP;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 1693987125 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT VWTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

JJB. TYPE OP INSURANCE
ADOL

itisa
SUBR

ayp. POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EPF

IMMfl)OrrYYYt
POLICY EXP

(MWOOOYYYI UMITS

COMMERCUL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

ProiMsional

$2288207 7/1/2019 7/1/2020 EACH OCCURRENCE

Damage TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occufrencel

MEO EXP (Any one person)

AtXIM PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GEPTL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPUES PER:

POLICY O JECT [LI LOC
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

Prot (nofvFTCA)

S 1.000.000

s 1.000.000

S 20,000

$ 1.000.000

$ 3.000.000

S 3.000.000

$81,000,000

AUTOMOBILE UABUJTY

ANYAL/TO

306871 7/1/2019 7/1/2020
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea eccideiitl

S 1.000.000

BODILY INJURY (Per penon)

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NONOWNED

AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per accKleni)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
IPer acddenO

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

306873 7/1/2019 7/1/2020 EACH OCCURRENCE $ 10.000,000

AGGREGATE $10,000,000

RETENTIONS

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS'UABIUTY

ANYPROPRlETOR/PARTNER/EXECUnVE

OFFICERIMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(MaiMlatotY IrtNH)
If yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS beto*

030000111752-02 11/26/2019 11/26/2020
PER
STATUTE

OTH-

□ E.L, EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000

E.L DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

E.L, DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000

Professiortal UabiUty
Menagemeni Liability
Crime

L1VA966006
PHSD1258460
S2288207

7/1/2019
7/1/2019
7/1/2019

7/1/2020
7/1/2020
7/1/2020

Professional fGapl
DSO
Employee Dishonesty

$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$510,000

DESCRIPTION OP OPERATKINSI LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Ramarlu Schedule, may be attached If more space Is required)
Additionai Named Insureds:
Harbor Homes. Inc. - FID# 020351932
Harbor Homes II. Inc.
Harbor Homes III. Inc.
Healthy at Homes. Inc. -FID# 043364080
Milford Regional Counseling Service, Inc. -FID# 222512360
Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force -FID# 020447280
Welcoming Light. Inc. -FID# 020481648
See Attached...

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant St
Concord NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZEO REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
01988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



AGENCY CUSTOMER ID: HARHO

LOC#:

/iCORCf ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page 1 of 1

AGENCY

Eaton & Berube Insurance Agency, Inc.
NAMED INSURED

Harbor Homes, Inc
77 Northeastern Boulevard

Nashua NH 03062POLICY NUMBER

CARRIER NAIC CODE

EFFECTIVE DATE:

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

HH Ownership, Inc.
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism dba Keystone Hall -FID# 222558859
Boulder Point. LLC
SARC Housing Needs Board. Inc

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,

FORM NUMBER: 25 PnPM ttti f- CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

ACORD 101 (2008/01) © 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



77 Northeastern Blvd

Nashua. NH 03062
wvAv.haitortiomes.org

,ARBOR
iOIVIES.inc

Phone: 603-882-3616

603-881-8436

Fax: 603-595-7414

A Beacon for the Homeless for Over 30 Years

•tnasr

Mission Statement

To create ami provide qualiti' residential and supportive servicesfor persons (ami their families) cliolienged by mentai
Illness and hoinelessness.

A member ol the

Partnership for Successful Living
A coltoboration of six olfinoled nol-for-proflt oroonlzoltons provKling southern New Hompshire's most vulneroble
community members with occess to housing, health core, educolion, employment ond supportive services.
www.nhpar1nershlp.org

Horbor Homes • Heotthy qt Home • Keystone Ho" * MHIord Regional Counseling Services
• Southern NH Hiv/AlOS Task Force • Welcoming Light



HARBOR HOMES. INC.

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018
\

(With Independent Auditors' Report Thereon)
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Melanson
ACCOUNTANTS • AUOITORS

Heath

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

102 Perimeter Road

Nashua. NH 03063

(603)882.1111
melansonheath.com

Additional Offices:

Andover, MA

Greenfield, MA

To the Board of Directors of Manchester nh
Harbor Homes, Inc.

Ellsworth, ME

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hartwr
Homes, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the related consolidated statements of
activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of Healthy
at Home, Inc., whose statements reflect total assets constituting 1% of consolidated
total assets at June 30, 2018, and total revenues constituting 5% of consolidated
total revenues for the year then ended. Those statements were audited by other
auditors, whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it
relates to the amounts included for Healthy at Home, Inc., is based solely on the
report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity's^eparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the
consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Harbor Homes, Inc. as of June 30, 2018, and the
changes in its net assets and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Harbor Homes. Inc.'s fiscal year 2017 financial state
ments. including the fiscal year 2017 financial statements of the entities included in
these consolidated financial statements (except for Healthy at Home. Inc. which was
audited by other auditors who expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those
audited financial statements), and we expressed unmodified audit opinions on those
audited financial statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative
information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017 is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which
it has been derived. ,

Other Matters

Other ̂ formation

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole! The Consolidating Statement of Financial Position and the
Consolidating Statement of Activities are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing



and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated December 20, 2018 on our consideration of Harbor Homes, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Harbor Homes, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
Harbor Homes Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

December 20. 2018



HARBOR HOMES. INC.

Consolidated StaletTwnt of Rnandal Position

June 30; 2016

(With Comparative Totals as of June 30. 2017)

ASSETS

Current Assets;

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Accounts receivable, net

Patient receivables, net

Promises to give
Investments

Inventory

Other assets

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Property and equipment, net
Deferred compensation plan assets

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assels

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:

Lines of credit

Current portion of capital leases payable
Current portion of mortgages payable
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

Other liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities:
Security deposits
Deferred compensation plan liabilities
Mortgages payable, tax credits
Mortgages payable, net of current portion

• Mortgages payable.-deferred
Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Unrestricted Net Assets

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets
Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assels

/

2016 2017

480.242 i  754,353

1.096.661 614,739
2.060.419 2.784,965
1.301,046 1.079.605

. 6.000

192,731 493.543

123.076 67.277

71.155 101.770

5.325.334 5.904.252

30.968,341 30,353,542

16.800 .

30.965.141 30.353.542

,  36.310.475 (  35.257.794

1,285.423 $  1,094.935
- 16,304

496.608 450.736

665,390 1,289,475

1,742.169 1.464.376
341.071 33.017

12.077 5.582

4.742.738 4,356.427

68.916 67,636

16,800 -

158,237 79.280

15,783,030 16,245,171

8.571.209 7.618.496

24.598.194 24.010.563

29.340.932 28,367,010

6,851.238 7.561,606

118.305 329,176

6,969.543 7.890,784

36.310.475 $  36.257.794

The accompanying notes ere en integral part of these financial statements.



HARBOR HOMES, INC.

Consolidated Statement of Activilles

For the Year Ended June 30,2016
-  (Wth Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30.2017)

Temporarily
Unrestricted RestrMed 2018 2017

NetMSfitS Net Assets Total Total

Public Support and Revenue;
Public Support:

State end local grants %  11.380,392 $ $  11,380,392 $ 7.395,645
Federal grants 7.496.411 80,300 7.576.711 8,074,192
Contributions 73,663 613,016 686,681 1,044,621
Other grants 217,794 451,324 689,118 •  217,600
Fundraising events, net 20,857 28,097 48,954 33,283

Net assets released from restriction 1.383.612 (1,383.612) - .

Total Public Support 20,572,729 (210.873) 20.361,856 16,765.341

Revenue:

Patient services revenues (other), net 5,686,860 - 5,686,860 5,512,169
Patient services revenues (FQHC), net 3.664,163 - 3,664,163 2,430,161

Department of Housing and
Urban Development programs 3,429.882 - 3,429,882 3,420,327

Veterans Administration programs 2.213.701 - 2,213,701 2,160,799
Contracted services 1,039,097 - 1.039,097 1,044,751
Rent and service charges, net 867,249 - 887,249 625.519

Outside rent 555,551 - 555,551 432.905

Fees for services 344,456 - 344.456 318,808

Miscellaneous 177,075 - 177,075 27,768

Investment Income (loss) 40.632 - 40.632 26.437

Total Revenue 18.018.666 . 18.018.666 16.199.644

Total Public Support and Revenue 38,591,395 (210.873) 38,380,522 32,964,985

Expenses:

Program 33.423,301 . 33.423,301 27.777,021
Administration 3,754,447 - 3,754,447 3,176,798
Fundraising 667.731 - 667,731 670,846

Total Expenses 37.845.479 . 37,845.479 31,624,865

Change in net assets before depreciation 745.916 (210,873) 535.043 1,340,320

Depreciation (1,456.284) .  — ■ ■■(1:456.284) (1,354,446)

Change in net assets (710,368) (210,873) (921,241) (14.126)

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 7.561.606 329.178 7.890.784 7.904.910

Net Assets. End of Year S  6.851.236 5  118.305 $  6.969,543 S 7.890.784

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements.



HARBOR HOMES, INC.

ConsoOdaled Statement of Functional Exponses

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

.(Wth Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30.2017)

2018 2017

Prooram Administration Fundraisino Total Total

Expenses:

Salaries and wages S  14,820.100 $  2,272,110 S  435,102 $ 17,227.312 $ 14,123,646

Client rental asslsonce 8,475,207 . - 6,475,207 5,793,679

Employee beneftts 1.822,234 291.883 43.725 2,157,622 1,516,722

Contracted services 1.930.543 67.920 5.588 2.004,049 2,134,126

Occupancy 1.753.278 176.775 4.022 1,934.075 1,733,130

Payrcfl taxes 1.157,347 171,856 34.646 1,363,649 1,059,527

CBent insurance assistance 923.931 ■ • 923.931 459,576

Operational supplies 799.811 8,456 219 606,486 354,235

Grants end donations 518,300 39,641 71,553 6^,494 752,534

Interest expense 804.073 126,025 2,768 932,866 739,534

Office expenses 472.217 73.943 38,674 ^,834 349.044

Other dient assistance 480,267 50 • 460,317 123,926

Retirement contributions 324.433 122,669 6,605 453,707 323,690

Information technobgy 253,023 47,632 3,505 304.160 602,060

Client food and nutrition services 243.474 519 243.993 217.641

Travel 218.521 16.635 1,194 236.550 221.188

Insurance 152,558 10.724 228 163,508 251.962

Professional fees 119,833 51,595 6,426 177,854 163.910

Misceltanecus 137,963 66,459 1.393 205,615 127.572

Legal fees . 29,722 81,685 226 111,633 122,421

Aocountlr>g fees 1.040 105,769 • 106,809 115,000

Conferences, conventions, end meetings 86.759 12,227 1,181 100,167 151.666

Advertising end promotion 83,847 4.576 9,979 98,402 24.642

Cller^ counseling ard support services 60,218 367
-

60,585 106.044

Staff expertses 33,117 4,518 699 38.334 10,630

Membership dues 20.772 2.233 • 23,005 30,190

Client medical 8sststar>ce 20.715 • 20,715 15,346

Total Expenses 33,423,301 3.754,447 667.731 37.845,479 31,624,665

Depreciation

Total Functional Expenses -

1.337.587 114.639' 4.058 1.456.284 1,354,446

— % 34.780.888 5  3.669.086 %  67r.789 - $ 39.301.763 - % 32.979.111"

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of tTtese flr^ancfai statements.



HARBOR HOMES, INC.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30. 2018
(lAllth Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30. 2017}

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Change in net assets
Adiustments to reconcile change in r)et assets to
net cash from operating acth/ities:
Depredation and amortization
(Increase) Decrease la-
Accounts receivat>le

Patieni receivables

Promises to give
Inventory
Other assets

Increase (Decrease) In:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

Other liabilities

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Rows From Investing Activities:
Security deposits
Purchase of fixed assets

Sale of investments

Net Cash Used by Investing ActMlies

Cash Flows From Financirtg Activilies:
Borrowings from lines of credit, net
Payments on capital leases
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Payments on long^arm borrowings
Proceeds from lax aedits

Payments on tax credits
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Net Increase cn Cash artd Cash Equivaients

Cash, Cash Equivalants. and Restricted Cash. Beginning of Year

Cash, ̂ sh Equivalents, and Restricted Cash. End of Year

Supplemental disdosures of cash flow information:

Interest paid

Non-cash finandng activities

2018

(921.241)

1.456.284

724,548

(221,443)

8.000

(55.801)
30.615

(424.085)
277.791
308.054

6.495

1.189.215

1.282

(2.071.083)
300.812

(1.768.989)

190.488

(18.304)
1,007.713

(471.269)
100.000

(21.043)

787.585

207.811

1.369.092

1.576,903

^932^86^

2017

$  (14.126)

1.354.446

(1.304,307)
(242.996)

(8.000)
(67.277)
76.667

792.902

381.422

5.739

(257.701)

716.769

25.993

(640.938)
(340.897)

(955.842)

807.866

(43.127)
200,000

(422.991)

f21.043)

520.707

281,634

1.087.458

$  1.369.092

5  660.327

S  4.950.000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



HARBOR HOMES. INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization:

The consolidated financial statements of Harbor Homes, Inc. include the
following related entities. All inter-entity transactions have been eliminated.
Unless otherwise noted, these consolidated entities are hereinafter referred to
as the "Organization".

Harbor Homee. Inc. - Creates and provides quality residential and
supportive services for persons (and their families) challenged by mental
illness and/or homelessness in the State of New Hampshire. Programs
include mainstream housing, permanent housing, transitional housing, and
emergency shelter, as well as comprehensive support services that
include behavioral healthcare, peer support programs, job training, a paid
employment program, and social and educational activities. Harbor
Homes, Inc. also runs a health care clinic that is a Federally Qualified
Health Center (FQHC) offering primary medical services to the homeless
and/or low-income individuals.

Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC -, A single-member, New Hampshire
Limited Liability Company, created to develop and manage a new
permanent supportive housing facility in Plymouth, New Hampshire
(Boulder Point, LLC) for homeless veterans. Harbor Homes, Inc. is the
sole member and the manager of Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC.

Boulder Point, LLC - A New Hampshire Limited Liability Company,
whose purpose is to acquire, own, develop, construct and/or rehabilitate,
manage, and operate a new veterans housing project in Plymouth, New
Hampshire. Harbor Homes Plymouth. LLC is a 0.01% investor member
and the manager member.

Harbor Homes II,"Inc., Harbor Homes III, Ind., and HH Ownership, Inc.
- Provides residential services to the chronically mentally ill.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism - Provides recovery support
services which are evidence-based, gender-specific, and culturally
competent, including residential, transitional housing, outpatient, intensive
outpatient, family-based substance abuse services, pregnant and
parenting women and children, and offender re-entry services initiative.

Healthy at Home, Inc. - Provides home healthcare services to residents
of Nashua and surrounding communities and strives to enhance the lives
of people with illness or injury through a cooperative relationship with the
community, professional medical service providers, and associations that

^  > ■ ■ -"8 , , -



serve people in need of healthcare. Homecare, rehabilitative, and private
duty nursing services are provided in the individual's home setting.

Welcoming Light, Inc. - Provides residential services to the elderly and
disabled and offers training for substance abuse and mental health issues
and training for nonprofit agencies in New Hampshire.

Southern New Hampshire HIV/Aids Task Force, Inc. - Provides
educational case management, mental health and alternative therapy
assistance, housing assistance, food and nutritional guidance, substance
abuse counseling, and other related support services to people in the
Southern New Hampshire region infected with the HIV/Aids virus.

Milford Regional Counseling, Inc. - Operates a regional counseling
center serving the Greater Souhegan Valley area and provides
counseling, guidance, and consultation to individuals, groups, children,
adults, and families.

2. Significant Accounting Policies:

Comparative FInanciai Information

The accompanying financial statements include certain prior-year summarized
comparative information in total, but not by net asset class. Such information
does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with
Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP). Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the
audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017, from which the
summarized information was derived.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three
months or less, and which are neither held for nor restricted by dpnors foi^
Ibng~term purposes,"aTe considered to be cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable, Net

Accounts receivable consist primarily of noninterest-bearing amounts due for
services and programs. The allowance for uncollectable accounts receivable is
based on historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a
review of subsequent collections. Accounts receivable are written off when
deemed uncollectable.



Patient Receivables, Net

Patient receivables relate to health care services provided by the
Organization's Federally Qualified Health Care Center-.-rAdditionsT-to-the-
allowance for doubtful accounts result from, the provision for bad debts.
Accounts written off as uncollectible are deducted from the allowance for doubt

ful accounts. The amount of the allowance for doubtful accounts is based

upon management's assessment of historical and expected net collections,
business and economic conditions, trends in Medicare and Medicald health
care coverage, and other indicators.

For receivables associated with services provided to patients who have
third-party coverage, which includes patients with deductible and copayment
balances due for which third-party coverage exists for part of the bill, the
Organization analyzes contractually due amounts and provides an allowance
for doubtful collections and a provision for doubtful collections, if necessary.
For receivables associated with self-pay patients, the Organization records a
significant provision for doubtful collections in the period of service on the
basis of its past experience, which indicates that many patients are unable to
pay the portion of their bill for which they are financially .responsible. The
difference between the billed rates and the amounts actually collected after all
reasonable collections efforts have been exhausted is charged off against the
allowance for doubtful collections.

Inventory

Inventory is comprised primarily of pharmacy items, and is s^ted at the lower
of cost or net realizable value determined by the first-ih, first-out method.

Investments

The Organization carries investments in marketable securities with readily
determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities at their fair

values in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. Unrealized gains
and losses are included in the change in.net assets in_the accompanying.
Consolidated Statement of Activities.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment additions over .$5,000 are recorded at cost, if
purchased, and at fair value at the date of donation, if donated. Depreciation
is computed using the "straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
the assets ranging from 3 to 40 years, or in the case of capitalized leased
assets or leasehold improvements, the lesser of the useful life of the asset or
the lease term. When assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and
related depreciation is removed, and any resulting gain or loss is included in
the Consolidated Statement of Activities. Costs of maintenance and repairs

'  ...



that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are
expensed.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment.-
whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset
may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected to
result from its use and eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an
impairment loss is recognized to the extent carrying value exceeds the fair
value of the asset. There were no indicators of asset impairment in fiscal year
2018.

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence
or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes
therein are classified and reported as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets available for use in general
operations.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor
restrictions that may or will be met by expenditures or actions and/or the
passage of time. Contributions are reported as temporarily restricted
support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the
donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a
stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished,
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to-unrestricted net assets
and reported in the Consolidated Statement of Activities as net assets
released from restrictions.

Permanently Restricted Net Assets - Net assets whose use is limited by
donor-imposed restrictions that neither expire by the passage of time nor
can be fulfilled or othenwise removed. The restrictions stipulate that resources
be maintained permanently, but permit expending of the income generated
in accordance with donor stipulations.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when earned. Program service fees and payments
under cost-reimbursable contracts received in advance are deferred to the
applicable period in which the related services are performed or expenditures
are incurred, respectively.

Patient Services Revenues, Net

Patient services revenues, net is reported at the estimated net realizable
amounts from patients, third-party payors, and others for services rendered.
Self-pay revenue is recorded at published charges with charitable allowances
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deducted to arrive at net self-pay revenue. All other patient services revenue
is recorded at published charges with contractual allowances deducted to
arrive at patient services, net. Reimbursement rates are subject to revisions

■under the provisions of reimbursement regulations. Adjustments for such-
revisions are recognized in the fiscal year incurred. Included in third-party
receivables are the outstanding uncompensated care pool payments.

Charity Care

The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its
charity care policy without charge or at amounts less than its established
rates. Since the Organization does not pursue collection of amounts deter
mined to qualify as charity care, these amounts are reported as deductions
from revenue.

Accounting for Contributions

Contributions are recognized when received. All contributions are reported as
increases in unrestricted net assets unless use of the contributed assets is
specifically restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by
the donor to use in future periods or for specific purposes are reported as
increases in either temporarily restricted or permanently restricted net assets,
consistent with the nature of the restriction. Unconditional promises with
payments due in future years have an implied restriction to be used in the
year the payment is due, and therefore are reported as temporarily restricted
until the payment is due unless the contribution is clearly intended to support
activities of the current fiscal year or is received with permanent restrictions.
Conditional promises, such as matching grants, are not recognized until they
become unconditional, that is, until all conditions on which they depend are
substantially met.

Gifts-in-Kind Contributions

The Organization periodically receives contributions in a form other than cash
or investments. Contributed property and equipment is recognized as an
asset at-its estimated fair value-at the date of gift, provided that the value of
the asset and its estimated useful life meets the Organization's capitalization
policy. Donated use of facilities is reported as contributions and as expenses
at the estimated fair value of similar space for rent under similar conditions. If
the use of the space is promised unconditionally for a period greater than one
year, the contribution is reported as a contribution and an unconditional
promise to give at the date of gift, and the expense is reported over the term
of use. Donated supplies are recorded as contributions at the date of gift and
as expenses when the donated items are placed into service or distributed.

The Organization benefits from persona! services provided by a substantial
number of volunteers. Those volunteers have donated significant amounts of
time and services in the Organization's program operations and in its fund-



raising campaigns. However, the majority of the contributed services do not
meet the criteria for recognition in financial statements. Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles allow recognition of contributed services only if. (a) the
services create or^enhance nonfinancial-assets or (b) the services would have
been purchased if not provided by contribution, require specialized skills, and
are provided by individuals possessing those skills.

Grant Revenue

Grant revenue is recognized when the qualifying costs are incurred for cost-
reimbursement grants or contracts or when a unit of service is provided for
performance grants. Grant revenue from federal agencies is subject to inde
pendent audit under the Office of Management and Budget's. Uniform Grant
Guidance, and review by grantor agencies. The review could result in the
disallowance of expenditures under the terms of the grant or reductions of
future grant funds. Based on prior experience, the Organization's manage
ment believes that costs ultimately disallowed, if any. would not materially
affect the financial position of the Organization.

Functional AHocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summa
rized on a functional basis in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. The

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses presents the natural
classification detail of expenses by function. Accordingly, certain costs have
been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Administration expenses include those costs that are not directly identifiable
with any specific program, but which provide for the overall support and
direction of the Organization.

Fundraising costs are expensed as incurred, even though they may result in
contributions received in future years. Additionally, advertising costs are
expensed as incurred.

Changeln Net Assets Before Depreciation

Due to the significance of depreciation expense that Is included in the
Organization's change in net assets, the change in net assets before
depreciation has been provided in the Consolidated Statement of Activities.

Income Taxes

The entities included in these consolidated financial statements (with the
exception of Harbor Homes Plymouth. LLC and Boulder Point, LLC) have
been recognized by "the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as exempt from
federal income taxes under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(a) as
organizations described in IRC Section 501(c)(3), qualify for charitable

13



contribution deductions, and have been determined not to be private
foundations. A Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990),
is required to be filed with the IRS for each entity. In addition, net income that
is derived-from business -activities that are.^unrelated to an entity's-exempt >.
purpose is subject to income tax. In fiscal year 2018, Harbor Homes, Inc. and
Milford Regional Counseling Services, Inc. were subject to unrelated business
income tax and filed ah Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return
(Form 990-T) with the IRS.

Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC is a single-member. New Hampshire Limited
Liability Company, with Harbor Homes, Inc. as its sole member. Harbor
Homes Plymouth, LLC has elected to be treated as a corporation.

Boulder Point, LLC is a New Hampshire Limited Liability Company arid has
elected to be treated as a partnership.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assump
tions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates and those differences could
be material.

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash with financial institu
tions believed to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed
insured limits. To date, no losses have been "experienced in any of these
accounts. Credit risk associated with receivables is corisidered to be limited
due to high historical collection rates and because substantial portions of the
outstanding amounts are due from governmental agencies and entities
supportive of the Organization's mission. Investments are monitored regularly
by the Organization. Although the fair values of investments are subject to
fluctuation on a year-to-year basis, the Organization believes that its
investment strategies are prudent for the long-term welfare of the
Organization.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

Certain assets and liabilities are reported at fair value in the financial
statements. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal, or most
advantageous, market at the measurement date under current market condi
tions regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. Inputs used to determine fair value refer broadly



to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or unob--
servable. Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions market
participants-would use. in -pricing the asset or liability.based. on-.market^data
obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs
are inputs that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions about the assump
tions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on
the best information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as
follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These
include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets,
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are
not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the
asset or liability, and market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations,
inputs are developed using the best information available in the
circumstances.

When available, the Organization measures fair value using Level 1 inputs
because they generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair value.
However, LeveM inputs are not available for many of the assets and liabilities
that the Organization is required to measure at fair value (for example,
unconditional contributions receivable and in-kind contributions).

The primary uses of fair value measures in the Organization's financial
statements are:

.  . Initial .rTLeas.uxemenl,_of_npncash gifts, including gifts of investment
assets and unconditional contributions receivable.

•  Recurring measurement of investments - Note 4.

• Recurring measurement of lines of credit - Note 9.

•  Recurring measurement of mortgages payable - Notes 10-12.

The carrying amounts of cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash, receivables,
inventory, other assets, accounts payable, accrued expenses, deferred
revenue, and other liabilities, approximate fair value due to the short-term
nature of the items.
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Rectassificatlons

Certain accounts in the prior year comparative totals have been reclassified
forxomparative purposes.to conform to the presentation-Jn the .current-,year.
consolidated financial statements.

3. Restricted Cash:

Restricted cash at June 30, 2018 consists of escrow and reserve accounts
which are held for various purposes, and are comprised of the following:

Construction escrows $ 471,769

Reserve for replacements 547,792 *
Residual receipt deposits 13,062 *
Security deposits 64.038

Total $ 1,096,661

•Required by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.

4. Investments:

Investments consist of the following at June 30, 2018:

Fair

Value Level 1 Level 3

Equities $ 19,426 $ 19.426 $
Other investments 173.305 - 173,305

Total $ 192,731 $ 19.426 $ 173.305
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Beginning Balance. July 1,2017
Additions

Reductions

Transfers in to Level 3

Ending Balance, June 30, 2018

Fair Value

Measurements

Using Significant

Unob'serSrable'lnputs
Level 3

Other Investments

•  ■$ 161-.946
11,359

$  173,305

5. Accounts Receivable. Net:

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2018 consist of the following:

Grants
Residents
Other
Medicaid
Pledges
Security deposits

Total

$

Receivable

1,497.980
59.701

284,876
246,632

8,000
2.530

$

Allowance

(39,280)
$

Net

.1,497,960
20,421

284,876
246,632

8,000
2,530

$  2,099,699 $ (39,280) $ 2.060.419

6. Patient Receivables. Net:

Patient receivables, related to the Organization's Federally Qualified Health
Care Center, consists of the following "at J uneTSO, 2018:

Medicaid
Medicare
Other

Receivable

811,024
235,566
767,453

Total $ 1.814,043

Allowance

$  (58,810)
(85,358)

(368,827)

$  (512,995)

$  752,214
150,208
398,626

$  1,301,048
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7. Property, Equipment, and Depreciation:

A summary of the major components of property and equipment as of
June 30, 2018 is presented below:

Land ' $ 4,338,288
Land improvements 36,394
Buildings 27,785,977
Building improvements 7,031,206
Software 840.669

Vehicles 404,192

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 725.786
Dental equipment 150,405
Medical equipment 58,022
Construction in progress 1,292,454

Subtotal 42,663,393

Less: accumulated

depreciation (11,695,052)

Total $ 30,968,341

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2018 totaled $1,456,284.

8. Accrued Expenses:

Accrued expenses at June 30, 2018 include the following:

Mortgage interest $ 84,503
Payroll and related taxes 827,156
Compensated absences 784,710
Other 45,800

-Total- -- - -$ 1.742.169. ■ ■

9. Lines of Credit:

At June 30, 2018, the Organization had the following lines of credit available:

Harbor Homes, Inc. - $1,000,000 of credit available from TD Bank, N. A.
due October 31, 2018, secured by all business assets. The Organization is
required, at a minimum, to make monthly interest payments to TD Bank, N.
A. at the bank's base rate plus adjusted daily. As of June 30, 2018, the
credit line had an outstanding balance of $261,746 at an interest rate of
6.00%.



Harbor Homes, -Inc. - $500,000 line of credit available from TO Bank.
N.A. due October 31, 2018, secured by all business assets. The
Organization is required, at a minimum, to make monthly interest
payments to TO Bank, N. A. at the bank's base-rate-plus 1-%-adjusted
daily. As of June 30, 2018, the credit line had an outstanding balance of
$440,462 at an interest rate of 6.00%.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism - $750,000 line of credit
available from Merrimack County Savings Bank, due on demand, and
secured by all business assets. The Organization is required, at a
minimum, to make monthly interest payments at the Wall Street Journal
Prime Rate plus 1.00% (6.00% at June 30, 2018) to Merrimack County
Savings Bank. As of June 30, 2018, the credit line had an outstanding
balance of $348,779.

Healthy at Home, Inc. - $250,000 of credit available from TD Bank, N. A.,
due October 31. 2018, secured by all business assets. The interest rate is
the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus 1% (6,00% at June 30, 2018).
The outstanding balance on the line of credit was $234,436 at June 30.
2018.

Lines of credit are categorized in the fair value hierarchy as Level 2.

10. Mortgages Payable. Tax Credits:

Mortgages payable, tax credits consist of mortgages payable by Harbor
Homes, Inc. to the Community Development Finance Authority through the
Community Development Investment Program, payable through the sale of
tax credits to donor organizations, maturing in 2020, secured by real property
located at 59 Factory Street in Nashua, NH. This amount is amortized over
ten years at zero percent interest. The amount due at June 30, 2018 is
$58,237.

Mortgages payable, tax credits also includes $100,000 of^Low Incorrie
" Housing TaTCreaits (LIHTC) to Boulder Point, LLC.

Mortgages payable, tax credits are categorized in the fair value hierarchy as
Level 2.
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11. Mortgages Payable:

Mortgages payable as of June 30. 2018 consisted of the followirig;

Principal Payment Payment Interest

Balance Amount Freouencv Rate Maturitv Prooertv/Securitv

$ 3,653.055 S  16,635 Monthly 4.00% 09/15/42 615 Amherst Street in Nashua, NH

3.375.000 - Interest only 4.00% 02/28/19 75-77 Northeastem Boulevard in Nashua, NH
1,146,876 7.879 Monthly 8.77% 12A)Sa3 335 SomerviDe Street in Manchester. NH

1,125,000 . Interest only 6.00% 11/22/18 75-77 Northeastem Boulevard in Nashua. NH

1.118,886 6,193 Monthly 4.57% 12/05/33 335 Somerville Street in Manchester, NH
1,041,850 7.768 Monthty 7.05% 10/01/40 59 Factory Street in Nashua. NH
031,152 5,126 Monthly 6.97% 12/12/36 46 Spring Street in Nashua. NH
602.012 5.324 Monthy 4.38% 08/12/30 45 High Street in Nashua, NH
584,714 3,996 Month^ 4.75% 12/12/38 46 Spring Street in Nashua, NH
443.434 2.692 Month^ 4.75% 10/01/40 59 Factory Street in Nashua, NH
374.102 5,276 Month^ 9.25% 12rt)1/26 Adds Street in Nashua. NH

348.728 5,387 Month^ 4.75% 03/29/21 14 Maple Street in Nashua. NH
272.543 2,077 Monthly 4.83% 06/29^5 189 Kinsley Street in Nashua, NH
256.339 3,369 Month^ 9.28% 01/01/28 Chestnut Street in Nashua. NH

243.747 1.425 Monthly 4,75% 04/06/42 45 High Street in Nashua, NH
214.679 1,731 Monthly 7.00% 09/28/36 7 Trinity Street in Ctaremont. NH
192,497 3,184 Monthty 9.25% 05/01/25 North Main Street in Nashua. NH

154,223 3.419 Month^ 1.00% 04/05/22 Mobile van

150.933 3.419 Monthly 1.00% 03A)S/22 615 Amherst Street in Nashua. NH

109,834 1,144 Monlhty 4.64% 11/10/29 24 Mulberry Street in Nashua, NH
98.762 2,385 Monthty 9.25% 08A)1/22 3 Winter Street in Nashua. NH

90.206 779 Month^ 4.32% 04/11/37 4 New Haven Drive. Unit 202 in Nashua, NH
55,000 - Interest only 3.08% 10/31/19 Boulder Point Drive in Plymouth, NH
45,227 299 Monthly 3.89% 10/01/35 59 Factory Street in Nashua. NH
20.058 1,552 Monthly 4.50% 07/13/19 15 Union Street in Mitford. NH

i 16,348.859 Subtotal

(69,221) Less debt issuance costs

(496.608) Less amount due within one year

s 15.783.030 Modgages payable, net o( current portion

The following Is a summary of future payments on the previously mentioned
long-term debt.

Year

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

Thereafter

Total

Amount

496.608

504.104

531,444

543.121

501,920

13.771.662

16.348.859

Mortgages payable are categorized in the fair value hierarchy as Level 2.
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12. Mortgages Payable. Deferred:

The Organization has deferred mortgages outstanding at June 30, 2018 total
ing $8,571,209. These loans are interest free, and are not required to be
repaid unless the Organization is in default with the terms of the loan
agreerhents or, for certain loans, if an operating surplus occurs within that
program.

Deferred mortgages payable at June 30, 2018 are as follows:

City of Manchester;
Somerville Street properly S 3QO.OOO

Total City of Manchester 300.000

City of Nashua:
Factory Street property 580,000
Spring Street property -000
Strawberry Bank condominiums 80.000
High Street fire system

Total City of Nashua ,216,000

Department of Housing and Urban Development;
Strawberry Bank condominiums ^36.400

Total Department of Housing and Urban Development 436,400

Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB):
Boulder Point property 952.713
Factory Street property 400.000
Somerville Street property 400.000

'  Spring Street property 398,747
Amherst Street property 385,000

Total FHLB 2.536.460

NHHFA;

Amherst Street property 1,500,000
Factory Street property ^ .000.000
Spring Street property 550.000
Charles Street property 32,349
Somerville Street property 1.000.000

■  " TolarNRrtFA " "

Total Mortgages Payable. Deferred $^^^571^20^

Deferred mortgages payable are categorized in the fair value hierarchy as
Level 2.
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13. Temporarily Restricted Net Assets:

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes at
June 30, 2018: -

Purpose Amount

Special events $ 40,224
Housing 20,439
Client services 39,216

Clinic 2,656

Dental 10,000

Miscellaneous 5.770

Total $ 118.305

Net assets are released from restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the
restricted purpose or by the passage of time.

14. Patient Services Revenue fFQHC). Net:

The Organization recognizes patient services revenue associated with sen/ices
provided through its FQHC to patients who have Medicaid, Medicare, third-
party payor, and managed care plans coverage on the basis of contractual
rates for services rendered. For uninsured self-pay patients that do not qualify
for charity care, the Organization recognizes revenue on the basis of its
standard rates for services provided or on the basis of discounted rates if
negotiated or provided by the Organization's policy. Charity care services are
•computed using a sliding fee scale based on patient income and farnily size.
On the basis of historical experience, a significant portion of the
Organization's uninsured patients will be unable or unwilling to pay for the
services provided. Thus, the Organization records a provision for bad debts
related to uninsured patients in the period the services are provided.

■  The Organization-accepts patients regardless of their ability to pay. A patient
is classified as a charity patient by reference to certain established policies,
which define charity services as those costs for which no payment is antici
pated. The Organization uses federally established poverty guidelines to
assess the level of discount provided to the patient. The Organization is
required to provide a full discount to patients with annual incomes at or below
100% of the poverty guidelines, but may charge a nominal copay. If the patient is
unable to pay the copay, the amount is written off to charity care. All patients
are charged in accordance with a sliding fee discount program based on house
hold size and household income. No discounts may be provided to patients
with incomes over 200% of federal poverty guidelines.
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Patient services revenue (FQHC), net of provision for bad debts and
contractual allowances and discounts, consists of the following;

.  . 2018 . . 2017

Charitable Net Patient Net Patient

Gross Contractual Care Service Service
Cherqes ADowances Allowances Revenue Revertue

Medicaid S  1,788.965 i  (283,487) i . 8  1,505.498 8  1,470,902
Medicare 1,649.191 (624.839) . 1,024.352 284,040
Third-party 1,597.970 (528,963) - 1,069,007 560,456
Sliding (e^ee care 443.680 - (440,720) 2,960 18,900
Setf-pay 427.971 - (124,171) 303.800 301.645

Subtotal % 5.907.797 S  (1.437.289) $ (564.691) 3.905.617 2.635,943

Provision for bed debts (241.454) (205.782)

Total i  3.664.163 8  2.430.161

15. Client Rental Assistance:

The Organization has multiple grants requiring the payment of rents on behalf
of the consumer. Rent expense totaling approximately $6.5 million is comprised
of leases held in the Organization's name and the responsibility of the Organ
ization, leases in consumers' names, or rents paid as client assistance.

16. Plymouth NH Veterans Housing Project:

The Plymouth NH Veterans Housing project is a planned permanent
supportive housing development of twenty-five one-bedroom apartments for
homeless veterans, and five two-bedroom apartments for low-income families
located on Boulder Point Drive in Plymouth, New Hampshire. The New
Hampshire Community Development Finance Authority has awarded Harbor
Homes, Inc. $700,000 in state tax credits for the project. Harbor Homes, Inc.
is serving as the developer of the $7 million project and will receive a
developer fee, net of expenses in the amount of $472,000. When completed,
the 29,000 square foot apartment building will not only offer affordable,

... . permanent-supportive housing for in-need veterans, but_staffTrom Harbor
Homes, Inc. and White River Junction VA Medical Center will also provide
essential supportive services and case management on-site.

17. Deferred Compensation Plan:

In fiscal year 2018, the Organization offered a 401(k) retirement plan. Upon
meeting the eligibility criteria, employees can contribute a portion of their
wages' to the 401 (k) plan. The Organization matches a percentage of the
employee contribution based on years of service. Total matching
contributions paid by the Organization for the year ended June 30. 2018 were
$454,960.
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The Organization maintains a deferred compensation plan for • certain
directors (the "SA Plan"). The deferred compensation liability under the SA
Plan was $16,800 as of June 30, 2018 and was recorded as a long-term
liability. This liability is offset by a corresponding long-term asset-in-the. same,
amount.

18. Concentration of Risk:

The Organization received revenue as follows:

Federal grants $ 30%
State, local, and other agencies 20%
Patient seivices revenues (other), net 15%
Patient services revenues (FQHC), net 10%
Department of Housing and Urban Development 9%
Department of Veterans Affairs 6%
All other support and revenue 10% .

Total $ 100%

19. Contingencies:

The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal,
state, and local governments. Compliance with these laws and regulations is
subject to future government review and interpretation, as well as regulatory
actions unknown or unassorted at this time. Government activity continues to
increase with respect to investigations and allegations concerning possible
violations by healthcare providers of fraud and abuse statutes and regula
tions, which could result in the imposition of significant fines and penalties, as
well as significant repayments for patient service previously billed. Manage
ment is not aware of any material incidents of noncompliance; however, the
possible future financial effects of this matter on the Organization, if any, are
not presently determinable. _ _

20. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:

The Organization has adopted Accounting Standard Update (ASU) No. 2016-
18, Sfafe of Cash Flows (Topic 203): Restricted Cash. The amendments in
this update require that the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows explain
the change during the fiscal year of restricted cash as part of the total of cash
and cash equivalents.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents,
and restricted cash reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
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Position to the same such amounts reported in the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows. .

•  Cash and Cash Equivalents - - .$-„Tr 480,242-■ ■-
Restricted Cash 1.096.661

Total Cash. Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash
shown in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows $ 1,576,903

21. Change In Accounting Principle:

Effective July 1, 2017, the Organization adopted FASB ASU 2015-11,
Inventory (Topic 330): Simplifying the Measurement of Inventory, which
simplifies the subsequent measurement of inventory by replacing the lower of
cost or market test with a lower of cost or net realizable value test. Net
realizable value is defined as estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less reasonably predictable costs of completion, disposal, and
transportation. Prior to fiscal year 2018, the Organization reported inventory
at the lower of cost or market. This guidance is applied prospectively as
determined by the standard. There is no prior year or current year effect to
the financial statements as a result of this change.

22. Subsequent Events:

Subsequent events have been evaluated through December 20, 2018, which
is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

On August 29, 2019, Harbor Homes, Inc. signed a $400,000 short-term note
with a local bank. Interest on the note is required at 2.5% above the bank's
base rate for six months. The note is secured by two properties.

In October of 2018. Harbor Homes, Inc. sold two properties. The proceeds
were.used.to.pay down the short-term note in the amount of $319,000.

Subsequent to year end, and upon completion of the Plymouth NH Veterans
Housing project, additional Low Income Housing Tax Credits (LIHTC) funding
of approximately $2.6 million will be provided to Boulder Point, LLC.

The New Hampshire Community Development Finance Authority has
awarded Harbor Homes. Inc. $700,000 in state tax credits for the Plymouth
NH Veterans Housing project which will be received in fiscal years 2019 and
2020 and will consist of mortgages payable totaling $560,000 to the
Community Development Investment Program.
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PETER J. KELLEH^ CCSW, LICSW

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

2006-Preient

2002.Pr«seni

I997-Pr««nf

1995-Pr«ent

199S.Prcsent

1982-PreieD(

Pruidcot & CEO, Soutbera NH HIV Task Force
Prtildeot & CEO, GNCA, loc. Nashua, NH
President dc CEO, Healthy At Horae, Inc., Nashua, NH
President & CEO, Milford Regional Counseling Services, Inc., Mllford, NH
Presldeni & CEO, Welcoming Light, Inc., Nashua, NH
President & CEO, Harbor Homes, lac., Nashua, NH
Currently employed as chief executive officer for nonprofit corporBlior> (and afTiliates) providing
residential, supported employment, and locial club services for persons with long-term mcnul illness

initiation, development, and oversight of 33 programs comprising a
510,000,000 opemting budget; proposal development resulting in more than $3,000,000 in grants annually
oversight of 330 management and direct care professionals.

2003-200d Cunsultant

Providing consultation and technical osslstance throughout the State to aid service and mental health
organizations

1980- 1982

1979- 1980

1978 - 1979

1977 - 1979

1976

1971 . 1976

Real Estate Broker, LeVaux Real^, Cerobrldgc, MA
Successful sales and property management specialist. . '

Clinical Coordinator, Task Oriented Communities, Wallham, MA
Established and provided comprehensive rehabilitation services to approximately 70 mentally ill/ mentally
Ktardcd clicnls. Hired, directly supervised, and trained a full-time siaffof 20 residential coordinators
Developed community residences for the above clicnls In three Boston suburbs. Provided eincfocncy
consultation on a 24-hour basis to staff dealing with crisis management in six group homes end one
sheltered workshop. Administrative responsibiliiles included some fmancial management, quality
assurance, and other accouniebilhy to state authorities.

Foculry, Middlesex Community College, Bedford, MA
Instructor for an introductory group psychotherapy course offered through the Social Work Depanmcnt. '

Director, Massachusetts Tuberculosis Treatment Center II. a unit of
Middlesex County Hospital, Woltbam, MA
Functioned as second in command and chief clinical supervisor for eight imcrdisciplinary team members,
and Implemented a six-month residential program for individuals afnictcd with recurring tuberculosis and
alcoholism. Provided group and Individual therapy, relaxation training.

Social Worker, MaiiachusolO Inimutc of Technology, Out-P«lient PaychUtry, Cambridge, MA
Employed in full-lime summer position providing out patient counseling to individuals and arouos of the
MIT community.

Progrom Counselor/Supervisor, Masischuselts loslltutc of Technology, MIT/Wetleslcy Colleec
Upward Bound Progrom, Cambridge and Wellcslcy, MA
Major responiibilitiei consisted of psycho educational counseling of Upward Bound students, supervision
of tutoring staff, teaching, conducting evaluative research for program policy developntent.

r



EDUCATION

I988>1991 Rivitr College, Nichue. NH -Bachcloc of Sdencc, Accounting

OTHER ACHIEVEMENTS

Uccnied Ceitified Public Accountant in the Scitc of New Hsmpahice
Member of the New Hampihirc'Sodecy of Certified Public Accountantt
Member of the Amencim Institute of Certified Public Accountants

SnPTWAPR KXPRRIFNrR

Excel, Word, Powerpolnt, Pro-Fx Tax software, Pco-Fx TriU balance lofcwaxe, Quickbooka,
Peachlrce, T*Va)ue, various auditing lofrwarc programs
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Vanessa J. Talasazan

Education

2018 M.S. Community Economic Development Southern NH University
-Outstanding Student Award, 4.0 CPA

2007 B.A in English with afocus in Communications University of New Hampshire

jggg _ Current Licensed New Hampshire Real Estate Agent Continuing Education Ongoing

Career History

April 2008-Current Partnership for Successful Living Affiliates Nashua, NH

Background on Agencies/Employer: A unique partnership amongst several non-profit organizations w/ a combined
annual operating budget of approx. $40 million that share the same CEO, Board of Directors, and some back<nd
administration; Harbor Homes, inc.; Southern NH HIV/AIDS Task Force, Greater Nashua Council on
Alcoholism (Keystone Hall); Welcoming Light; Healthy at Home; and Milford Regional Counseling Services.
Together, the agencies serve over 6,000 individuals and families annually. Named NH's most innovative
nonprofit organization by The NH Center for Nonprofits.

Current Role: Chief Strategy OFFicERy Chief of Staff to CEO

Primary Responsibilities: Key member of C-suite leadership across six companies, a hybrid role that
'  encompasses two complementary positions: that of the Chief Strategy Officer (CSO) and that of Chief of Staff
(COS).

Chief Strategy Officer Responsibilities: Responsible for formalizing the organization's strategic-
planning processes, leading the development of the strategy, translating it for people across functions and
business units, driving organizational change, forging new working relationships and synergies across the
organization, and establishing greater transparency and accountability for those people carrying out the
organization's strategy. In addition responsible for assessing whether strategic initiatives, at all levels of the
organization, are in line with the company's standards and objectives.

Key duties include:

•  Supervise the grant department: responsible for implementing and achieving an annual grant
fundraising campaign of approximately $20 million. Manage team of writers and special project

' coordinators to achieve new and repeat grant funding opportunities, effectively balancing the grants'
strategic impact to the PSL.

•  Design and initiate new programs and services from conception and funding to launch,
ensuring alignment with the organization's strategic plan.

•  Serve as the lead staff person of the Housing Development Project Management Team:
plan and implement the construction of healthcare facilities and low-income housing
developments including emergency, transitional, and permanent supportive initiatives.



Chief OF Staff RESPONSiBtUTiES: Primary responsibility is to enable the CEO to work most effectively with
internal and external stakeholders and fulfill his commitments to the Partnership for Successful Living's
partners, funders, and Board of Directors. Key duties include acting as a gatekeeper to the CEO; advising the
CEO; autonomously competing tasks in place of the CEO; and organizing the CEO's direct reports and other
staff members toward common goals.

Key duties include:

•  Preparing for, and facilitating, "critical path" CEO meetings (e.g., with PSL executive
leadership, current or potential PSL partners, funders, community and business leaders,
govcmmcnt officials, and peer executives).

• Coordinating projects or commitments directly Involving the CEO and his direct reports
•  Independently leading special CEO-initiaied projects, ranging from written products to be

authored by the CEO to convening thought leaders on various topics.
• Developing draft communication on behalf of the CEO ranging from: the CEO update at

Board meetings, to follow up correspondence related to the CEO's various meetings with
PSL funders, partners and staff, to various speaking engagements involving external
audiences.

•  Understanding, communicating, and accurately representing the CEO's point of view on
a wide range of topics at internal and external meetings when appropriate and as
requested.

•  Proactivcly identifying issues that could impact the successful execution of the CEO's
commitments, elevating issues the CEO should be aware of, and framing/positioning
ideas to resolve the problem/mitigate the risk

•  Supporting the needs of the executive staff in their ability to raise critical issues with the
CEO and receive needed responses, guidance, and decisions.

• Managing critical projects and bring them to successful outcomes by deftly bringing together
internal and external stakeholders for a common purpose, facilitating these individuals to set
aside personal goals and replace them with team goals, and helping them collaborate.

Previous Role: Vice President of Development and Grant Compliance

Primary Responsibilities: Key member of intercompany management team; lead all grant writing, efforts;
supervise a team of development staff and interns; identify, write, and submit federal, state, corporate, and
foundation grant requests; new program development and strategic planning; create and implement evaluations,
outcome measurements, and data analysis tools to help ensure grant compliance; create corrective action plans to
remedy identified compliance issues; expertise in the creation and execution of events, capital campaigns, and
individual and corporate giving activities; liaison with board of directors and major donors.

Achievements include program design leading to more than $120 million in federal, state and foundation grant
funding obtained since 2008, including grants from:

•US Department of Veteran Affairs
-US Department of Housing & Urban Development
-US Department of Labor
-US Department of Health Resources Services Administration
-US Department of Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration
-Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston



-NH Community Development Finance Authority
-NH Housing Finance Authority
-NH Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services
-NH Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services
-NH Department of Justice
-NH Charitable Foundation

2000 - 2008 Assist2Sell Buyers & Sellers Realty Nashua, NH

Licensed NH Real Estate Agent

Primary Responsibiiilies: Created and negotiated successful contract agreements related to the sale of
residential and commercial properties as an Exclusive Buyer Agent, Seller Agent, or Dual Agent; and upheld
fiduciary duties to the respected parties. Regularly achieved more than $10 million in sales annually.



Ana Panclne

ObjecUvf

Exporienc*

Skills

Educstlon

To obieln a poslt'cn withln an orflantzation thai offers ma the opportunity to apply my axpartences
and academic experlbe in the Financial field, and that provides ma a chance to enhance my
career ttnowtedge. ^ •

December 2006 - Praaant Hewlett-Packard Nashua, NH

Service Resource Coordinator Oecember 2006 • Prosenily
Accountable for elt metric reports for Ihe PER Event team in a monthly basis.
Responsible for revenue booking for two districts. -If
Accountat>le to update, present and distribute aQ reports related to the department.
Provide quality reports for upper management to review the progress of the team.
Responsible for an the billings for L^iln America.

August 2001 - December 2006 Electronic Data Systems(EOS) Nashua, NH

Americas Buslrtess Anstyst February 2004 - December 2006
Manage ten cosl centers wHh anrursi expenses of $9m and revenue of $t6m. forecast on e
quarterly basts, generate experxse erxj revenue accruats, and establish budgetary gulde&nes
for team members.

Variance reporting monthly for ♦M % of forecasted to. report to senior managerT%ent.
CompRa, recor>ciie, end obtain approval from customer for sccount metrics on a monthly basis.
Maintain global reporting of 200 employees with specific emphasb on geographic aiignment.
Individual line counts, and organizational charts for account utl&zallon and resource mapping
Approve time card for temporary employees, main contact for temporary agencies ar>d
responsible for hirtr^g/releasing of temporary employees.

Main contact for all customers located in the l,alln America territory.
Provided Ftnandal Support for account dosing.

Quality Controliar/ System Support Admlnlatrator Juno 2003 - Fobwary 2005
• Mi^ contact between administrators and system support to prtorttize technicel errors.
•  Responsible for weekly, monthly and quarterly quality review reporting.
•  Resporulbte for weekly and n>onthly geography reports.
• Maintain ail employee related spreadsheets updated.
•  f^nage quairty re^ew reports lo ensure policies and procedures are being followed.
• Mentoring new hires In^heir assigned positions.
•  Communicating with manager for tools necessary for team.
•  Categorize and notify managers of any performance isaues.
•  Provide support for teem members with problem sotving.

Per Event Admlnlstrstor Augusf 2O0f - Juno 2003
Responsible for bBling revenue.
General office filing and organization.
.Data Entry.
Assisting customer needs.
Sotving eny customer Issues.
Revenue booking and customer assistance for Latin America/Caribbean territory.
Asalstsnl and service provided for all customer located in the Latin
Amerlca/Cartbbean/Europe larrttoiy.

Windows 98/2000/XP
SIFT - Financtst Oatabsae
Microsoft Office

PEARS/CHAMP/WFM
NCASfSAP
Fluent in Portuguese and Spanish.

Hester College '
• Bachelor of Science, Business Administration • Get 2005
Southern NH University
• Pursuing MBA and Finandal/lntemational Business certmcation.

-Rcfcrcncej Available upon request'--'



Cheryle Pacapelli

Profile

Fifteen + years of nonprofit end program management experience; Including advocacy, community
organizing, education, and management at the tocei, state and federal levcJ, for the development
and implementation of peer to peer Recovery Support Services. Serves es Co^hair of the
Recovery Task Force. Developed and implemented: programs, trainings, eclivlties, and community
events for sustaining program capacity, building coalitions end establishing best practice initiallves.
Advanced Computer Proficiency: Windows XP Professional Microsoft Office Suite. Glftworks. IMAC

Experience
2/17. Present Harbor Homes Nashua NH
Project Director

■  This is an administratiye position supporting the Peer Recovery Support Services (PRSS)
Facilitaling Organizations (FO) contract to subcontract with Recovery Community Organizations
(RCOs) In New Hampshire.

■  Review existing worit completed by BDAS and NH Center for Excellence to design a more
fonna] readiness scan of al I known RCOs statewide

■  Analyze data and communicalc with RCOs to determine willingness, ability and capacity to
achieve Council on Accreditation of Peer Recovery Support Services (CAPRSS) accreditation,
provide Peer Recovery Support Services CPRSS), open/operate a Recovery Center and adhere to
CMS regulations during the readiness scan

■  Dcvdop a formal procurement process thai b fair and transparent to identify at least five RCOs to
participate in the first year of FO grant "

•  Prioritize those RCOs most likely to participate in subsequent years
• Within five days of procurement process completion, provide BDAS with a written deierraination

of RCO readiness
• Work with NH Center for Excellence to engage the first "Community of Practice" meeting to

assist with the completion of readiness scan
•  Upon BDAS approval, arrange one on one visits with selected RCOs, Including Board of

Directors, staff, volunteers, etc. to shadow day to day activities (CAPRSS also present)
• Monitors subcontractors and assists with development of required policies and procedures
•  Assists subcontractors with the process ofapplying for and obtaining Medicaid billing status
•  Communicate regularly with subcontractors to review progress
•  Monitors the quajity of all subcontractors and their progress, and completes required documents

and reports
•  Assists in the oversight artd facilitation of training for all subcontractors
■  Manages the employment process, with staff scheduling, and In the provision of routine

assessment of staff performance
•  Utilizes computer appiicarion(s) or applicable technology for administrative tasks
• Manages services and related budgetary concerns
•  Oversee HHI business process end accounting related to subcontracts

I

7/15-2/17 New Futures, Inc. Concord, NH
Community Engagement Director

•  Advocate for policies and financing that support a statewide system of community based recovery
supports, to ensure that aD people in NH ̂th SUD are able to access recovery supports;

•  Educate the public and poUcymakers regarding the nature and effecDveness of recovery
supports;

•  Work vdth the newly created continuum of care faciDlators In each pi^llc health region to ensure
that tndMdua] recovery supports and family supports are Included In each region's
comprehensive substance misuse continuum of care;



Cheryle Pacapelli
•  Work with providers in designated Integrated Deiivery Networks under the 1115 Demonstration

Waiver program to ensure that recovery supports are an integral part of innovative projects
. funded through the waiver.

•  Provide technical assistance to oommunities and organlzafions interested in devetoping and
delivering recovery supports;

•  Partner with New Futures Policy Director and the NH Providers Association to provide technical
assistance on enrollment and regulatory requirements to organlzatbns and individuals Interested
In bDIIng third party payers, including Medicaid, for peer and non-peer recovery supports;

•  Oversee expansion of femlly supports through DHHS System of Cam grant;
•  Fadritate connections betwMn SUO treatment providers, healthcare providers, dnjg courts,

corrections facilities and other insStutions whose clients or patients are In need of recovery
supports with recovery community organizations; and,

•  Otherwise support the development of a state^e system of recovery supports as a full,
accessible component of the SUD continuum of care through advocacy on poUcy. technial
assistarice, relationship devetopment. education, and collaboration.

05/01 • Present Stepping Stone House Meriden, CT

Co-Ownor

•  Operate 5 Recovery Houses wHh 52 male transitional living beds
•  Certified by Department of Mental Health end Addiction Services to provide housing and case

management services.
•  Coordinate wtth Access to Recovery and Recovery Support Program to secure housing erxi

basic need support for cOents
•  Provide case management for clients, life skills, resumes, job search
•  Administer progress notes and a recovery plan for each individual.

8/14-7/15 HOPE for NH Recovery Concord. NH
Executlvo Director

•  Statewide Coordlruitlon of Recovery Movement
"  Public Education. Awareness and Advocacy
•  Deliver a variety of peer-based recovery support services; assist In stait-up of Recovery

Community Centers
•  Community Outreach and Resource Development
•  Coiiaborale with the Governor's Commission for Alcohol and other Drug Prevention, Treatment

and Recovery

12/11-10/12 CT. Community for Addiction Recovery Hartford, CT
Director Recovery Services

•  Recovery Coach Academy Management (RCA)
o Administered promotion, marketing and sabs of RCA; handling of logistics. RCA manual

sales, data tracking, recovery coach support
o  Coordinated five CT Trainings held per year and 20 out of state held per year over

1.000 Recovery Coaches trained
o  Trained 100 -*■ trainers to bnr^ RCA across the United States,
o Maintained website with RCA updates, and all training registrations online
0 Generated $200,000 In gross revenues

•  Recovery Technlcai Assistance Group Management
o  Promotion, marketing and sales of CCAR technical assistance products, including

trainings, technical assistance end paid speaking engagements,
o  Developed, implemented, and managed CCAR's web-based shopping site:

www.shoprecovery.com for nationd) seles of all CCAR products, RCA trainings,



Cheryle Pacapelli
Recovery Housing Trainings, RCA manuals. Increasing CCAR revenue by 45% In
tbe first year.

o Originated national sales and toglsllcs of CCAR's Technlca! Assistance Group. Managed
Imptemeniation end coilaboralion with conbact sites. Best-practice programming
Includes: Telephone Recovery Support, Vdunteer Management, and Vocadonal
EmpJoyrrtent Services. Increased organizational revenue by 45 % during my tenure.

•  Annual Recovery Walks! CoortHnation
o  Design^ and implemented the event; met target numbers; increased public awareness

for addiction recovery.
o Collaborated with multiple state agencies and service providers for providing resources

and services to part'dpants.
o Over 2.000 In attendance end revenue of $14,000.

•  Annual Volunteer Recognition Dinner Coordination
o  Plan and Implemenl the event, volunteers recognized.
o Devetop sponsorship for Volunteer Recognftion Dinnef. create Invitations, and progrem.
o  300 Volunteers recognized for over 15,000 hours of volunteer service.

•  Data tracking end Analysis
0  Oversaw all tracking databases for bl-weekfy reports, training and event; engaged In

quality Improvement,
o Generated reports for Executive Director, funders and Board of Directors

12/00 -12/11 CT. Community for Addiction Recovery Hartford. CT

Director of Operatlone
•  Recovery Community Center Management

o Oversaw the operations et three Recovery Community Centers with efficiency; ensured
adherence to prescnbed structure, encouraged new programs,

o  Held 375 events with over 14.000 In attendance
o  Hosted 38 different recovery focused trainings, with over 1.700 participants
o  Implementalion of Access to Recovery Services in Recovery Community Centers

•  Direct Supervision of five Full Tone Staff
o Volunteer Manager, Program Manager, Three Recovery Community Center Managers
0 Administered Annual performance reviews

■  Program Oversight - Telephone Recovery Support and Recovery Housing Program
0  Increased number of people called from 22 In 2005. to 1.945 In 2011.
o CCAR volunteers made over 125,000 telephone calls resulting in 36.000

conversations with about 4,500 people in recovery,
o Originated and managed CCAR's Recovery Housing Progrem:

www.flndrecoveryhou8lng.conS, Built service to Its current over 200 recovery
houses listed in 19 states status. Revenue Is being generated from owners listing
Recovery Houses.

•  Information Technology
0  Designed and developed tracking systems for generating outcome-based reports and

evaluating services which resulted In Increased funding and national attention.
0 Managed all databases, maintained equipment, and assisted staff with technology

needs and training.

10/04 -12/06 CT. Community for Addiction Recovery Hartford. CT



Cheryle Pacapelli
Project Manager - Recovery Housing

•  Developed and ntatntained an Inventory of Recovery hJouses In CT
•  Provided community education on recovery housing, NiMBY Issues
•  . Marlceted and delivered training 'So. you virant to open a Recovery House'
•  Established Recovery Housing Cosl^ of CT, developed state^^ide standards for Recovery

Houses.

Albertus Magnus New Haven, CT

Bachelore Dagrae - Bualneaa Managamant

• - Cum Laude.tai Pi Phi National Honor Society

Co-Chair Recovery Task Force

Training

Certifications: CCAR Recovery Coach Academy Trainer

CCAR Ethics for Recovery Support Worker Trainer
Pastoral Counseling \
Mental Health and Addiction Services: DMHAS Successfully Housing Persons with Substance Use
Issues .

safcTALK Suicide Alertness for Everyone
Human Resource Development: Understanding Sexual Harassment



Contractor Name:

KEY PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services

Harbor Homes, Inc.

Name of Contract: PRSS Facilitating Organization Services

iBODGET PERIOD:; SPY 20

NAME" . , ■ ; - jOBTITLE ..-r :.:sAlrARy' '

. PErqENV PAjb
" EROMTHIS
■"..".■COIJTRACT

: AMO.UNVi?AID ,
. FROM THIS ■
CONTRAer :

Peter Kelleher President and CEO $338,146 0.00% /  .$0.00"
Patricia Robitaille Chief Financial Officer $150,000 0.00% $o:oQ
Vanessa Talasazan Chief Strategy Officer $115,000 0.00% ■  ":$0.00
Ana Panclne Chief Revenue Officer $115,000 0.00% ■  $0.00
Cheryte Pacapelli Program Director $92,000 90.00% - $82;800:00

$0 0.00% $0.00
TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request) : $82;800-.00



Jeffrey A. Meyers
CommissiODer

Kalji S. Fox
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AlVD HUMAJV SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEAL TH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544

Fm: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 wTvw.dhhs.nh.gov

September 12, 2019

JHis_ExceJJe.[ic.y..JSo3te-maiL.Cbris.top.bfirJL_&uriuDu_

and the Honorabte Council
State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health, to
exercise a renewal option and amend an existing sole source agreement with Harbor Horties, Inc.
(Vendor # 155358-B001), 77 Northeastern Boulevard, Nashua, NH 03062, to continue development of
and' providing assistance to the Recovery Community Centers (RCCs) to ensure they meet the
standards required of a Recovery Community Center by increasing the price limitation by'$1,728,236
from $6,073,822 to $7,802,058 and by extending the completion date from October 31, 2019 to June
30, 2020, effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval. 21.37% General
Funds, 44.74% Other Funds and 33.89% Federal Funds.

This agreem'ent was originally approved by Governor and Council on June 1, 2016, (Item #13)
and amended on June 7, 2017 (Item #20), on July 11. 2018 (Item # 15), September 20, 2018 (Item
#22), and June 26. 2019 (Item #29C).

Funds^to support this request are anticipated to b^e available in the following accounts in State
Fiscal Year 2020, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating
budgets, with authority adjust encumbrances t)etween State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if
needed and justified.

05-95-491510-29890000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT
OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, SVCS,
GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS

SFY Class/Account Class Title Activity/Job
Number

Code

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased/

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2016 1.02-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 49158501 $2,820 0 $2,820

2017 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 49158501 $813,180 $0 $813,180

1 Subtotal $816,000 $0 $816,000

f
L



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Papo 2 o( 4

ntuq(;-491510 29900000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT
OF HhI DIV FoTb^ health. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL. SVCS. CLINICAL

SFY Class/

Account

Class Title Activity/Job
Number Code

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased/

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

102-500734

Contracts for

■ Social Svc 49156501 $3,180 $0 $3,180

0C^^7 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 49156501 $796,820 $0 $796,820

Subtotal $800,000 $0 $800,000

niwQ«;.q2O51O.3M2O000 HEALTH AND bULIAL acRViuco, ntMi-ir» 7"

OF. HHS; DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SVCS.
GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS

SFY Class/

Account

Class Title Activity/Job
Number

Code

Current

Modified

Budget

increased/

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

9niR 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 92058503 $700,000 •  $0 $700,000

2019 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 92058503 $700,000 $0 $700,000

2020 102-500734

Contract for

Social Svs 92058501 $233,333 $1,041,667 $1,275,000

Subtotal 57.633.333 $1,041,667 $2,675,000

ni;.Q«;.Q9O«51O-3384O000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL stKVH^co, ncMuin «i^l/ .

DEPT OF. HHS; DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SVCS.

SFY Class/

Account

Class Title Activity/Job
Number

Code

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased/

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 92056501 $904,098 $0 $904,098

2019 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 92057501 $800,000 $0 $800,000

2019 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 92056505 $140,293 $0 $140,293

2020 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 92057501 $313,431 5686.569 57.000.000

1  Subtotal $2,157,822 5686.569 52.844,397
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05-95-47-470010-79480000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT OF, HHS: MEDICAID & BUSINESS POLICY OFFICE, OFFICE OF MEDICAID AND
BUSINESS POLICY MEDICAID CARE MANAGEMENT

SFY

2019

Class/

Account

102-500731

Class Title

Contracts for

Social Svc

Medical

Activity/Job
Number

Code

47000254

Subtotal

Current

Modified

Budget

$500,000

-$666;667-

Increased/

(Decreased)
Amount

$0

Revised

Modified

Budget

$500.000

-$666;667-

TOTAL \ $6,073,822 \ $1,728,236 \ -^7,802,058

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because Amendment #2 increased funding by more than 10% of
the total contract price limitation. The Department is required by statute to carry out the administrative
functions of the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, which recently voted to direct
funding to the vendor.

The purpose of this request is to have the vendor continue serving as the Peer Recovery
Support Services Facilitating Organization (PRSS PC). The vendor supports the ongoing development
of RCCs.

This amendment will support maintenance and expansion of recovery support services for
people with substance use disorder at a minimum of twelve (12) RCCs throughout the State. The funds
will enable centers to provide a minimum of 70,000 RCC-generated services to Individuals in recovery
by expanding center-based programming.

The original agreement included language in Exhibit C-1 that allows the Departrhent to renew
the contract for up to four (4) years, subject to the continued availability of funding, satisfactory
performance of service, parties' written authorizations and approval from the Governor and Executive
Council. The Department exercised two (2) yeas of renewal in. Amendment #1 and four (4)- months in
Amendment #4 of the total four (4) years of renewal available. The Department is in agreement with
renewing services for eight (8) months at this time.

Upon Governor and Executive Council approval of'this request, the Department will have one
(1) year of renewal option available for this contract contingent upon availability of funding, satisfactory
performance of service, parties' written authorizations and approval from the Governor and Executive
Council.

The Contractor will continue to support the development and expansion of critical referral
partnerships and relationships between substance use disorder service providers, including treatment
agencies, corrections and drug courts, and homeless serving organizations. Funds in this agreement
will be used to assess and enhance the level of accreditation readiness of each of the RCCs. The
Contractor will continue providing program management and oversight. Additionally, the Contractor will
implement a quality improvement process in collaboration with the Department and other PRSS
organizations and implement culturally appropriate processes and outcome data collection and
analysis.

The following performance measures/objectives will be used to measure the effectiveness of
the agreement:

•  Operational status of Recovery Community Centers;

•  Each RCC meets CAPRSS standards;



His Excellency. Govemof Christopher T. Sununu
arxJ the Honorable Council

Page 4 of 4

•  Engaging individuals with "lived experience" in completing requirements to provide Peer
Recovery Support Services, including completing the "Recovery Coach" training and becoming
a Certified Recovery Support Worker (CRSW) under the Board of Licensing for Alcohol and
Other Drug Use Professionals;

•  Having the mechanisms and protocols in place to collect client information, including process
and outcome data; and

•  Providing services and supports to a minimum of 26,000 individuals in recovery.
The Agreement includes requirements for the Contractor to submit ongoing financial reports.

Financial reports will include program-level and organization-level profit and loss statements, cash
equivalents, liabilities and assets, and new lending. The Department will review these reports and
discuss any concerns with the Contractor on an ongoing basis, which is expected to lead to close
monitoring of fiscal integrity.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Department's overall
strategy to address the disease of addiction to alcohol and drugs may be negatively impacted, with
fewer individuals gaining and maintaining recovery. Without access to a community-based PRSS.
many of them may require additional intensive treatment services. Others may continue in their active
addiction, leading to negative medical, legal and child welfare consequences for those persons, their
families and society, incurring much higher costs to the Department and state.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 33.89% Federal Funds from United States Department of Health and Human
Services. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. CFDA #93.959 FAIN T1010035
and 44.74% Other Funds from the Governor's Commission Funds and 21.37% General Funds.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

tesoectfully submitted.

(Mi kuM
[rey A. Meyers

Commissioner

The Deparlmenl of HcoUh and Hnnion Services' Mission is lojoin eomnxuniiies and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Dr., Cortcord, NH 03301

Fax: 603-271.1516 TOD Access: 1-800-735.2964

www.nh.gov/doit

Denis Gouiet

Commissioner

- -Sgptennber-13-2Q19

-Jeffrey A.-Meyers, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services

State of New Hampshire

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Meyers:
1

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (Doll)
has approved your agency's request to enter Into a contract with Harbor Homes, Inc., of Nashua, NH.as
described below and referenced as Doll No. 2019-069.

This is a request to enter into a contract with Hartwr Homes, Inc., to provide Peer j,
Recovetv Support Services (PRSS) to Individuals with opiold use disorders. These
services are part of the State's accepted plan to the Substance Abuse and Mental Health j
Services Administration (SAMHSA) under the State Opiold Response (SOR) grant. ■<

The amount of the contract is not to exceed $2,000,000, and shall become effective }
upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval, through September 29,2020. I
A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services' \

submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval. j

Sincerely,

Denis Gouiet
Commissioner

DG/kaf/ck
DolT #2019-069

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DolT

'Innovotive Technologies Todoy for New Hampshire's Tomorrow'



New Hampshire Department off Health and Human Services
PRSS Facilitating Organization Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #5 to the PRSS Facilitating Organization Services Contract

This 5^ Amendment to the PRSS Facilitating Organization Services contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #5") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Harbor Homes, inc., (hereinafter
referred to as "the Contractor"), a (nonprofit corporation) with a place of business at 77 Northeastern
Boulevard, Nashua. New Hampshire 03060.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 1, 2016 (Item #16), as amended on June 7, 2017 (Item #20). July 11, 2018 (Item #15). September
20, 2018 (Item #22), and June 26, 2019 (Item #29C), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services
based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain
sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1. Revisions to
General Provisions, Section 3, the Contract may be extended and amended upon written agreement of
the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #5 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.4. Contractor Address, to read:

77 Northeastem Boulevard, Nashua, New Hampshire 03060.

2. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2020.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$7,802,058.

4. Exhibit A Amendment #4 Scope of Services, Section 4 Deliverables. Subsection 4.6 to read:

4.6 The Contractor shall have provided a minimum of 70,000 RCO-generated services
for the period of July through June 2020, shall be provided to community members
including, but not limited to:

4.6.1 Individual recovery coaching.

4.6.2 Telephone recovery support sen/ices.

4.6.3 Therapeutic services.

4.6.4 Center-based programming.

4.6.5 Crisis management and systems navigation; and

4.6.6 Other trainings and supports.

Harbor Homes, Inc. Amendment #5 Contractor InlUals
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
PRSS Facilitating Organization Services

5. Revise Exhibit A Amendment #4 Scope of Services; Section 5 Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity to
read;

5. Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity

5.1. In order to enable DHHS to evaluate the Contractor's fiscal integrity, the Contractor
agrees to submit to DHHS monthly, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Statement
(total organization and program-level), and Cash Flow Statement for the Contractor.
Program-level Profit and Loss Statement shall include all revenue sources and all
related expenditures for that program. The program-level Profit and Loss Statement
fthat|-inrliiriP-a-huriget-mUimn-allowing for-budget-to-actual analysis—Qutside-ofThe-
"pr&g-ram-l6»erProrit~and-toss~Statement-and-budget"to-actual-analysis7-all-other-
statements shall be reflective of the entire Partnership for Successful Living
nrjanT^inn anri shall be submitted-on-the.same^Qay-ihe.repons-are.subnitttgdltgTtrez
Board, but no later than the fourth Wednesday of the month. Additionally, the
contractor will provide interim profit and loss statements for every program area,
reported as of the 20th of the month, by the last day of every month. The Contractor
will be evaluated on the following:

5.1.1. Days of Cash on Hand:

5.1.1.1. Definition: The days of operating expenses that can be covered
by the unrestricted cash on hand.

5.1.1.2. Formula: Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments
divided by total operating expenditures. less
depreciation/amortization and in-kind plus principal payments on
debt divided by days in the reporting period. The short-term
investments as used above must mature within three (3) months
and should not include common stock. Any amount of cash from
a line of credit should be broken out separately.

5.1.1.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall have enough cash
and cash equivalents to cover expenditures for a minimum of
thirty (30) calendar days with no variance allowed.

5.1.2. Current Ratio:

5.1.2.1. Definition: A njeasure of the Contractor's total current assets
available to cov^r the cost of current liabilities.

5.1.2.2. Formula: Total current assets divided by total current liabilities.

5.1.2.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a minimum
current ratio of 1.5:1 with 10% variance allowed.

5.1.3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio:

5.1.3.1. Rationale: This ratio illustrates the Contractor's ability to cover
the cost of its current portion of its long-term debt.

5.1.3.2. Definition: The ratio of Net Income to the year to date debt
service.

5.1.3.3. Formula: Net Income plus Depreciation/Amortization Expense
plus Interest Expense divided by year to date debt service
(principal and interest) over the next twelve (12) months.

5.1.3.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial Statements
identifying current portion of long-term debt payments^jricipal

Harbor Homes, Inc. Amendment #5 Contractor Initials
16-DHHS-BDAS-GCF-RFA-02-A05 Page 2 of 6 Dale WB



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
PRSS Facilitating Organization Services

and interest).

5.1.3.5. Performance Standard; The Contractor shall maintain a minimum
standard of 1.2:1 with no variance allowed.

5.1.4. Net Assets to Total Assets:

5.1.4.1. Rationale: This ratio is an indication of the Contractor's ability to
cover its liabilities.

5.1.4.2. Definition: The ratio of the Contractor's net assets to total assets.

5.1.4.3. Formula: Net assets (total assets less total liabilities) divided by
total assets.

5.1.4.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial Statements.

5.1.4.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a minimum
ratio of .30:1. with a 20% variance allowed.

5;1.5. Total Lines of Credit

5.1.5.1. The contractor will provide a listing of every line of credit and
amount outstanding for each line.

5.1.5.2. The contractor will report on any new borrowing activities.

5.1.5.3. The contractor will report on any instances of non-compliance
with any loan covenant or agreement.

5.2. In the event that the Contractor does not meet either:

5.2.1. The standard regarding Days of Cash on Hand and the standard regarding
Current Ratio for two (2) consecutive months; or

5.2.2. Three (3) or more of any of the Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity standards
for three (3) consecutive months, or

5.2.3. Does not meet the reporting timeframe. then

5.3. The Department may:

5.3.1. Require that the Contractor meet with Department staff to explain the
reasons that the Contractor has not met the standards.

5.3.2. Require the Contractor to sut>mit a comprehensive corrective action plan
within thirty (30) calendar days of notification that 5.2.1 and/or 5.2.2 have
not been met.

5.3.3. Terminate the contract.

5.3.3.1. If a corrective action plan is required, the Contractor shall update
the corrective action plan at least every thirty (30) calendar days
until compliance is achieved.

5.3.3.2. The Contractor shall provide additional information to assure
continued access to services as requested by the Department.
The Contractor shall provide requested information in a timeframe
agreed upon by both parties.

Harbor Homes. Inc. Amendment #5 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
PRSS Facilitating Organization Services

5.4. The Contractor shall inform the Department by phone and by email within twenty-
four (24) hours of when any key Contractor staff learn of any actual or likely
litigation, Investigation, complaint, claim, or transaction that may reasonably be
considered to have a material financial impact on and/or materially impact or impair
the ability of the Contractor to perform under this Agreement with the Department.

5.5. The monthly Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Statement. Cash Flow Statement, and
all other financial reports shall be based on the accrual method of accounting and
Include-the Contractor-s total revenues and expenditures-whether-or-not generated-

byor-resulting-from-funds-provlded-pursuant-to-this-Agreement:

f; fi Thft Contractor shall inform the Department by phone and bv email within five
business~days-when-any Executive-Management,-Board Officersror-Program-
Managers for DHHS contracts submits a resignation or leaves for any other
reason.

6. Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 3, to read:

3. Payment for expenses shall be on a cost reimbursement basis only for actual
expenditures in accordance with the approved line item budgets shown in Exhibit B-1
through Exhibits B-5 Amendment #5.

7. Delete In its entirety Exhibit B-5, Amendment #4 and replace with Exhibit B-5. Amendment #5.
Budget.

Harbor Homes. Inc. Amendment #5 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
PRSS Facilitating Organization Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

^ I
Date Name: Katja S. Pox

Title: Director

Date

Harbor Homes, Inc.

Cy
Nam^

Title: CXA<^

Acknoviiedc

State of

ement of Contractor's signature:

_, County of
undersigned ofticer, personally appeareo the
be the person whose name is signed above, i
capacity indicated above.

.before the

(nowledged
satisfactorily proven to
ted this document in the

ifc lUA
Signature d Notary vublic or Justice of the Peace

„

Name and

My Commission Expires:

of Notary or Justice of the Peace

i  5 ■= 1
I \

Hartxjr Homes. Inc.

1 ft.nwH.<^nr)AS-GCF-RFA-02-A05

Amendment #5

Page 5 of 6



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
PRSS Facilitating Organization Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date ' ' Nam^ fiNO^

hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
Statft of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Harbor Homes. Inc. Amendment #5
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JefTrey A. Meyers
CotntnluiMier

Ksl>» S. Fos
Director

•  - -Wi C ^''1 0''.0 DAS

,  «

^  STATE OF NEW H/^MPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301

603-271 -9544 1-800-052-3345 Ext 9544
Fix: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhbs.nh.gov

June 7, 2016

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Slate House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health, to
exercise a renewal option and amend an existing sole source agreement with Harbor Homes, Inc.
(Vendor # 155358-8001). 77 Northeastern Boulevard. Nashua. NH 03060. to continue developing and
assisting Recovery Community Centers (RCCs) to ensure they meet stajldards required of RCCs by
increasing the price limitation by $713,431 from $5,360,391 to $6,073,822 and by extending the
completion date from June 30. 2019" to October 31. 2019, effective July 1. 2019 upon the date of
Governor and Executive Council approval. 23.60% General Funds. 40.33% Other Funds and 36.07 /o
Federal Funds.

This agreement was originally approved by Governor and Council on June 1, 2016. (Item #13)
and amended on June 7. 2017 (Item #20), on July 11. 2018 (Item # 15), and on September 20, 2018
(Item #22).

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following accounts in State
Fiscal Year 2020, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating
budgets, with authority adjust encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if
needed and justified.

05-95-491510-29890000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT
OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, SVCS,
GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS

SFY Class/Account Class Title Activity/Job
Number

Code

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased/

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2016 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 49158501 $2,820 0 $2,820

2017 102-500734

Contracts for
Social Svc 49158501 $813,180 ,$0 $813,180

Subtotal $816,000 $0 $816,000
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05-95-491510-29900000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT
OF. HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, SVCS, CLINICAL
SERVICES

SFY Class/

Account

Class Title Activity/Job
Number Code

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased/

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2016 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 49156501 $3,180 $0 $3,180

2017 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 49156501 $796,820 $0 $796,820

Subtotal $800,000 $0 $800,000

05-95-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVIC
OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DR
COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

ES, HEALTF
UG AND AL

AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT

COHOL SVCS, GOVERNOR

SFY Class/

Account

Class Title Actlvlty/Job
Number

Code

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased/

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 92058503 $700,000 $0 $700,000

2019 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 92058503 $700,000 $0 $700,000

2020 102-500734

Contract for

Social Svs 92058501 $0 $233,333 $233,333

Subtotal $1,400,000 $233,333 $7,633,333

05-95-920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERV
DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUF
SVCS,CLINICAL SERVICES (66% Federal Funds CFD
General Funds)

CES, HEALT
^EAU OF Dl

A 93.959 FAI

H AND HUMAN SVCS

RUG AND ALCOHOL

N: TI010035 and 34%

SFY Class/

Account

Class Title Activity/Job
Number

Code

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased/

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 92056501 $904,098 $0 $904,098

2019 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 92057501 $800,000 $0 $800,000

2019 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 92056505 $140,293 $0 $140,293

2020 102.500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 92057501 $0 $313,431 $313,431

Subtotal $1,844,397 $373,437 $2,157,822
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05-95-47-470010-79480000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT OF. HHS: MEDtCAID & BUSINESS POLICY OFFICE, OFFICE OF MEDICAID AND
BUSINESS POLICY MEDICAID CARE MANAGEMENT (100% General Funds)

SFY Ctass/

Account

Ctass Title Activity/Job
Number

Code

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased/

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2019 101-500729 Medical Providers 47000254 $500,000 $0 $500,000

2020 101-500729 Medical Providers 47000254 $0 $166,667 $166,667

Subtotal $500,000 $155,567 $665,557

TOTAL $5,350,391 $731,431 $5,073,822

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the last amendment increased funding by more than 10%
of the total contract price limitation.

The purpose of this request is to have the vendor continue serving as the Peer Recovery
Support Services Facilitating Organization (PRSS FO). The vendor supports the ongoing development
of RCCs. ^

This amendment will support maintenance and expansion of recovery support services for
people with substance use disorder at twelve (12) RCCs throughout the state. The funds will enable
centers to provide a minimum of 26,000 RCC-generated services to individuals in recovery by
expandirig centerrbased programming.

The original agreement included language in Exhibit C-1 that allows the Department to renew
the contract for up to four (4) 'years, subject to the continued availability of funding, satisfactory
performance of'service, parties' written authorizations and approval from the Governor and Executive
Council. The Department exercised two (2) of the four (4) years of renewal available through
Amendment #1. The Departrhent is in agreement with renewing services for four (4) months of the
remaining two (2) years available.

Upon Governor and Executive Council approval of this request, the Department will have one
(1) year and eight (8) months.of renewal option available for this contract contingent upon availability of
funding, satisfactory performance of service, parties' virritten authorizations and approval from the
Governor and Executive Council.

The Contractor will continue to support thb" development and expansion pf critical referral
partnerships and relationships between substance use disorder service providers, including treatment
agencies, corrections and drug courts, and homeless serving organizations. Funds in this agreement
will be u^d to assess -and enhance the level of accreditation readiness of each of the RCCs. The
Contractor will continue providing program management and oversight. Additionally, the Contractor will
implement a quality improvement process in collatwration with the Department and other PRSS
organizations -and implement culturally appropriate processes and outcome data collection and
analysis.

The following performance measures/objectives will be used to measure the effectiveness of
the agreement;

•  Operational status of Recovery Community Centers:

•  Each RCC meets CAPRSS standards;
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•  Engaging individuals with "lived experience" in .completing requirements to provide Peer
Recovery Support Services, including completing the "Recovery Coach" training and becoming
a Certified Recovery Support Worker (CRSW) under the Board of Licensing for Alcohol and
Other Drug Use Professionals;

•  Having the mechanisms and protocols in place to collect client information, including process
and outcome data; and

•  Providing services and supports to a minimum of 26.000 individuals in recovery.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Department's overall
strategy to address the disease of addiction to alcohol and drugs may be negatively Impacted, with
fewer individuals gaining and maintaining recovery. Without access to a community-based PRSS.
many of them may require additional intensive treatment services. Others may continue in their active
addiction, leading to negative medical, legal and child welfare consequences for those persons, their
families and society, incurring much higher costs to the Department and state.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 36.07% Federal Funds from United States Department of Health and Human
Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. CFDA #93.959 FAIN TI010035
and 40.33% Other Funds from the Governor's Commission Funds and 23.6C% General Funds.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

submitted,ctfully

Jem:ey A. Meyers
Conimissioner

Tht Deparlmtnl of Health and Human Services "Mission is to join communities and foniilies
in providing opportunities for citiient to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #4 to the PRSS Facilitating Organization Services Contract

This 4*^ Amendment to the PRSS Facilitating Organization Services contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #4") is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Hartxir Homes. Inc., (hereinafter
referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit with a place of business at 45 High Street. Nashua, NH.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreerhent (the "Contracf') approved by the Govemor and Executive Council
oh June 1. 2016 (Item #13). and as amended on June 7. 2017 (Item #20). Juty 11, 2018 (Item #15). and
September 20. 2018 (Item #22), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1. the State may
modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of the contract upon written agreement of the parties
arid approval from the Govemor and Executive Council; and '

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and
WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #4 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the forgoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties'hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

October 31. 2019.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$6,073,822.

3. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.9. Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White, Director.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.10. State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

5. Delete Exhibit A. Amendment #3 Scope of Services in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A
Amendment #4. Scope of Services.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, to add Section 3.1. to read:
3.1 Payment for expenses shall be on a cost reimbursement basis only for actual

expenditures in accordance with the approved line item budgets shown in Exhibits B-
5 Amendment #4.

7. Add Exhibit B-5 Amendment #4.

Harbor Homes. Inc. Amendment #4
16-DHHS-BDAS.GCF.RFA-02 Page 1 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
PRSS Facilitating Organization Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Hearth and Human Services

Date

1
Name: Katja Fox
Title: Director

Hart>or Homes. Inc.

iMi
Dale Name:

Title:

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of Jfu. County of on J 7m. . before the
undersigned offii personally appeared the perk)n identified directly'above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name Is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document In the
capacity Indicated above.

J
Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

.-CAS^-GxyaPiNmoQ
Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires:

KAREN RIDDEL
NoHfV Public-New Hempthifb

My Cofnmi»5iOP E*pl'®*
Ci>ntftmbef06.2Q23

Harbor Homes. Inc.
ie-DHHS-eDAS-GCF-RFA-02

Amendment UA

Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
PRSS Facilitating Organization Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date Name:
Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: • (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Harbor Homes. Inc. Amendment UA
16-DHHS-BDAS-GCF.RFA-02 Page 3 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health ar>d Human Services
PRSS Facilitating Organization Services

Exhibit A Amendment #4

"""t Scope of services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to
ensure meaningful access to their programs and/or services w/ithin ten (10)
days of the contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an
impact on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to
modify Service prionties and expenditure requirements under this
Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this contract, any reference to days shall mean
consecutive calendar days, unless otherwise denoted as business days.

1.4. For the purposes of this contract, any reference to business days shall mean
Monday through Friday, excluding State Employee holidays.

1.5. The Contractor shall conduct an assessment of Recovery Community
Centers (RCCs) to determine the level of readiness for each RCC to become
accredited according to the standards set forth by the Council on
Accreditation of Peer Recovery Support Services (CAPRSS).

1.6. The Contractor shall collaborate with the CAPRSS to provide each RCC with
assistance to meet accreditation standards set forth by the CAPRSS.

1.7. The Contractor shall collaborate with other Peer Recovery Support Services
(PRSS) technical assistance assets to assess the capacity of each RCC
relative to the core and optional standards defined by the Council of
Accreditation of Peer Recovery Support Services (CAPRSS).

1.8. The Contractor shall work with the Department and RCCs to determine
culturally appropriate process and outcome data collection and analysis.

1.9. The Contractor shall provide program management and oversight as well as
Implement a quality improvement process.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall complete an accreditation readiness scan of all known
Recovery Community Centers (RCCs), statewide. The Contractor shall:

2.1.1. Determine each RCCs ability to achieve Council of Accreditation
of Peer Recovery Support Services (CAPRSS) accreditation.

2.1.2. Determine each RCCs ability to open a Recovery Center.

2 1 3 Determine each RCCs capacity to provide Peer Recovery

HartKX Homes. Inc. £*Nblt A Amendment #4 Connaclof Inilials: V--C^
19-DHHS-eOAS-GCF-RFA.02 Pago 1 of 10 Oaie;i/^(//5



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
PRSS Facilitating Organization Services

Exhibit A Amendment #4

Support services (KKbb).

2.1 A. Determine each RCCs commitment to becoming a Medicaid
provider, upon approval from the Center for Medicaid and
Medicare Services (CMS) of the establishment of a 'Recovery
Community Center' provider type under the New Hampshire
Medicaid program.

2.1.5. Provide a written determination of RCC readiness to the
Department within 5 business days of completing the final RCC
readiness scan.

2.2. The Contractor shall, enter into an agreement with a minimum of twelve (12)
RCC's by June 30. 2020, in at least six (6) different Public Health Regions
as approved by the Department, in order to increase and expand capacity
for PRSS within each of the selected twelve (12) RCCs. The Contractor
shall:

2.2.1. Ensure that priority is given to Public Health Regions that do not
have an RCC Provide a copy of each executed RCC agreement
to the Department within five (5) days of agreement execution.

2.3. The Contractor shall assess each RCC for accreditation readiness in
accordance with the standards set forth by the CAPRSS. The Contractor
shall:

,  2.3.1. Complete a written assessment of each RCC that indicates the
RCC's capacity to provide PRSiS services and current operational
standards.

2.3.2. Develop a written plan with each RCC that includes, but is not
limited to;

2.3.2.1. Timeframes to meeting CAPRSS accreditation
standards.

2.3.2.2. Goals that must be attained by each RCC in order to
meet CAPRSS accreditation standards.

2.3.2.3. Technical assistance needed for each RCC in order
to meet CAPRSS goals, with time frames.

2.3.3. Ensure training and technical assistance is provided to each
RCC. as needed.

2.4. The Contractor shall provide assistance to each RCC to ensure that they
meet accreditation standards set forth by CAPRSS. The Contractor shall

Hartor Homes, inc. ExhiWI A Amendment M Contractor initials;.

16-DHHS-BOA$-GCF-RFA-02 ' Page 2 of 10 Oato: CMUS



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
PRSS Facilitating Organization Services

Exhibit A Amendment #4

ensure assistance inclucJes, Dut is not limited to:

2.4.1. Technical assistance, as needed.

2.4.2. Organizational coaching.

2.4.3. Capacity development consultation.

2.4.4. Administrative support functions, as needed.

2.5. The Contractor shall collaborate w/ith the Center for Excellence to develop
and provide training as well as technical assistance to RCCs in order to:

2.5.1. Provide technical assistance to RCCs to enroll in Medicaid upon
the establishment of a "Peer Recovery Program" provider type by
the New Hampshire Medicaid Program based on Federal Center
for Medicaid and Medicare Services (CMS) and other Federal
and State requirements, Nwhich include:

2.5.1.1. 42 CFR, Subpart B

2.5.1.2. 42 CFR, Subpart E

2.5.1.3. 45 CFR, 164.512(d)

2.5.2. Ensure personnel providing Peer Recovery Coaching in Section
2.5.3 below in RCCs are Certified Recovery Support Workers
(CRSW) and meet the CAPRSS recovery coaching standards.

2.5.3. Assist RCCs to expand capacity to include Peer Recovery
Coaching and Telephone Recovery Support Services.

2.5.4. Assist RCCs with expanding capacity to include back office
support functions.

2.5.5. Ensure personnel providing therapeutic services and center-
based programming services in Section 2.5.6 below are certified
and/or trained in the sen/ices being provided.

2.5.6. Assist RCCs to expand capacity to provide therapeutic services
and center-based programming services and events that support
recovery and generate social connections, peer supports and
peer mentoring such as but not limited to:

2.5.6.1. Therapeutic yoga services.

2.5.6.2. Art programs and

2.5.6.3. Music programs run by peers.

2.5.7. Assist RCCs in establishing Recovery Centers and developing a
plan to.sustain them.

2.5.7.1. Submit the sustainability plans for each RCC to ̂ e

HartKX Homes. Inc. EKhibll A Amenctmeni M . Conwctof InlUals: |
15-0HHS-B0AS-GCF-RFA-02 PaveScrflO Date:



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
PRSS Facilitating Organization Services

Exhibit A Amendment 04

ueparimenl approval within 180 days trom ine

effective date of this amendment that may Inciude
agreements with coDaborating partners including but
not limited to:

2.5.7.1.1. Substance Use Disorder Treatment

2.5.7.1.2. CriminalJustlce and law enforcement

2.5.7.1.3. Homeless services

2.5.7.1.4. Safe Station partner entities

2.6. The Contractor shall utilize logistical support provided by the Center for
Excellence to facilitate a Community of Practice that allows RCC
administrators and leaders to establish and strengthen collegiality,
cooperation, collaboration and informal mentoring among RCCs. The
Contractor shall:

2.6.1. Organize regular on-going RCC regional meetings with RCC
administrators and leaders.

2.6.2. Ensure meetings are widely advertised to all RCCs, statewide.

2.6.3. Ensure that RCC engages in its local Regional Public Health
Network (RPHN) to participate in continuum of care development
work.

2.6.4. Ensure that RCC collaborates on projects related to delivery of
substance use disorder treatment and recovery support services
with its local Integrated Delivery Network

2.7. The Contractor shall assess the ability of each RCC to open and sustain a
Recovery Center. The Contractor shall:

2.7.1. Complete a vvritten assessment of each RCC that indicates each
RCCs readiness to open and sustain a Recovery Center, that
includes, but is not limited to:

2.7.1.1. The current organizational structure of the RCCs
Recovery Center or the RCCs readiness to open a
Recovery Center, as appropriate.

2.7.1.2. The number of people that can be served by the
RCCs Recovery Center.

2.7.1.3. The RCCs ability to provide services specific to
addressing local community needs including but not
limited to:

2.7.1.3.1. Including interim support services to

Hartiof Homes. Ire. EjtNW A Amendment tu Contractor Intofs:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
PRSS Facilitating Organization Services

Exhibit A Amendment #4

■  keep an individual engaged while an
individual Is on a treatment wait-lists

2.7.1.3.2. Community and volunteer
trainings/workshops such as but not
limited to vocational training and financial
planning.

2.7.1.3.3. Assisting Individuals to access
Transportation

2.7.1.3.4. Employment assistance

2.7.1.3.5. Connections to housing and other basic
needs related to an Individual's stability
and health and wellbeing to participate in
services

2.7.1.4. The RCCs financial viability to support a Recovery
Center.

2.7.2. Work with each RCC to develop a written plan to open a
Recovery Center.

2.7.3. Assist RCCs to secure funding from other public and private
sources to ensure ongoing sustainability of services.

2.8. The Contractor shall assess current established RCCs for adequate staffing
or the need for additional staffing to increase and expand RCC services and
assist the RCC with obtaining staff.

2.9. The Contractor shall provide recovery-oriented training and expertise to the
RCCs to support the statewide Recovery Friendly Workplace Initiative as
defined by the State of New Hampshire at:
httDs://wvyw.recovervfriend lvworkDlace.com

2.10. The Contractor shall demonstrate collaboration with community partners to
support referrals and other activities for an individual to access services that
meet all their recovery needs, including but not limited to:

2.10.1. Substance Use Disorder TreaUnent Centers

2.10.2. Recovery-housing programs

2.10.3. Medication Assisted Treatment programs.

^2.11. The Contractor shall assist RCCs with performing back office functions that

Hafbor Homes. Inc. 6*NWl A Amendmeni «4 Cortroctof InlUals;,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
PRSS Facilitating Organization Services

Exhibit A Amendment #4

may include, but are not limited to:

2.11.1. Human resource functions including but not limited to:

2.11.1.1. Aiding in developing staff recruitment and retention
plans

2.11.1.2. Aiding in development of volunteer engagement and
retention plans

2.11.2. Financial functions such as accounting, bookkeeping and payroll.

2.11.3. Billing functions;

2.12. The Contractor shall ensure billing services are available to each RCC until
such time RCCs can perform billing functions on their own. Billing functions
shall include, but are not limited to:

2.12.1. Submitting PRSS client services covered by Medicaid to the
appropriate.managed care organization (MOO).

2.12.2. Disbursing payments received from MCOs to the appropriate^
RCC.

2.12.3. Accepting RCC Invoices for operational costs.

2.12.4. Paying RCCs for operational costs on a cost reimbursement
basis.

2.12.5. Submitting RCC operational cost invoices to the Department for
reimbursement.

2.13. The Contractor shall collaborate with the NH Center for Excellence to:

2.13.1. Identify data evaluation criteria,

2.13.2. Implement an evaluation process in each RCC..

2.14. The Contractor shall ensure technical assistance is available to each RCC

in order to collect, analyze and utilize data, for the evaluation process in
Section 2.10.2., which shall include but is not limited to:

2.14.1. Demographics, which include but are not limited to:

2.14.1.1. Gender

2.14.1.2. Age

2.14.1.3. Ethnicity

2.14.1.4. Primary drug of choice

2.14.2. SAMHSA National Outcome Measures

fhttp://wwwda$i$.samhsa.aov/dasis2/noms/noms attchi .odf).

.fcHartor Homes, Inc. EiMbtt A AmenOmeni #4 Convactof initials:.

16-DHMS-B0AS-CCF-RFA-02 Page 6 o( 10 Date:, iMjl



New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
PRSS Facilitating Organization Services

Exhibit A Amendment #4

v^rhicfi inciuoe:

2.14.2.1. Abstinence

2.14.2.2. Crime and CriminalJustice

2.14.2.3. Employment/Education

2.14.2.4. Stability in Housing

2.14.2.5. Social Connectedness

2.14.3. Referral Source

2.14.4. Client Financial Information

2.14.5. Healthcare Coverage Information

2.14.6. Substance Use Disorder treatment history

2.14.7. Substance Use Disorder or Co-occurring Disorder recovery
needs

2.14.8. Participation in Community Services

2.14.9. Recovery capital

2.15. The Contractor will work with the Department to identify the next cohort of
RCCs to prepare them for CAPRSS accreditation.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall provide a work plan for each stale fiscal year by July 15
of that year. This work plan shall be subject to review and approval by the
Department.

3.2. Report on readihess for all considered RCC. that includes but is not limited
to:

3.2.1. Progress on the annual work plan.

3.2.2. Accreditation readiness.

3.2.3. Recovery center capacity

3.2.4. Capacity to provider PRSS

3.2.5. Commitment to enrolling in Medicaid, upon approval from the
Center for Medicaid and Medicare Services (CMS) of the
establishment of a 'Recovery Community Center' provider type
under the New Hampshire Medicaid program.

3.3. The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports that include but are not limited

Hartwf Homes. Jnc. ExNWt A Amendment tu Contractoe IntUals:.

16.0HHS-BDAS-GCF-RFA-02 Paoo7of10 Daie:.4/^/(l.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
PRSS Facilitating Organization Services

Exhibit A Amendment U4

^  fa

3.3.1. Progress on the annual work plan.

3.3.2. Progress on each RCC's work plan connponents.

3.3.3. Information on RCC trainings conducted, including but not limited
to. type of training provided and number of attendees.

3.3.4. Infonnalion regarding RCC meetings that occurred, as described
in Section 2.6, including but not limited to, venue, number of
attendees and methods used to advertise meetings.

3.3.5. PRSS provided by each RCC, including number of individuals
served

3.3.6. Back office support provided, as described in Section 2.8.

3.4. The Contractor shall submit a final report to the Department that includes,
but is not limited to:

3.4.1. Infomnation on each of the twelve (12) RCCs including the
number of individuals served during the three (3) months prior to
entering into agreements with the Contractor in comparison to
the number of individuals served by the RCC from July 1" to June
30"^ of each subsequent year.

3.4.2. How many and what type of trainings were provided over the term
of the contract.

3.4.3. The number of RCCs that are accredited by the CAPRSS and
those that meet CAPRSS standards.

3.4.4. The number and location of each Recovery Center that opened
as a result of contracted services.

3.4.5. The type of PRSS services delivered by each RCC, including the
number of Individuals served by each.

■ 3.4.6. Information regarding clients served, which shall include but not
be limited to:

3.4.6.1. Analysis of client data referenced in 2.11 by individual
RCC.

3.4.6.2. Analysis of aggregated client data

3.4.7. Back Office functions performed for each RCCs, which may
include but is not limited to:

3.4.7.1. Human Resources.

3.4.7.2. Financial.

3.4.7.3. Client bililng to other funding sources not in this

H®rtxx Ho<n«9. Inc. Exhibit A Amendmenl Cootractof Initials:

16-DHHS-BDAS-GCF-RFA-02 Pago 8 of tO Date:. im



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
PRSS Facilitating Organization Services t

Exhibit A Amendment #4

contract.

3.4.8. All contractor work that has started and any progress toward
CAPRSS accreditation for the next cohort of RCCs Identified to
the Department.

Deliverables

4.1. The Contractor shall provide copies of the executed agreements described
in Section 2.2, to the Department within five (5) business days of fully
executing the documents. Each agreement and renewal are subject to BOAS
review and approval.

4.2. The Contractor shall complete an assessment, as described in Section 2.3.1,
for each of the RCCs, within ninety (90) days of the contract effective date.

4.2.1. Should additional RCCs be added to the Agreement, through
Amendment;

r

4.2.1.1. This deliverable requirement shall apply to the newly
' added, additional RCCs.

4.2.1.2. The assessment shall be completed within ninety (90)
days of Department approval, per Section 4.1.

4.2.1.3. The Contractor shall not be required to perform
assessments on RCCs which were completed as a
component of the original contract.

4.3. The Contractor shall provide a copy of each accreditation plan described in
Section 2.3.2., within one hundred-twenty (120) days of the contract effective
date.

4.3.1. Should additional RCCs.be added to the Agreement, through
Amendment:

1

4.3.1.1. This deliverable requirement shall apply to the newly
added, additional RCCs.

4.3.1.2. The accreditation plan shall be provided within one
hundred-twenty (120) days of Department approval,
per Section 4.1.

4.3.1.3. The Contractor shall not be required to provide plans
for RCCs which were completed as a component of
the original contract.

4.4. The Contractor shall provide a written Recovery Center assessment, as
described in Section 2.7, for each RCC, within one hundred-eighty (180)
days of the contract effective date.

4.4.1. Should additional RCCs be added to the Agreement, through

fknillals: ' ̂Hdibor HofnM. Inc. Exhibit A Amendment »4 Contractor Initials:,
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Exhibit A Amendment #4

Amendment; ^ ~

4.4.1.1. This deliverable requirement shall apply to the newly
added, additional RCCs.

4.4.1.2. The assessment shall be provided within one
hundred-eighty (180) Department approval, per
Section 4.1.

4.4.1.3. The Contractor shall not be required to provide

assessments on RCCs which were completed as a
component of the original contract.

4.5. The Contractor shall provide the billing process and payment timeframes for
providing the services in Section 2.9, within one hundred-twenty (120) days
of the contract effective date and shall provide information on any changes
made to the process and/or timeframes within thirty (30) days of making
those changes.

4.6. The Contractor shall have provided a minimum of 26,000 RCO-generated
services for ilie period of July through October 2019, shall be provided to
community members including, but not limited to;

4.6.1. Individual recovery coaching

4.6.2. Telephone recovery support services

4.6.3. Therapeutic services

4.6.4. Center-based programming

4.6.5. Crisis management and systems navigation, and

4.6.6. Other trainings and supports.

ELHarbor Homes. Inc. Exhibii A Amendment iM Conbactor Iniiials;,
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Exhibit B-S. Amondmenl UA

Now Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services

Blddtr/Program Nsm*: Harbor Homat, Inc.

Budgat Raquaat for PRSS Paciiitoting Organiaation Sarvicaa

Budgat Partod: SPY 2020 (July 1, 2010 • Octobar 31.2019)

Tout Prognm Coet

LIna ttam

DIract

inerwnantal

Indlract

PIxad

Total

1. Total Salarv/Waoes %  101.396.04 S %  101,39>

2. Emolovoe Beneflia $  19,427.44 $ S  19.42

3. (3onsultant8 $  1.875.45 $ $  1.87:

4. Eouloment; s s S

Rental s % s

Reoair and Mainienarice $ % $

Purchase/Oepreciabon S  1.611.66 $ $  1.81

5. Supoliea: s $ $

EducaUonaf s 5 S

i>ab $ S $

Pharmacy % 5 s

Medical s $ s

Office 5  1.970.81 S J  1.97

6. Travel S  4.132.35 S S  4.13

7. Occupancy 5  2.660.66 $ $' 2.86

d. CurrentExpenses % S  - $

Telephone S  1.004.48 $ S  1.00

Postaae $  76.29 $ i  7

SubacnoUons $ $

Audit and Leqal s s $

trxsursnce $  1.335.07 % i  1.33

.Board Exportsos s % $

9. Software $ J s

10. MarfcelirKi/Communlcaiibns $ $ $

11." Staff Education and Tralnind $  11,125.55 s %  11.12

12. Subcontracts/Aqreemenis %  568.414.60 s s  566.41

13. Otherfspecificdctails mandaiory): $ $ S

$ s I

s s $

$ s $

TOTAL $  713.431.00 I I  713.43

Indlract Aa A Parcant of DIract 0*

Harbor Homos. Inc. E)d^btt B-S. Amendmont 04
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STATE OF NEW HAlVfPSRIR£

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES

105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271-^738 l-80^«)4^)909

Ptx:603-27I-6105 TOD Aetess: 1-800.735-2964

August 24. 2018

p9-

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Councfl

Stale House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health aryJ Human Services. Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services,
to enter into a retroactive and sole source amendnTent to an agreement with Harbor Homes. Inc.
(Vendor # 155358-8001). 77 Northeastern Boulevard. Nashua, NH 03080, to Increase the number of
Recovery Community Centers (RCCs) and ensure they meet Ihe standards r^uired of a Recovery
Community Center, to Increase the price limitation by $500,000 from $4,860,391 to ar\d amount not to
exceed $5,360,391. effective rotroactivo to July 1, 2018. upon Governor and Executive Council
approval with no change to the completion date of June 30. 2019. This agreement was originally
approved by Governor and Council on June 1. 2016. (Hem #13) and amended on June 7. 2017 (Hem
#20) and on July 11. 2018 (Item # 15). 21.29% General Funds, 41.34% Other Funds and 37.37%
Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in the following accounts in State Fiscal Years, 2018
and 2019 with the ability to ad;usl encumbrances between State Fiscal Years thresh the Budget Office
without further approval from the Governor and Executive Coundl. if needed and justified.

05-95-491510-29890000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT
OF. HHS: PIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, SVCS.
GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS

SFY Class/Account Class Title Activity/Job
Number

Code

Current

Modified

Budget

IrTcreased/

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2016 102-500734

Contracts for

-Social Svc 49158501 $2,820 0 $2,820

2017 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 49158501 ■  $813,180 $0 $813,180

Sublo/a/ $816,000 SO S816.000
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05-95^91510-29900000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT
OF. HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, SVCS,

SFY Class/

Account

Class Title Activity/Job
Number Code

Current

ModiFied

Budget

Increased/

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2016 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 49156501 $3,180 $0 $3,180

2017 102-500734

Contracts for
Social Svc 49156501 $796,820 $0 $7^.820

Subtotal $800,000 SO $800,000

05-95-920510-330ZOOOV ntALin mpiu ou^imu otrveis-i.^, 7-;-^

OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SVCS,
GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS

SFY Class/

Account '

Class Title Activity/Job
Number

Code

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased/

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 92056503 $700,000 $0 $700,000

2019 102-500734

Contracts for

Scwal Svc 92058503 $700,000 $0 $700,000

SuOfofa/ $1,400,000 $0 Jf.400.000

05-95-9'

DEPT (

SVCS.C

20510^3940000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMA
)F, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND Al
LINICAL SERVICES

N SVCS

.COHOL

SFY Class/

/Account

Class Title Activjty/Job
Numter

Code

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased/

(Decreased)
/Vnount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018 102-500734

Conlracts for

Social Svc 92056501 $904,098 $0 $904,098

2019 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 92057501 $800,000 $0 $800,000

2019 102-500734

Contracts for

Soda! Svc 92056505 $140,293 $0 $140,293

Subtotal $1,844,391 $0 $f.844.39J

05-95-47-47(»10-79480000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUM/
DEPT OF, HHS; MEDIC/UD & BUSINESS POLICY OFFICE. OFFICE OF MEDIC^
BUSINESS POUCY MEDICAID CARE MANAGEMENT

VN SVCS

UD AND

SFY Class/

Account

Class Title Activity/Job
Number

Code

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased/

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2019 .  102-500731

Contracts for

Soda) Svc 47000254 $0 $500,000 $500,000

\ TOTAL $4,060,391 $500,000 $5,360,391
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EXPLANATION .

This request is retroactJvo because the Department Is committed to ensuring continued access
to peer recovery support services through recovery co^unity centers. The time necessary to review
contract scope changes exceeded the deadline to gel these contracts on the agenda for the July
Governor and Council meetings although the work and costs associated writh implementation at the
centers remained ongoing during that time. This ensured that there were no delays In critical recovery
support services for individuals statewide.

This request is sole source because a new scope of work is being added that was not included
In the orginal Request for Proposals. Hartxx Homes. Inc. is currently under contract to provide services
as the Peer Recovery Support Services Facilitating Organization (PRSS FQ) '.to support • the
development of Recovery Community Centers (RCCs). If approved, this amendment wfll add fundi^
for Harbor Homes to support maintenance and expansion of recovery support services for people with
substance use disorder at eleven (11) RCCs throughout the slate. These funds will enable these
centers to provide a minimum of 70,000 RCC-generated services to individuals in recovery Ihroi^h
ex^ndtng center-based programming and developing cntical referral partnerships and relationships
with other substance use disorder service providers, Including treatment agencies, correctioris and drug
coufts,^artd homeless serving organizallons.

Funds in this agreement will be used to assess and enhance the level of acc^itation readiness
of. each of the RCCs arxJ to provide program management and oversight. Additionally, the vendor will
implement a quality improvement process in collaboration .with the Department and other PRSS
organizations and implement culturally appropriate processes and outcome data colteclion and
analysis.

The following performance measures/objectives will be used to measure the effectiveness of the
agreement; '

• Operating Recovery Community Organizations;
•  Each ROC meets CAPRSS accredltatibn standards;
•  Engaging individuals with 'lived experience' In completing requirements to provide Peer

Recovery Support Services, including completing the 'Recovery Coach* training and
becoming a Certified Recovery Support Worker (CRSW) under the Board of Licensing
for Alcohol and Other Drug Use Professiorwls;

•  Having the mechanisms and protocols in place to collect client Information; Including
process and outcome data;

•  • Providing Peer Recovery Support Services
Should the Governor' and Executive Council not authorize this Request, the Department's

overall strategy to address the disease of addiction to alcohol and drugs may be negatively Impacted,
with fewer individuals gaining and maintaining recovery. VVithout access to a community-bas^ PRSS.
many of them may require addilional intensive treatment services. Others may continue in their active
addiction, leading to negative medical, legal and child v^lfare consequences for:|hose persons, their
families and society. Incurring much higher costs to the Department and state.

Area served: Statewide. • f

Source of Funds: 37.37% Federal Funds from United States Department of Health and Human
Services. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Adminislration. CFDA #93.959 FAIN TI010035
and 41.34% Other Funds from the Governor's Commission Funds and 2.1.29% General Funds.
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In the event that the Federal Funds become oo longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Katia S. Pox
Oirecl^r

Approved by:
J^ey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Tttf Ckfiorvntnt 0/ HtoJlh evi Human Str^eta' Hiuion it to )oin eomm^Uia o/id famiLia
in pmidinf opportunilita for cUittni looehitvt fttalth ond tndtptndenot.



New Hampshire Oepartment of Health and Human Services
PRSSFacUltatIng Organization Sarvlces

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment 193 to the

PRSS Facilitating Organtzatlori Services Contract

This 3^ Amendment to the PRSS Fadlilating Organization ̂ rvices contract (herelnaflef referred to as
'Amertdment UT) dated this 14* day of August, 2018. Is by and between the Stale of New Hampshire.
Department of Health and Human ̂ rvices (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Oepartment") end
Hart>of Homes. Inc.. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor^, a corporation with a place of business
8\ 45 High Street Nashua. NH.

WHEREAS, pursuarft to an agreement (the "ContrdcT) approved by the Governor end Executive Councfl
on June 1, 2016 (Item #13). as af7>ended on June 7. 2017 (Item #20) arKi amended on Juty 11. 2018
(Hem #15) the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditiorts
specified in the Contract as amended and In consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make char>ges to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph I6'the State may modify the scope
of work and the payment schedule of the contract upon written agreement of the parlies and approval
from the Governor and Executive Council; arvf

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation, and modify the scope of senrices to
support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE. In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto egree to emend as foQows:*

1. Form P-37. General Provision, Block 1.6, Account Number, to add:

05-095-047^70010-79480000-101-500729

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read: J5.360.391

3. Delete Exhibit A. Amendment #2 in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A. Amendment #3.

4. Delete Exhibit B-4. Amendment #2 in Its entirety and replace with Exhibit B-4. Amendment #3.

Harm Homes, me. Amcndmen n



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
PRSS FodUtatJng OrgenlzBtlon Services

Thij emendment shail be effective upon the date of Go«mof
IN VflTNESS WHEREOF, thc.parties have set thetf hands es of the date wntten below.

Stale of New Hampshire
Department of Hearth and Human Services

Date

% )
Nome; Kat}o S. Fox
Tltla: Director

Harbor Homes, inc

Tiue: CB^

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature.

t\ U j. L on i/^xlu</■ . before the undersignedofftcer.
ma.^e'S.ed documen, in me capadiy ind'^ted aix>ve. •

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Name and-TSJ© 'U Meiary or Justice of the Peace
•.> • -fy. •. f

.r ^ Tity ' y^fiHUMV Miwfihi
I X:-'- i Juttloo Of the Paeoo • New KsmpMn

V'.- -o/ MyC6iTanbatonExpirwHownber<,2020
.  ■ <\/

"A.m..

...^ in- Amenomeftn
leOHHS-BOAS^-fiPA^ Page 2 Cf 3



Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
PRSS FactUtsting OrganlzaUon Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved ps.to form, substance, and execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

2
Date uName:

Tide:

t hereby certify that the foregoing Amendmeril was cpprovod by the Govymor and Executive Cooricll of the State
of New Hampshiro aftho Meeting on; (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Tide:

Hvtior Homes.

teOKHSOOAS^-RF

Amendments

Paoe3of3



Now Hampshiro Dopartmont of Health and Human Sorvlcw
PRSS Facilitating OrBanlatlon Services •

Eahlblt A Amendment 93

Scope of Services.

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1 1 The Gontractor will submit a detailed description of the language
"  assistance services they will provide to persons with limited Engltsh

proficiency to ensure.meaningful access to their programs and/or services
within ten (10) days of the contract effective date.

1 2 The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative acUpn by the
New Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have
an impacl on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the nght
to modify Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this
Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1 3. For the purposes of this contract, any reference to days shall mean
consecutive calendar days, unless otherwise denoted as business days.

1 4. For the purposes of this contract, any reference to business days shall
mean Monday through Friday, excluding State Employee holidays.

1.5. The Contractor shall conduct an assessment of Recovery Community
Centers (ftCCs) to determine the level of readiness for each RCC to
become accredited according to the standards set forth by the Council on
Accreditation of Peer Recovery Support Services (CAPRSS).

1.6. The Contractor shall collaborate with the CAPRSS to provide each RCC
with assistance to meet accreditation standards sfet forth by the CAPRSS.

1.7. The Contractor shall collaborate with other Peer Recovery Support
Services (PRSS) technical assistance assets to assess the capacity of
each RCC relative to the core and optional standards defined by the
Council of Accredilation of Peer Recovery Support Services (CAPRSS).

1.8. The Contractor shall worlt with the Department and RCCs to determine
culturally appropriate process and outcome data collection and analysis.

' 1.9. The Contractor shall provide program management and oversight as well
as Implement a quality Improvement process.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. the Contractor shall complete an accreditation readiness scan of all known
Recovery Community Centers (RCCs). statewide. The Contractor shall.
2.1.1.

2.1.2.

2.1.3.

hvM Homes, mc.

iM>KKseoAS-ccr-RfA^

Determine each RCCs abilily to achieve Council of
Accreditation of Peer Recovery Support Services (CAPRSS)
accreditation.

Determine each RCCs ability to open a Recovery Center.

Determine each RCCs capacity to provide Peer Recovery
Support Services (PRSS).

Ptge 1 or 10

Cortrtcior IrUate:

OstK
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Exhibit AAmindment 03

2.1.4. Determine each RCC's commitment to becoming a Medicaid
provider, upon approval from the Center for Miedicaid and
Medicare Services (CMS> of the establishment of a "Recovery
Community Center* provider type under the New Hampshire
Medicaid program.

2.1.5. Provide a written determination of RCC readiness to the
Department within 5 business days of completing the final RCC
readiness scan.

I.

2.2.- The Contractor shall enter into an agreement with a minimum of eleven
(11) RCC's by June 30. 2019. in at least five (5) different Public Health
Regions as approved by the Department, in order to increase and expand
capacity for PRSS within each of the selected eleven (11) RC.Cs. The
Contractor shall:

2.2.1. Ensure that priority Is given to Public Health Regions that do not
have an RCC Provide a copy of each executed RCC agreement
to the Department within-five (5) days of agreement execution.

2.3. The Contractor shall collaborate with .PRSS technical assistance assets,,
including, but not limited to. CAPRSS. to assess each RCC. for
accreditation readiness in accordance with the standards set forth by the
CAPRSS. The Contractor shall:

2.3.1. • Complete a written assessment of each RCC that indicates the
RCC's capacity to provide PRSS services" and ̂ currerit
operational standards.

2.3.2. Develop a written plan with each RCC that includes, but Is not
limited to: • .

2.3.2.1. Timeframes to meeting CAPRSS accreditation
standards.

2.3.2.2. Goals lhatm'ust be attained by each RCC in'order to
meet CAPRSS accredilab'on standards.

2.3.2.3. Technical assistance needed for each RCC in order
to meel CAPRSS goals, time frame and technical
assistance accreditation requirements.

2.3.3. Ensure training and technical assistance is provided to each
RCC. as needed.

2.4. The .Contractor shall collaborate with the CAPRSS to provide assistance to
each RCC to ensure thal^they meet accreditation standards set forth by
CAPRSS. The Contractor shall ensure assistance includes, but is not
llmiled to: .

2.4.1. Personnel with the expertise necessary to deliver high quality

■  "^'"'"9- ' - "
HotwHome#.b*. EtfiWtAA/nendmonl»3 CortraflgrWtto: y yj

lW)MHSaOASOCF-RFA-02
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Exhibit A Amendment 03

'2.5.

2.4.2. Technical assistance, as needed.

2.4.3. Organizational coaching.

2.4.4. Capacity development consultation.

2.4.5. Administrative support functions, as needed.

The Contractor shall collaborate with the Center for Excellence to develop
arwJ provide'training as well as technical assistance to RCCs In order to:

2.5.1. Assist RCCs to attain accreditation.

2.5.2. Provide technical-assistance to RCCs to enroll in Medicaid upon
the establishment of a 'Peer Recovery Program' provider type

. by the,New Hampshire Medicaid Program based on Federal
Center for Medicaid and.Medicare Services (CMS) and other
Federal and "Stale requirements, which include:

2.5.2.1. 42CFR. Suboart 8 (httD://www.ecfr.Qov/cqi-
bin/relrieveECFR?QD=&SID=2a147Q22bd0€989f2eff0
2f0ba'l01830&mc=true&n=pt42.4.455&r=PART&tv=H

TMLffSD42.4.455.b ).

2:5.2.2. 42 CFR Suboarl E ( httD://www.ecfr.QOv/cqh
bin/relrieveECFR7QP=&SlD=2a147Q22bd0e989f2eff0

2f0ba40l83Q&mc=tnje&n=SD42.4.455.eSr=SUBPAR

T&lv=HTML V

2.5.2.3. 45 CFR. 164 512fd1 f hno://www.ecfr.QOv/cQi-bin/te)(t- *
idx?SiD=O7d0a507d28ee03b2bO9dfd7a2be33d2&mc

=true&node=se45.1.164 1512&rqn=div8).

Ensure personnel providing -PRSS in Section 2.5.4 below in
RCCs are Certined Recovery Support Workers (CRSW) and
meet the CAPRSS recovery coaching standards.

Assist RCCs to expand capacity to include Peer Recovery
Coaching and Telephone' Recovery. Support Services.

Assist RCCs with expanding capacity to include back office
support functions.

Ensure personnel providing therapeutic services, and center-
based programming senrices in Section 2.5.7 below are certified,
and/or trained in the services.being provided. '

Assist RCCs to expand capacity to provide therapeutic services
and center-based programming services and events that
support recovery and generate social conr^ections. peer
supports and peer mentoring such as but not limited to:

2.5.7.1. Therapeutic yoga services.

2.5.3.

2.5.4.

2.5.5.

2.5.6.

2.5.7.

Hontts. Inc.

1M>«SeOAS^-«FA^

CtniOtl A AmcnOmer4 #3

yd ̂0

Coitndor tnUtla

Oeu
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2.5.7.2. " Art programs and

2.5.7.3. Music programs run by peers.

2.5.8. Assist RCCs in establishing Recovery .Centers and developing a
plan to sustain them.

2.5.8.1. Submit the sustainability plans for each RCC to the
Department approval within 180 days from the
effective date of this amendment that may.lnclude
agreements with collaborating partners Including but
not limited to:

2.5.8.1.1. Substance Use Disorder Treatment
Incarceration and law enforcement

2.5.8.1.2. ■ Homeless services

2.5.8.1.3. Safe Station partner entities

2.6. The Contractor shall utilize logislica) support provided by the Center for
Excellence to facilitate a Com'muf>i^ of. Practice that allows RCC
administrators and leaders to establish and' strengthen collegiality,
cooperation, collaboration and Informal mentoring.among RCCs. The
Contractor shall:

2.6.1. Organize regular on-going RCC regional meetings with RCC
administrators and leaders.

2.6.2. Ensure meetings are widely advertised to all RCCs, statewide.

2.6.3. Ensure thai RCC engages in Its local Regional Public Health
NetvjrorV (RPHN) to participate in continuum of care
development work.

2.6.4. Ensure that RCC collaborates on projects related to delivery of
substance use disorder treatment and recovery support services
with its local Integrated Delivery Networlt

2.7. The Contractor shall assess the ability of each RCC to open and sustain a
Recovery Center. The Contractor shall:

2.7.1. Corhplete a wrilien assessment of each RCC that indicates
each RCCs readiness to open and sustain a Recovery Center,
that includes, but is not limited to:

2.7.1.1. The current organizational structure of the RCCs
Recovery Center or the RCCs readiness to open a
Recovery Center, as appropriate.

2.7.1.2. The number of people that can be served by the
RCCs Recovery Center.

Hwtiof Honw. mc. A/Unendmertf i3 Contraaor InTOib

1WXHS«)AS-Gcr-RFA« P»5#4cn0 ^
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2.7.1.3. The RCCs ability to provide services spedftc to
addressing locarcorhmunity needs including but not
limited to:

2.7.1.3.1. Including interim support services to
keep an. individual engaged while an
individual is on a treatment wait-lists

2.7.1.3.2. Community and volunteer
trainings/workshops such as Out not
limited to vocational training and

financial planning.

2.7.1.3.3. Assisting individualis to access
Transportation

2.7.1.3.4. Employment assistance

2.7.1.3.5. Connections to housing and other basic
needs related to an indlvidudrs stability
and health and wellbelng to participate
in services

2.7.1.4. The RCCs financial viability to support a Recovery
Center.

2.7.2. Work with each RCC to develop a written plan to open a
Recovery Center.

2.7.3. The Contractor shall produce a training services plan based on
each RCCs needs for the pepartment to review within 30 days
of contract execution. The training plan must:

2.7.3.1. Ensure training and technical assistance is available
to Recovery Center staff, which may include but is not
lin)lted to:

,2.7.3.1.1. Customer service training.

2.7.3.1.2. Peer Recovery Coaching Services.

2.7.3.1.3. Telephone Recovery Support Services.

2.7.4. Assist RCCs to secure funding from other public and private
sources to ensure ongoing susta.inability of sen/ices.

2.8. The Contractor shall assess current established RCCs for adequate
staffing or the need for additional staffing to increase and expand RCC
services and asslst-the RCC with obtaining staff.

2.9. The Contractor shall provide recovery-oriented training and expertise to the

Hartxy Home. tnc. i:d^iAAm«rxxnefXfS

ISOHHSeOASiGCr-RFM^ P»9eS(XiO

CaVTKtor inQiaix:
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RCCs to support the statewide Recovery Friendly Workplace initiative as
d.efined by the State of New Hampshire at
httDs://www.recove rvfriendlvworkDlace.com

2.10. The Contractor shall demonstrate collaboration with community partners to
support referrals and other activities for an Individual to access services
that meet all their recovery needs, Including but not limited to:

2.10.1. Substance Use Disorder Treatment Centers

2.10.2. Recovery-housing programs

2.10.3. Medication Assisted Treatment programs.

2.11. The Contractor shall assist RCCs with performing back office functions that
may include, but are not limited to:

2.11.1. Human resource functions Including but not limited to:

2.11.1.1. Aiding In developing staff recruitment and retention,
plans

2.11.1.2. Aiding in development of volunteer engagement and
releniion plans

.  2.11.2. Financial functions such as accounting, bookkeeping and
payroll.

2.11.3. Billing funclions.

2.12. The Contractor shall ensure billing services are available lb each RCC until
such time RCCs can perform billing functions on their own. Billing
functions shall include, but are not limited to:

2.12.1. Submiuing PRSS client services covered by Medicaid to the
appropriate managed care organization (MCO).

2.12.2. Disbursing payments received from MCOs to the appropriate
RCC.

2.12.3. Accepting RCC invoices for operational costs.

2.12.4. Paying RCCs for operational costs on a cost reimbursement
.  basis.

2.12.5. Submitting RCC operational cost invoices to the Department for
reimbursement.

2.13. The Contraclor shall collaborate with the NH Center for Excellence to:

2.13.1. Identify data evaluation criteria.

2.13.2. ImplemenI an evaluation process in each RCC.

2.14. The Contractor shall ensure technical assistance Is available to each RCC

HtftMT Homes. Inc. EtruC>ii AfrcndTwn n Contrador iniOeli;
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3.

in order to collect, analyze and utilize data, for (he evaluation process in
Action 2.10.2., which shall include but is not limited to;

2.14.1. Demographics, which include but are not limited to:

2.14.1.1. (Sender

2.14.1.2. Age

2.14.1.3. Ethnicity

2.14.1.4. Primary dojg Of choice

2.14.2. SAMHSA National Outcome Measures
(httD://wwwdasis.samhsa.Qov/dasis2/noms/noms attchl.pdfl.

which include:

2.14.2.1. Abstinence

2.14.2.2. Crime and Criminal Justice

2.14.2.3. Employmenl/Educalion

2.14.2.4. Stability in Housing

2.14.2.5. Social Connectedness

.2.14.3. Referral Source

2.14.4. Client Finaricial lnformalion

2.14.5. Healthcare Coverage Information

2.14.6. Substance Use Disorder treatment history

2.14.7. Substance Use Disorder or Co-occurring Disorder recovery
needs

2.14.8.. Participation in Community Services

2.14.9. Recovery capital

2.15. The Contractor will work with the Department to Identify the next cohort of
RCCs to prepare them for CAPRSS accreditation.

Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall provide a work plan for each state ftscal year by July
l" of that year. This work plan shall be subject to review and approval by
the Department.

3.2. Report on readiness fof all considered ROC, that includes but is not limited
to:

3.2.1.

3.2.2.

3.2.3.

Homes, krc.

t»oKK&eoAS:GcrrvA.02

Progress on the annual work plan.

Accreditation readiness.

Recovery center capacity

Etfnbil A AmerfSnem 13
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3.2.4. Capadty to provider PRSS

3.2.5. Commilment to enrolling in Medicaid, upon- approval from the
Center for Medicaid and Medicare Services (CMS) of the
eslabtishment of a 'Recovery Community Center*, provider type

' under the New Hampshire Medicaid program.

3.3.' The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports that Include but are not
limited to; • • , .

3.3.1. Progress on the annual work plan.

3.3.2. Progress on each RCC's work plan componerits.
" ■ I ^

3.3.3. Information on RCC trainings conducted, including but not
limited to. type of training provided and number of attendees'.

3.3.4. Information regarding RCC meetings that occurred, as
described In Section 2.6, including but not llrnited to. venue,
nurhber of atierxJees and methods used to advertise meetings.

3.3.5. PRSS provided by each RCC, Including-number of individuals
served

3.3.6. Back office support provided, as described in Section 2.8.

3.4. The Contractor shall submit a final report to the Department that mdudes.
but is not limited to.'

3.4.1. Information on each of the eleven (11) RCCs including the
number of indivlduats served during the three (3) months prior to
entering into agreements with the Contractor In comparison to
the nurhber of individuals served by the RCC from April 1** to
June 30"^ of each subsequent year.

3.4.2. How many and what type of trainings were provided .over the
term of the contract.

3.4.3. The numt)er of RCCs that are accredited by the CAPRSS.

3.4.4. . The number and location of each Recovery Center that opened
' as a result of contracted services.

3.4.5. The lype of PRSS services delivered by each RCC. including
the number of individuals served by each.

3.4.6. Information regarding clients served, which shall include but not
be limited to:

3.4.6.1. Analysis of ptientdata referenced In 2.11 by Individual
•' .RCC.

3.4.6.2. Analysis ol aggregated client data

3.4.7. Back Office funclions performed for each RCCs. which may

Htfbor Homes. Inc. 'ExniU'iA/vnenOiiertvO Conirtctor IniUets

tftOKHS-SOAS:OCF4^PA« PuQcSoltO OxW;
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include but is not limiled to:

3.4.7.1. Human Resources.
•  ' i '

3.4.7.2. Financial.

3.4.7.3. Client billing to other funding sources not in this
contract.

3.4.8. Ail contractor woric .that has started and any progress toward
CAPRSS accreditation for the next cohort of RCCs Identified to..
the Department.

4. Deliverables

4.1. The Conlractof shall provide copies of the e^ecutied agreements described
In Section 2.2, to the Department within five '(5) businew days of fully
executing the documents. Each agreement and renewal are subject to
6DAS review and approval.

4.2. The Contractor shall complete an assessment, .as desaibed in Section
2.3.1, for each of the RCCs. within ninety (90) days of the contract effective
date.

4.2.1. Should additional RCCs be added to the Agreement, through
Amendment:

4.2.1.1. This deliverable requirement shall apply to the newly
added, additional RCCs.

4.2.1.2. The assessment shall be completed wHhln ninety (90)
days of Department approval, per Section 4.1.

4.2.1.3. The Contractor shaD not be required to perform
assessments on RCCs which were completed as a
componei»l of Ihe original contract

4.3. The Contractor shall provide a copy of each accreditation plan described in
Section 2.3.2., within one hundred-twenty (120) days of the,contract
effective dale.

4.3.1. Should addiiiohai RCCs be added to the Agreement, through
Amendment;

4.3.1.1. This deliverable requirement shall apply to the newty
added, additional RCCs.

4.3.1.2. The accreditation plan shall be provided within one
hundred-twenty (120) days of Department approval,
per Section 4.1.

4.3.1.3. The Contractor shall not be required to provide plans
for RCCs which were completed as a compgrient of
the original contract. • '

H»itor H»na. tnc. A Amcndrneri

I^OHKS-aOASrGCf-RFA^ nooi:9o«>0

Contrador (nhlxis

MrOdo:
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4.4. The Contractor shall provide a written Recovery Center assessment, as
described in Section 2 7. for each RCC. within one hundred-eighty (180)
days of the contract effective date.

4.4.1. Should additional RCCs be added to the Agreement, through
Amendment;

4.4.1.1. This deliverable requirement shall apply to the newly
added, additional RCCs.

4.4.1.2. The assessment shall be provided within one
hundred-eighty (180) Department approval, per
Section 4.1.

4.4.1.3. The Contractor ishall not be required to provide
assessments on RCCs which were completed as a
component of the original contract.

4.5. The Contractor shall provide Ihe billing process and payment timeframes
for providing the services in Section 2.9, within one hundred-twenty (120)
days of the contract effective date and shall provide Information on any
changes made to the process and/or timeframes within thirty (3.0) days of
making those changes.

4.6. The Contractor shall have provided a minimum of 70,000 RCO-generated
services shall be provided lo community members incfuding, but not limited
to: .

4.6.1. Individual recovery coaching

4.6.2. Telephone recovery supporl services

4.6.3. Therapeutic services

4.5.4. Center-based programming

4.6.5. Crisis management and systems navigation, and

4.6.6. Other trainings and supports.

Harbor Homo, Inc. l:»b'o>«AAjncndTierxa3 Contractor inOah

l6>IXHSaOAS:GCFjVA^ r'a9ei0ono Data:%
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I3.000.00
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00

00 $
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240.00
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1.761.691.00

1244,391.00
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

PEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVXCES^fET^
DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES

105 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
6a3-271-5738 l-O0a«M4909

Fai: 603-27M10S TDD Acceu; 1-800.735-29^^

June 29. 2018

His Exceflency. Govemof Christophef T. Sununu
and the Honorablo.Coundl

State House

Concord, New Hampshtre 03301

REQUESTED ACTtON

Authorize the Oepartnnent of Health and Human Services, Bureau of On.r9 and Alcohol Services,
to enter tnto'a retroactive and sole source amerKlmertt to an agreement with Harbor Homes. Ir)c.
(Vendor 1553^8001). 77 Northeastern Boulevard, Nashua, NH 03060, by making changes to the
scope of work, payment schedules and terms and condrttons of .the contract; increasir^ the price
limitation by 5244,391 from 54.616.000 to artd amount not to exceed $4,860,391. This will amend an
existihg cwlrad to Increase the number of Recovery Community Cerrters (RCCs) and ensure they
meet the startdards required of a Recovery Community Center, to be effective retroactive to June 30.
2018. upon Governor and Executive Coundi approvd with no change to the compietion date of June
30,. 2019. This agrecnvant was originally approved by Governor end Coundi on June 1. 2018. Otorn
n3) and amended on June 7. 2017 (Item #20). 13.19% General Funds. 45.59% Other Funds and
41.22% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in the following accounts In State Fiscal Years. 2018
and 2019 wtth the ability to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscat Years through the Budget Office
v(ithout further approval from the Governor and Executive Coundi. if needed and justified.

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title
Current Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amourrt

Revised

Modified

Budget

2016 ,  102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svcs $6,000 $0 $6,000

2017 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svcs $1,610,000 $0 $1,610,000

2018 102-500734
Contracts lor Prog

Svcs $1,500,000 $104,098 51,604,098

2019 102-600734

Contracts for Prog
Svcs $1,500,000 -  $140,293 $1,540,293

Total $4,616,000 $244,391 .$4,880,391
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05-S5^915TO-2B890000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT
OF. HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, SVCS.
GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS

SFY Class/Account Class Titlo Actlvtty/Uob
Number

Code

Current
Modified

Budget

Incroaaod/
(Decreased)
Amount

Reviaed

Modified

Budget
[

2016 102-500734
Contracts for

Social Svc . 49158501 ».620 0 $2,820

2017 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 49158501 $813,180 $0 $813,180 i

Subtotal $816,000 .  $0 $816,000

OS7SS-491510-29^0000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT
OF. HHS: D!V FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL. SVCS.
CUNICAL SERVICES

SFY Class/

Account

C lass Title Aettvlty/Job
NumberCode

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased/

(Decreased)
Amount

Revleed ■

Modified

Budget

2016 102-500734

Contracts for

Soda) Svc 49156501 $3,180 $0 $3,180

2017 ' 102-500734
Contracts for

SodaJ Svc 49156501 $796,820 $0 $7^,820

Subtotal $600,000 $0 $800,000

OSSS^51(L33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT
OF. HHS: OIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SVCS.
GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS

iSFY Ctesa/

Account

Class Title Activity/Job
Number

Code

Current

Modified
Budget

Increased/

(Decreased)
Amount'

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018 102-500734
Contracts for

Sodal Svc 92058503 $700,000 $0 $700,000

2019

\

102-500734
Contracts for

Sodal Svc 92058503 $700,000 $0 $700,000

SuhtotaJ $1,400,000 $0 $1,400,000



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
> and the Honorable Coundl
Pages

05-95-e205fO-3S840000 HEALTH AND SOaAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT OF. HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUR^U OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL
SVCS.CLINICAL SERVICES

SPY Class/

Account

Class TItto Activity/Job
Number

Code

Current

fUlodified

Budget

Increased
/

(Decreas
ed)
Amount

Revised
Modified

Budget

2018 102-500734

Corrtracts for

SociaJ S*^ 92056501 $800,000. $104,098 $904,098

2019 102-500734

Contracts for

Social Svc 92056501 $800,000 $0 $.600,000

2019 102-500734

Contract for

Social
.  Services 92056505

1

90 $140.2^

;

$140,293

' Subtdtai. Jt.600.000 $244,391 $i:$44.391

TOTAL $4,616,000 $244,391 $4,860,391

EXPLANATION

This request is retroactive because the contract with Harbor Homes. Inc. is being submitted
after the release of an audit report to allow for Coun^ review the audit findings prior to erttering into an
Agreement. The Department added contract rhonitoring language to the agreement

This request is sole source as Hartx>r Homes. Inc. Is currently under contract to provide
servicas as the Peer Recovery Support Services FadDtating Organization (PRSS FO) to support (he
development of Recovery Community Centers (RCCs). If approved, this amendrrient wm add funding
for Har^ Homes to support an RCC In the Claremont region and at least one ec^rtional RCC.

Funds in this agreement will be Used to assess and enhance the level, of accreditation readiness
of each of the RCCs and to provide program management and oversight Additionally, the vendor will
implernerrt a quality improvement process in 'coUaboratbn with the Department and other Peer
Recovery Support Services (PRSSs) arid Implement cultur^ly appropriate processes and outcome data
coQecdon and analysis. - . .

In response to for New Hampshire Recovery's decision to no (onger provide recovery
services In the Claremont region, a community decision was made to establish a new peer recovery
center in order to contimje providing this valuable resource. Community partners developed a proposal
for the development and Implementation of a more comprehensive recovery community center and.
reqtiested funds be made available through the PRSS FO to sub-contract with Claremont TLC Family
Resource Center and to support and ensure that the RCC meets appropriate standards for a Recovery
Community Organization, recovery center and peer recovery aupport services.

- Notwithstanding any. other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall
provided after June 30. 2019, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for servic^
provided after June 30,2019.
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The following performance measures/objectives will be used to measure the effectiveness of Ihe
agreement;

• Operating Recovery Community Organizations;

•. Each RCC meets CAPRSS accreditation standards;

•  Engaging indivlduats with "lived experience" in completing requirements to provide Peer
Recovery Support Senriccs. Includii^ completing the "Recovery Coach" training and
becoming a CerOned Recovery Support Worker (CRSW) under the Board of Licensing
for Alcohol and Other Drug Use Professionals;

•• Kavirtg the mechanisms ̂ d protooots In place to coOecl cfient Information. Indudir^
process and outcome data;

• • Providing Peer Recovery Support Services

Should the Governor and Executive Coundl not authorize this Request, the Department's
ot/eran strategy to address the.disease of addiction to alcohol and drugs may be negstivefy impacted,
with fewer IridMduals gaining and maintaining recovery. Without access to a communlty-bascd PR^.
many of them may require additional intensive treatmcr>t services. Others may cxjntinue In their active
addictiofi. leading to negative medical, legal and welfare consequences for those persorw, their
families and society. lncurTir\g much higher costs to the Department and state.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 41.22% Federal Funds from United States Departmerrt of Health and Human
Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #S3.959 FAIN TI010035
and 45.59% Other Funds from the Governor's Commission Funds and 13.19% (Seneral Funds.

Respectfully submitted.

Kaqa S. Fox
Director

rey

Approved by.'

Commissioner

IT^Dipo/tmtnlefUtoUh cad ScrMa'AtioTen u C9/ma co^imuAilia cad fonUia
lApfoaidii^ ofportvnitin for dtixtas to oeSitua hiaollh end ladtpti*dtnn.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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State of New.Hannpshire

Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment P2 to the

PRSS Facllitatinfl Organization Services Contract

-r>;w 0^ Amonrtmen! to th»e PRSS FacilitalinQ Organization Services contract (hereinafter referred to as
dat^^ day of A^il. M18. Is by and between the State of New Hampshire.

Department of Hearth arwd Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
H^wr Homes. \nc.. (hereinafter referred to as The Coolrector-). a coition vwth a place of business
el 45 High Slreel Nashua. NH.
WHEREAS pursuant to an agreement (the -ContracT) approved by the Gov^r ̂
on June 1. *2016 (Item «13). as amended on June 7. 2017 (Item «20) ̂  Cc^dor
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and m
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of worlt. payment
schedules and tenns and conditions of the contract; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18
of wortt and the payment schedule of Ihe contrad upon wntten agreement of the parties and approval
from the Governor and Executive Cpundl; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation, and modify the scope of services to
support continued delivery of ttiese services; and
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and condtions
contained in the Contract "^nd set forth herein, mo parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37. General Provisions. BlocK 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:
34.860.391.

2. Form P-37. Gerwrat Provisions. Block 1.9. Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:
E. Maria Reinemann, Esq:, Director of Contra^ and ProcuremenL

3. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.tO. State Agency telephone Number, to read:
60i271-9330. S .

4. Delete ExhJbU B-4. /Vnendmenf #1 in its entirety and replace with Exhibit B-4. Amendment ffZ
5. Delete Exhibit A. Amendment #1 in Its entirety ar»d replaco with Exhibit A. Amendment #2.
6. Add Exhibit A-1. Contract Compliance

7. Add Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements

.HvborHomM
lW)HHS-80ASOCF-«fA-© ^ " *
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Tte .mendmenl be cffecfive upon the (tote d
IN WTTNESS WHEREOF, ihe perties have wi their hands aa of the date wntien bekM.

State of New Hampsh^
Ocpartmeni of Hcatth and Human Sendees

)i^
■x-o ?r-

CONTRACTOR NAME

C&>

Aeknowtedg^ert of Contractor's signature:

#|L a rmmtvof ■ w g/i3/.M< .beforatheunderstgnodofficar.personofl^tS^fdWs^ Wentifed dirtctti above, or satisfarto^prpven to ^Signed above, and ecKnowfedgad that a/ho executed tWs document In the copeaty Indjcotod above.

Signattfo of Notary PubPc or Justice of too Peace

Name end nito of Notaiy Of Justice of the Peace
. • •My,

/■.-MyCommtojon fexpirea; BflUJAM C. MAghN
r'< .' . • ju«tieoofihaPoeee-«8\»Hs::pi.h'-

MyOorwrtafooBi^rfnatiixrric-- ■»
jt.-A r f : wauAMaftutmN

JpspoeefthePeaee-NaerHantpahho
*  /<iiyCi3toffiiss9DnExptmsM9«mbcr4»2^

•  V

H^torHooo
te.Ofe<$-eQ*SPCWtfA.aj pk"*®*
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The praaxdnB Amendment, hsvtng been mv(o««d by Ws rtfice. Is approved as to torn, substance, and esecution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

0«to

'/l >/l^
TUte;

I herrtry cenlN that the tereeolna Amovlment v«s apprtMKl by ttw and Executive CouncO of the state
of New H«mp«Mra at Ihe Meeting on: » mecfiog)

OFRCe OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Dst© • •

Hartxt Moaw*
ie-C3MMS-60AS'eCF-fiFA<a P»9e30«3
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Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicsbte to All Services

1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language
assistance services they wiD provide to persons with limited English
profidency to ensure meaningful access to their programs and/or servlccB
within ten (10) days of the contract effective date.

1 2 The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the
New Hampshire General Court or federal or state court oiders may have
an Impact on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right
to modify Service priorities and expenditure requirements under thb
Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this ccnlract. any reference to days shail mean
consecutive calendar days, unless otherwise denoted as business days.

1.4. For the purposes of this contract, any reference to business days shaD
mean Monday through Friday, excluding State Employee holidays.

1.5. The Contractor shafl.conduct an assessment of Recovery Community
Centers (RCCs) to determine the level of readiness for each RCC to
become accredited according to the standards set fortfi by the Coundl on
Accreditation of Peer Racovery Support Services (CAPRSS).

1.6. The Contractor shall collaborate with the CAPRSS to provide each RCC
with assistance to meet accredttallon standards set forth by the CAPRSS.

1.7. The Contractor shall collaborate with other Peer Recovery Support
Services (PRSS) technical assistance assets to assess the capacity of
each RCC relative to Ihe core and optiona! standards defined by the
Coundl ofAccfeditatiorof Peer Recovery Support Senrices (CAPRSS). ■

1.8. the Contractor shall work with the Department and RCCs to detennihe
(JUiturany appropriate process and outcome data coDection and analysis.

1.9. The Contractor shall provide program management and overdght as wdl
as Implement a quality Improvement process.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall complete an accreditation readiness scan of ail known
Recovery Community Centers (RCCs); slateviride. The Contractor shall;.

2.1.1. Detennine each RCCs ability to schtevo Council of
Accreditfliion of Peer Recovery Support Services (CAPRSS)
accreditation.

2.1.2. Detennine each RCCs ability to open a Recovery Center.
2.1.3. Determine each RCCs capacity to provide Peer Recovery

Support Services (PRSS). .

\
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2.1.4. Deteorilne each RCCs commitment to becoming a Medlcaid
provider, upon approval from the Center for Medicaid and
Medicare Services (CMS) of the establishment of a 'Recovery
Community Ceriter* provider type under the New Hampshire
Medicaid program.

2.1.5. Provide a wrrltten determination of RCC readiness to the
Department within 5 business days of completing the final RCC
readiness scan.

2.2. The Contractor shall enter into contract with a minimum of eleven (11)
RCC's by June 30. 2019. in at least five (5) different Public Health Regions
(See Appendix D - Regional Public Health Networks), as approved by the
Department, in order to Increase capacity for PRSS within each of the

. selected eleven (11) RCCs. The Contractor shatt

2.2.1. Ensure that priority is given to Public Health Regions that do not
have an RCC (See Appendix D - Regional Public Health
Network).

2^J2. Provide a copy of each' executed. RCC oontract to the
Department within five (5) days of contract execution.

2 3. The Contractor shall collaborate with PRSS technical assistance assets,
including, but ■ not limited to. CAPRSS. to assess each RCC for
accreditation readiness in accordance with the standards sot forth by the
CAPRSS. The Ccntractor shall:

. 2.3.1. Complete a written assessment of each RCC that Indicates the
RCCs capacity to provide PRSS services and currenl
operational standards.

2.3.2. Develop a written plan with each, RCC that Includes, but Is not
limited to:

2.3.2.1. Tlmeframes to meeting CAPRSS accreditation
standards.

2.3.2.2. Goals that must be attained by each RCC In order to
meet CAPRSS accreditation standards.

2.3.2.3. Technical assistance needed for each RCC in order
to meet CAPRSS goals, lime frame and technical
assistance accreditalion requirements.

2.3.3. Ensure training and technical assistance Is provided to each
RCC, as needed.

2.4. The Contractor shall collaborate with the CAPRSS to provide assistance to
each RCC to ensure that they meet accroditatton starrdards set forth by
CAPRSS. The Contractor shall ensure assistence includes, but is rxst

.  limited to: . p

PsqaSoTB
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2.4.1. Personnel with the expertise necessary lo deliver high quality
training.

2.4.2. Technical assistance, as needed.

2.A.3. Organizational coaching.

2.4.4. Capacity development consultation.

2.4.5. AdmWstrative support functions, as needed.

2.5. The Contractor shaH cotlaborato with the Center for Excononce to develop
and provide training as wen as terfinlcal assistance to RCCs In order to:
2.5.1. Assist RCCs to attain accfeditfllion.

2.5.2. ProvWe technical assistance to RCCs. to enroll In Medlcaid upon
. the establishment of a 'Peer Recovery Program' provider type
by the New Hampshtre Medicaid Program based on Federal
Center for Medicaid and Medicare Services (CMS) and other
Federal and State requirements, which .include:

2.5.2.1. AP CFR, Subpart BI httPi/VAvw.ecfr.Qov/ogir
hln/ratriBveECFR?QD=&SID=2a147022bd0e989f2cfr0

.  2f0ba401&30&mc=true&n=ot42.4.455&r=PART&tv=H
TMLiteo42.4.455.b ).

2.5.2.2. 42 CFR. "Subpart E ( httD://www.ecfr.QOv/cQ^
bln/retrteveECFR?QP=&SID=2a147022bd0e989f2eff0
2roba401B30&mc=true&n=so42.4.45S.e&r=SUBPAR

T&tv=HTML )■

25.2.3. 45 CFR. 164.512(d) (httDJ/www.ecfroov/cQi-bfn/text-
ldx?SID=07d0a5Q7d28eeQ3b2b09dfd7a2be33d2&mc
gtrue&rK)d6=sa45.1.164 1512&rqr>=d)v8).

2.5.3. Ensure personr*el providing PRSS In RCCs are Certifted
Recovery Support Worlters (CRSW) artd meet the CAPRSS
recovery coaching standards.

25.4. Assist RCCs to expand capacity to Include Peer Recovery
Coaching and Tetephorw Recovery Support Services.

2.5.5. Assist RCCs, with expanding capacity to Indude back office
support fur>ctiorts.

2.5.6. Assist RCCs in establishing Recovery Centers and developing a
plan to sustain them.

2.6. The Contractor shall utilize logistical support provided by the Center for
Excellence to fadlilate a Community of Practice that allows RCC
administrators and leaders lo establish and strengthen collegislity,

Hator Noses, he. A f2 Cort™<toW!ih:
PagalofS
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cooperation, coltaboration and Informal mentoring amortg RCCs. The
Contractor Ehall:

2.6.1. Organize regular on-going RCC regional meetings with RCC
administrators and leaders.

2.6.2. Ensure meetings are widely advertised to all RCCs, statewide.
263 Ensure that each subcontracted RCC engages ̂ 'Is local

Regional Public Health Networtc (RPHN) lo participate in
continuum of care developrtient •

2.7. The Contractor shail assess the ability of each RCC to open and sustain a .
Recovery Center. The Contractor shall;

2 7.1. Complete a written assessment of each RCC that indicates
each RCC'b readlness^to open and sustain a Recovery Center,
that tndudes, but is not limited to:

2.7.1.1. The current organizatiooal structure of the RCCsRecovery Center or the RCC's readiness to open a
Recovery Center, as appropriate.

2.7.1.2. The number of people thai can be senred by the
RCCs Recovery Center.

2.7.1.3. the RCCs firiancial vlabiDty lo support a Recovery
Center.

2.7.2. Work with each RCC to develop a written plan to open a
Recovery Center.

2.7.3. Ensure training and technical assistar^ce is avdlablc toRecovery Center staff, which may Include but is not limited to:

2.7.3.1. Customer service training.

2.7.3.2. Peer Recovery Coaching Services.

2.7.3.3. Telephone Recovery Support Services,
2.7.4. Assist RCCs to secure funding from other pubOc and private

sources to ensure ongoing sustainablTity of services.

2.8. The Contractor shall assist RCCs with performing track office functions that
may tndude, but are not limrted to:
2.8.V Human resource functtons.

2.8.2. FInandal functions, such as accounting, bookke€pir>g and
payroll.

2.8.3. Billing functions.

Kster Hdsm. tne.
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2.9. The Contractor shall ensure bflling services are avaOabte to each ROC until
such lime RCCs can perform bilGng functions on their own. Billing
functions shall incJude. but are not Bmited to;

2.9.1. Submitting PRSS cfient services covered by Medlcaid to the
appropriate managed care organization (MOO).

2.9.2. OisbursJng payments received from MCOs to the appropriate
ROC.

2.9.3. Accepting RCCInvoloos for operational costs.

2.9.4. Paying RCCs for operationa! costs on a opst reimbursement
basis.

2.9.5. Submitting RCC operational cost Invoices to the Department for
relmbursemerrt.

2.10. The Contractor shall collaborate with the NH Center for Excelience to:

2.10.1. Identify data evaluation criteria.

2.10.2. Implement an evaluation process In each RCC.

2.11. The Contractor shati ensure technical assislanca Is avallabie to each RCC
In order to collect, analyze and utilize data, for the evaluation process In.
Section 2.10.2., which shall indude bul is not limited to;

2.11.1. Demographics, wtiich Indude but are not limited to;

2.11.1.1. Gender

2.11.1^. Age

2.11.1.3. eihnldty

2.11.1.4. Primary doig of choice

2.11.2. SAMHSA ■ National Outcome Measures
fhtto://wwwdasis.samhsa.oov/dasi52/noma/noms attch1.pdf).

which Indude:

2.11.2.1. Abstinence

2.11.2.2. Crime and Criminal Justice

2.m!.3. Employment/Education

2.11.2.4. Stability In Housing

2.11.2.5. Social Connectedness

2.11.3. Referral Source

(2.11.4. Client Financial Information

2.11.5. Healthcare Coverage Information

2.11.6. Substance Use Disorder treatment history

Heter H»rm. be. E«rdbh A « Ccndedor
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2,11.7. Substance Use Disorder or Co-occuning Oisorder recovery
needs

2.11.0. Participalion In Communily Services.

2.11.9. Recovery capHal

2.12. The Contractor will work with the Department to Identify the next cohort of
RCCs to prepare them for CAPRSS accreditation.

Reporting Roqulremonts

3.1. The Contractor shall provide a work plan for each state fiscal year by July
1" of that year, this work plan shaD be subject to review and approval by
the Department.

3.2. Report orv readiness for all considered RCC, that Includes but is rrot limited

3-2.1. Progress'on the annual work plan.

3.2.2. Accreditation ̂ dincss.

3.2.3. Recovery center capacity

3.2.4. Capacity to provider PRSS

3.2.5. Commitment to enrolling In Medlcald, upon appirbval from the
Center for Medlcald and Medicare Sennces (CMS) of the
establishment of a 'Recovery Communily Center' provider type
under the New Hampshfra Medicaid program.

3.3. The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports that indude but are not
Dmlted to:

3.3.1. Progress on the armu^ work plan.

3.3.2. Progress on each RCC's work plan components.

3.3.3. informatton on RCC trainings conducted, including but not
limited to, type of training provided and number of attendees.

3.3.4. Information regarding RCC meetings that occurred, as
described In Section 2.6, Including but not Gmited to, venue,
number of etterrdees and methods used to advertise meetings.

:  3.3:5. BackOffice support provided, asdescnbed In Section2.8.

3:4-^e Cortractof shall submit a final report to the Department that mdudes,
but Is not limits to: *"

3.4.1. Infomiatton on each of the eleven (11) RCCs Induding the
number of individuals served dunng the three (3) months prior to
subcontracting wtth the Contractor in comparison to die number

HBttof Hvms. btc. ScNQCt A AaicnOaicnt 12 Connow
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of Individuals served by the RCC from April to June 30®* of
each subsequent year.

3.4.2. How many ar>d what type of trainings were provided over the
term of the contract.

3.4.3. The number of RCCs that are accredited by the CAPRSS.

3.4.4. The number and location of each Recovery Center that opened
as a result of contracted services.

3.4.5. The type of PRSS sendees delivered by each RCC.

3.4.6. Information regarding dlents served, which shall Include but not
twlimiled to:

3.4.6.1. Anatysis of client data referenced In 2.11 by Individual
RCC.

3.4.6.2. Analysis of aggregated dlenl data

3.4.7. Back Office functions performed for each RCCs. which may
include but is rtot limited to:

3.4.7.1. Human Resources.

3.4.7.2. Financial.

3.4.7.3. Client billing to other funding sources not in this
contract.

'3.4.6. All contractor work that has started and any progress toward
CAPRSS accreditation for the next cohort of RCCs Identified to
the Oepaitment.

4. Detrvereblea

4.1. The Contractor shall provide copies of the executed contracts deschbod in
Section 2.2, to the Department within five (5) business days of fully
executing the documents. Each sub-contract and rerwwal are subject to
BDAS review and approval.

.  4.2. ■ The Contractor shall complete an assessment, as described in Section
2.3.1, (or each of the RCCs. within ninety (90) days of the contract effective
date;

4.2.1, Should additional RCCs be added to the Agreement, trough"
Amendment;

CoterMortnl3»£&£Z
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4^.1.1. This deliverable requirement shall appfy to the newly
added, addttbnal RCCs.

4^.1.2. The assessment shall be c»mpteled within runety (00)
days of Department approval, per Section 4.1.

.  4.2.1.3. The Conlractor shall not be required to perform
assessments on RCCs which were completed as a
component of (he orlglnai contract.

4.3. The Contractor shad provide a copy of each sccrediiation ptan descn'bed In
Section 2.3.2., within one hundred-twenty (120) days of the -ContrBd
effective date. '

4.3.1. Should additional RCCs be added to the Agreement, through
•  ̂ Amendment:

4.3.1.1. This deliverable requirement shaD apply to the newly
added, additional RCCs. ■ " •

4.3.1.2. The accreditation plan'shallt>eprovid8d within one'
hundred-twenty (120) days of Department approval,
per Section 4.1.

4.3.1.3. The Contractor shall not be required to provide plans •
for RCCs which were compteled as a compqnent of
the original contract.

4.4. The Contractor shad provide a written Recovery Center assessment, as-
described in Section 2.7-, for each RCC, within one hundred-eighty (160)
days of the contract effective date.

4.4.1. Should addilionai RCCs be added to the Agreement, through.
Amendment;

4.4.1.1. This deliverable requlremenl shall apply to the newly
added, additlonat RCCs.

4.4.1.2. The assessment shall be provided within one
hundred-eighty (180) Department approval, per
Section 4.1.

4.4.1.3. The Contractor shall not be required to provide
asses^ents on RCCs v^tllch were completed as a
componerit of the original contract.

4.5. 'The Conlractor shall ̂ vide the billing process and payment timeframes
for providing the services in Section 2.9, wHWn one hurdred-twenty (120)
days of the contract effective date and shall provide Infomiatioo on any
changes made to the process ̂ nd/or timeframes within thirty (30) days of
making those changes.

Honm, bv. A AcMnAscnl 13 CortnOa
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Contract Compliance

1. Audits.

1.1. The Contractof shall provide a corrective action plan to the Deparlrnent
within thirty (30) days of the date of final aucftt findings. The Contractor

■ shall ensure the corrective action plan addresses all audit findings and
Includes, at a mlr>imum:

1.1.1. The specific act!on(s) to t* taken to correct each deficiency

rdenirfied by the Department;

1.1.2. The specific action(s) to be taken to prevent any future
reoccurTence(s) of each deficiency;

1.-1.3. The spedfic. action steps and timeline for implementing the
' actions identified In Section 1, Audits;

1.1.4. A vrrttten plan for monltonng "actions to ensure the actions
identiried in Section i, Audits are effective; and-

1.1.5. The frequency and method for reporting progress on
irnplementation and effectiveness of the corrective action

plan to the DepartmenL
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A. DefmlUons

The fonowing terms may be reflected end hove the de8cril)ed mear^lng In this doojment.

1  "Breach* means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized ecquislUor>. uneuthortzod access, or arty similar term referrtng to
situations whera persons other than authorized users and tor anotherman
authortzed purpose have access or potential access to pc/sonafly Wcntlfteblo
Information. vMhelher physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
lnfo^nalio^ ' Breach* shail have the same meaning as the term •Breach* m section
164.402 of THte 45. Code of Federal Regulations. - '

Z  'Computer Skurtty Inddent" shaD have the same meaning "Computer Securlhr
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST ̂ bllcaUon 800^1. Computer Security incident

■  Handlir*g Guide. NaUonal InsUtute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
. of Commerce.

3. "Confldentla] Information" or "ConftdenUal Data" nxians all confWcnllal Information
disclosed by one party to the other such as ell medlcaJ. health, finandal.. pubfic

' assistance benefits and personal Information including without ronilalioo, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Persor^ally Idoritlftable Informalton.

Confldentla.l Information also indudcs any and at) Information owned of managed by
the State of NK/cre^ed. received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Hunian Services (OHHS) or accessed in the course of perfornwg oonlracted
services • of which coDcction. dlsdcsure. protection, end disposition is governed by
Slate or federal law or regulaborv This Information Includes, but Is not OmUcd to
Protected Health Informalloo (PHI^ Personal Information (PI). Personal RnarxdaJ
ln1ofTT«tlon (PFIX Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Securfty Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), end or other censWve and confidenUal Information.

4. "End User" means any person or ertlity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data In accordance with the terms of Ihls Corrtracl

5. "HtPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Ad of 1998 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. Inddcnf means an act that poterjlaDy vtolates en explicit or Implied security poflcy.
which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the urtauthorized use o#
a system for the processing or storage of data: and changes .to system hardware,
fkmware. or software characteristics wtthout the owner's knowledge, mstructton. or
conserd.'lnddents Iricludo.the loss of date through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy dbcumems. and misrouiing of physical or electronic

E*Wh»tK Con«etwtn*3«a.^
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man. an of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthortzed
accesa. use. dlsdosure, modlTiceUon or destAx:tlon.

7. "Open Wreleas Network' means eny network or segment of a network that is
I  not. designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information

Technology or delegoto os a protected r>otwork (designed, tested, and
approved, by meerts of the State, to transmit) be considered an open

• network srKJ r>ot adequately secure for the iransmtsslon of unencrypted Pi. PPI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. 'Personal Information* (or "PI") means tnformatlon which can be'used to distinguish
Of trace an IndNtduaTs identity, such as their name, sodiai security number, personal
Information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19. blometitc records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or (dentlfytrig tnforiraUon which fa finked
or Qnkabte to a apedfic tndlvldual. such as date and (^ce of blnh, motheria maiden
name, etc

9. "Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Irxllvidually Identifiable Heallh
Informallon at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 end 164, pfomulgatcd under HIPAA by the tiniled
Slates Oepartmerri of Health and Human Services. ,

10. "Prolectfid Heallh Information' (or 'PHO has the same meaning as provided In the
definition of t^rotected Health Information' In the HIPAA Privacy Rute at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rute' shall mean the Security Startdards for the Protection of Electronic
Protect^ Heallh Information et 45 C.Fi^. Part 164. Subpart C, and amend/nents
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health Informallon thai Is
rwt, secured by a technology starrdard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthortsed Indivlduais arx) is
devetoped or endorsed by a standards developing organizalton that is accredited by
the Amertean National Standards Institute.

L RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A Business Use and Disclosure of Confldentiallnformatlon.

1. The Contrector must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary es outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor.
Including but rwt iimSed to all Ifa dtnectors, officers, empioyees and agertts. must not
use. disciose. maintain or transmit PHI In any manner that would constitute e vtolation
of tl^ Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Conftdential Information In respor\se to a

V4.U3tupditeM.04.2018 ' DdifcCX CortruOat jElf.
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request for dbdosure on the basis that It b required by law. in response to a.
subpow>a. etc.. without .first notifytrtg OHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the dlscbsure.

3. If OHHS notifies the ConlrBCtor that OHHS has agreed to be bound by edcDt'onal
restrfctions over and above those uses or disdosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
eddiOonat restrictions end must.not dlsdose PHI In vtotoUon of such eddttlonal
restrictlorts and must abide by any addltlonal security safeguanls.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from dbdosed to an End.
User rnust only be. used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained lirwJer this Contract may not .bo used for
ony other purposes that are not .Indicated In thb Contract

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of Irrspecting to conrom compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

IL ■ METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Apptication EncrypUorv If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Coftfidential Data between applications, (he Contractor attests the appilcatibns have
been evaluated by an expert knowtedgeable Ini cyber security and that said
application's encryption capablBties ensure secure Iransml.ssion via the InlerrteL

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer dbka
or ports bio storage devices, such as a thumb dr1>^. as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

7

3. ErKryplcd Email. Ef>d User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data If
email Is encrypted and being sent to arvJ being received by email address.es of
persons isuthorized to receive such Information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket lay^ (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use fUe
hosting services, such, as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground MaB Sendee. End User may only transmtt Confidential Data via certrried ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named IrviMdual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User Is employing poftat>le devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and passwofd-prdtectcd:

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Cortfldenlial Data via en open

v4.Li3jwpd««w.o*zoia . Erfaax contt*tofWa»,^^
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when;
remotely trensmittir^jj via en open wireless network. j

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote commimicaticn to
access or transmit ContWentlal Gala, a virtual private network (VPN)^must be
IftttaDerJ on the End User's mobile devlce(s) or laptop from wfhich Infonnatlon will be
trartvf^tted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User wJl
structure the Folder ar>d access privileges to prevent Inappropriale disclosure of.
Information. SFTP fokJers end sub-foldors used for transmitting Confidential Data wlD
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletlon cycle (i.e. Confidential Data wUI be d^tad every 24
hours).

11. wireless Devices. If End User Is transmitting CpnfldenUal Data via vriretess devices. aD
data must be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of hformation.

10. RETENTION AND oisPOSmON OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor win only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of Itite
Contract After such lime, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and erry
derivative In whatever fbrrn 0 may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
imder this Contract To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will rwt store, transfer or process data ^ected In
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
Stales. This physical tocaUon requirement shaQ also apply In the Implementation of
cloud computir^. doud servteo or cloud storage, capabJtfUes. and Includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Cofiractor agrees to ensure proper security monlloring capabilities are In
place to detect potential securtty cverrta that can Impact State of NH systems
end/or Oepartmenl confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and educalioo for fls End
Users in support of prolectir>g Department confidential Information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of ConfWentia! Data
In a secure location klenlified in section IV. A.2 ^

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored In a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HlTECH compftant solution ar^ comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy end security. AD eervers and devices must have
currentiy-supported ar>d hardened operating systems,.the latest anlFvtral. entl-
hacker, anti-spam. anlFspyware. and antWnalware utUities. The environment as a
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whole, must have a99ressive Intruston-dete^on end firewaO protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and enures Its comptete coopefation with the State's
Chief Infofmstlon Officer In the detection of Sny securtty vulnerability of the hosting •

Infrastructure.

B. Disposition .

1. If the Contractor wiD maintain any ConfWentJal faformatton on Its systems (or Hs
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor wlU maintain a documented process for
securely disposir>g of such data upon request or contract termination; arto will
obtain wrttten certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or arry sutrcontractors as a part of ongplnQ. emergency, and pr disaster
recovery operattons. When r^ longer tn use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shaD be rerxlered unrecoverable vta a s^re wipe program
in accordance with todustry-accepted standards for secure deletion end media
sanMzation, or' otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publicstion 800-66, Rev 1, Guidalines
for Ktedia Sanflizatlon. Naborul Institute of Standards end Technology. .U. S.
Dcpartirwt of Commerce. Thc'Contractof will document end certify in writing at
time of the.data destruction, and wiD provide written certtflcation to the Department
upon request The written cartiTtcatlon will IrKtude all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been property destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory end professional standards for retention requirements wlO be Jotntty
evaluated by the State end Contractor prior to destruction.

2.' Unless othcrwbe specified, within thirty (30) days of the JcrminBtion of thh
Contract, Corrtractor egraes to destroy ell hard copies of Conndentlal Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specffted. wwiln thirty (30) days of the termlnslton of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completeiy destroy.aD electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure ̂ ta wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, end any
dertvatlve data or fUes, as foDcws:

1. The Contractor wiO maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential Informsttan collected, processed, managed, end/or stored In the delivery
of contacted services. . |

Z The' Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information iHecycte, where applicable, (from
aeatlon. tremformalioix use. storage ertd secure de&taictlon) regardless of the
media used to store the date (I.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

I
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3. The Contractor will maintain oppropriato aulhenUcation and acce^ controls to
contractor aystcms thai collect, transmit, or store Department conJWentiaf WormaUon
vwhere appCcsble.

4. The Conlraclor will ensure proper security monitoring capabiDtiea are In place to
detect potential security events that can impact Stole of NH systems Brtifot-
Department confidential Information for contractor provItJed systems.

5. The Contmctof w0) provide regular security awareness and education for tta End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential Informalior*.

6  If thp Contractor wtli be sub-oontracUng any core functions of the eneagement
BupportJng the services for State of New Hampshire; the Contractor will maintain a
program of an Internal process or processes that defines spectfte security
expectations, and mohitoring compCanw to security requirements that al b minimum
match those for the Cortfractor, Indudlr^ breach notlficatton requirements.

7. The Contractor win work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
Stale of New Hampshire and Department system accws end auihorizalkyi poUdes
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department sys!em(s). Agreements will be

' completed and signed by the Contractor end any appllceble wtx»njractors prior to
system access being authorized. ^

8. II the Department dciermines the Contractor is a Business Associale pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) wtth the Department and Is responsible for matntalnlng compGance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will worV with the Department at Its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey Is to enobte the Department arid
Contractor to monltof for any changes In .fbKs. threats, and vutnerabUilies thai irey
occur over the fife of lha Contractor engagement. The survey wd bo compteled
annually, or an'allemate lime frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Coniractor. or the Department may request the sunrey be compteted when ttiescope of the engagement between the OepartmCTt and the" Contractor changes. ■

10. The Contractor wID not storo.'knowlngly or unknowingly, any State of Now H8rTU)shlre
Of Department data offshore or outsWe the boundaries of the Unitad Slates unless
prior express written consent b obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

. U Oats Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and mlntmfie any damage or loss resulting from the breech,
Thp Stale shall recover from the Contractor eO costs of response and recovery from

V4.ua uc«t(M.04J0ie
D»OQ MDrmsaon
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me breach. Inchjding but not Dmiled to: aedit moniiofino services. msllir^Q coste and
costs Bssodated with website and telephone cell center servtoea neceKSfy due to
me breech.

12.Controclor must comply wim eO applicable statute# end fegulotJons regarding the
Drtvacy and security ot ConfWentlnt irtformaUon. and must In ail other respects
mainlin the privacy end security of PI find PHI et 0 level end scope that Is riotJess
than the level and scope of requiremenls appBcabte to
but rwt nmllod to. provwons of the Prtvacy Act of (5 U.S.C.
Privacy Ad Rogutalions (45 C.F.R. §5b)..HlPAA Privacy end Security Rulw (45

• C;F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for indWduaDy Wentiflabte heaRh
tnformatlon and as applicabte under Stale law. V ̂  >

13. Contractor aoftfes to establish and rhamtain appropriate adminlstrallve, technical, and
phyBlcal safeguards to protect the oonfidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevenl uheirihorized use or access to It. The safeguards must provide a level find
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of sccurtty requirements
established by the Stale of. New Hampshire. Oepartmeni of Information Twhnolw-
Refer to Vendor Resouroes/Pfocurement at httpsi/fwww.nh.gov/dolt/vendofnndexhtm
for the Department 0# Information Technology policies, gul^flnes. standards, and
procurement l/tformalion relab'ngto vendors.

14 Contractor agrees-to maintain a documented breach notificallon and b^dent
-  resporise process. The Contractor wlU notify the State's Prwacy Offiwr. and

addiltorttl emaQ addresses provided in Ihb section, of any sccurtty t^each within tvx)
(2) hours of Iho lime thai the CortracJor teams ol Its occurrence. This Indudcs a
confidential Information breach, computer security Incident, or suspcded brca^
which affects or Includes anyStele of New Hampshire systems thai connect to the

■ State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtain^
Corriract to only those authorized End Users, who need such DHHS Data, to
perform their official duties In connection wflh purposes Identified In this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure thai all End Users:.

a. comply wllh such safeguards as referenced In Section IV A. ab^.
Implemerrted to protect CoofWenttei Informaiion mat Is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, meft or Inadvertent dbclosure.

b. safeguard this Information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/madia containing PHI, PI. or
PFI ere encrypted end passwcrd-prot^ed.

d. sand emails containing Confidential tnformallon only If pnPYylgd ^'"0
sent to and t>cing received by emaO addresses of persons authorized to
receive such Information.

£iLCoiwKtor Wdab

Sccuity riaotiScmcna
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e. Dmn <Jisdosur« of the CooTidanilal InformaUon to the extent permitted by tew.
f. Confldcnltel Infbrmalton received under thb Contrad and

WenUflable data dcrtved from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area.that ts
physJcaDy and tcchnoloolcalty secure from access by ur^auih^od pef^
during duty hours a# well as norvduty hours (a.g.. door tocks, cam keys.
blomctrlcldenUfters. etc.).

a onty euthortzed End Users may transmit the ConfldcntJal Data, including any
dertvatJye fOes containing personally WenUflable Infbrmattoo. and In au cases,
such data rmist be encryptod at all times when In transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable meda as required In section IV above.

h. In aa other instances ConfkJenUal Data must be maWtelned. ®nd
disclosed using appropriole safeguards, as determined by 8 rtsk-based
assessment of the circumstances Involved.

L  understand that their user credentials (user rams and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential Information secure.
TWs appCes to credentials used to access the sito directly or indirectly through
a third party appGcalion.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight and compltenco of their End ̂ 5®^
.  reserves the right to conduct onstte inspections to monitor comprance wl^ mte

CorUmcl, Including the privacy and security requirements provided In herein. HIPA^
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations unlll such time the Conndcntiai Data
Is disposed cf in accordance v^th this Contrad.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Prtvecy Officer. Informatton Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security IrKldenls and Breaches wilWn tvro (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence. ^

The Contractor must further handle erW report Incidents and Breaches Im^lvl^ PHI In
accordance wtth,the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach NotIfic»to
procwJuws and in aceordanc# with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In adtfUon (o. and
notwithstanding. Ciontractor's compnance vrllh all applicable obBgaUons and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Ccntradof wiD;
1. Identity Incidents:

2. Determine If porsonally Identifiable Infonnalion is Involved in Incidents,

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required In this Exhibit or P-37.
4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents

and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

V4 Ualvodatt04.015016 . EiWWlK CortrxcttInCahOMHS IfltormtdDft .
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5.- Determine whether Breach noUficaljon Is required, ar»d. If so, identify appropdale
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among dttfercnl
options, aryj bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any rrttigBOon
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that Implicate Pi must l>8 addressed and report^, as
apptfcehle. in eccofdance wUh NH RSA 359-C-^O.

VU PERSONS TO COMTACT

A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange Issues:
DHHSInformatior^SecurityOffico®dhhs.nh.90v

B. DHHS contacts for Privacy Issues:

DHHSPrtv8cyOfnccf@dhhs.nh.gov "

C. DHHS contact for Information Security bsocs:
DHHStnfofm3tionSecurttyOfnce@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS coritact.for Breach notificalions;
DHHSInfomi8tionSecufityOfnce@dhhs.nh.gov

OHHSPrtvDcy.Ofncer@dhhs.nh.opv

S<Qjrtiy RaqiAtmana
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE ftf
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR behavioral HEALTH

BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES

105 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
603-27I-0738 l-800^4'0909

Fax: 603-27l-«l05 TOD Accm: l<00&-7J5-2964

May 10.2017

His Excellency. "Governof Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Cound)

State House

Concord, .New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services
to exercise a renewal option for two <2) years, out of a pos$it)ie four (4) years, with Harbor Homes, Inc.
(Vendor # 155358-8001). 45 High Street. Nashua NH. 03060. by increasing the-price limitalion by
$3,116,000 from S1.500.000 to an amount not to exceed $4,616,000 and extending the completion
date from June 30. 2017 to Jur>e 30, 2019. This will amend, an existing contract to facilitate the
development and net^rVing of peer recovery support services available in multiple Regional Public
Health Regions in order to significanlty reduce alcohol and drug misuse and Its social, behavioral and
health conseguerKes statewide, to be effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval, this
egreemertt was originally approved by Governor and Cduncil on June 1. 2016, Item #13. 10 %
General Fur\ds. 42% Federal Fur«Js. 48% Other Funds

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Current

Modified

Budget

Iricrcased

(Oocreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2016 102-500734 Contracts for Social Svs ^.000 SO S6.000

2017 102-500734 Contracts for Social Svs $1,494,000 $116,000 $1,610,000

2018 102-500734^ Contracts for Social Svs $0 $1,500,000 $1,500,000

2019 102-500734 Contracts for Social Svs $0 $1,500,000 '  $1.500.000

Total $1,500,000 $3,116,000 $4,616,000

Funds to support this reguest are available in the following accounts in State Fiscal Year 2017
and are-anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2018 and State Fiscal Year 2019, upon the
avdilability and continued appropriation of. funds in the future operating budgets, with-the ablSty to
adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget OfTtce if needed and justifi^
vrtthout further approval frwh the Governor and Executive Council.
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05-9S-491S10-2989 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS OEPT OF.
HHS: DIV OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SVCS, GOVERNOR
COMMISSION FUNDS

SFY Class/

Account -

Class Tllle Activity/Job
Number

Code

Current

Modified

Budflct

Increased/

(Decreased)
Amount

. Revised

Modified

Budget
2018 102-500734 Contracts for

Social Svc

49158501 S2.820, 0 $2,820

2017 102-500734 Contracts for
Social Svc

49158503 $697,180 $116,000 $813,180

Sub rota/ S700.000 .  S116.000 $816,000

0S-9S491 SI0-2990 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF.
HHS; DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SVCS, CLINICAL
SERVICES

SFY Class/

Account

Class Title Activity/Job
Numt>er.

Code

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased/

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget
2016 102-500734 Contracts for

Social Svc
49156501 $3,180 ■  0 $3,180

2017 102-500734 Contracts for

Social Svc

49156501 $796,820 .  0 $796,820

Subtotal $800,000 SO $800,000

0S-95-920S10-3382 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF.
HHS: DIV OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SVCS. GOVERNOR
COMMISSION FUNDS

SFY Class/

Account

Class Thie Activity/Job
Numt)er ̂
Code

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased/

(Decreased)
Amount

.  Revised

Modified

Budget'
2018 102-500734 Contracts for

Social Svc

TBO 0 $700,000 $700,000

2019 102-500734 - Contracts for

SodalSvc

TBD 0 $700,000. .  $700,000

Subtotal $0 $1,400,000 $1,400,000
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05-95-920S1(M3e4 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF.
HHS: DIV OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SVCS, CLINICAL
SERVICES

SFY Class/

Account

Class Title Activity/Job
Number

Code

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased/

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018 102-500734 Contracts for

Sodal Svc

TBD 0 S800.000 S800.000

2019 102-500734 Contracts for

Social Svc

TBD 0 S800.000 S600.000

Subtot9/ 10 Sf.600.000 srsoo.ooo

TOTAL If,500.000 $3,116,000 $4,616,000

EXPLANATION

FurnJs in this amendment will be used to support ongoing efforts of the Contractor
(Facilitating Organization) to develop the infrastructure for Recovery Community OVganizatior^
(RCOs) across tbe state and to support their becoming accredited to provide peer recovery
support services. Funding will spedftcally be utilized for program operations and to continue
training and technical assistance made available to the (7) RCOs that came on line in State Fiscal
Year 2017 and to likewise make resources available to bring an additional 3 RCOs on line in State
Fiscal Year 20tB.

List of Current Recovery Community Organizations supported by this contract:

whi.ce Horoe Addiccion Center, Inc.
66 Rouce Rouce 16B PO Box 487. Center

OssLpee. NH 03614

Granite Pathways, Inc. - Safe Harbor
Recovery Center
ess Islington Street Portsnouth, KK 03801

Goodwin CbovBunity Health, SOS Recovery
CoocDUJvicy
311 Route 108. Sooersworch. NH 03863

xeene Serenity Center
36 Carpenter St.. Keene. nh 03431

Revive Recovery Center
41 SagacDore Park Road. Hudson NH 030S1

Greater Tllcon area Patally Resource
Center

391 Haln Street Suite 3 ■ '

Tilton. NK 03376

North Country Serenity Center
33 Kain Street

Littleton. KH 03561

. Recovery Support Services provided ere a cost-effective means of providing ongoing
support to individuals in the earty stages of recovery from substance use disorders (SUD). Many of
the irxlivtduals served will have recently completed a SUD treatment program.

The objective of these programs are to:
•  Support the operations of a recovery community organization;

•  To perform back office functions (Finance, billing, personnel) for . subcontracted
RCOs as needed;

•  Increase capacity for providing Peer Recovery Support Services;
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•  Assist the subconlracled Recovery Community Organizations in becoming in
accordance with the standards set forth by the Coundr on Accreditation of Peer
Recovery Support Services (CAPRSS):

•  Ensure personnel providing Peer Recovery Support Services in Recovery
Community Organizations are Certified Recovery Support Worttcrs (CRW$) ar^
meet the recovery coaching standards set by the Council on Accreditation of Peer
Recovery Support Services;

«  To develop a mecharusm to collect, analyze and utilize data.

The vendor win provide technical assistance to subcontracted RCOs to support their
enrolling as providers in the state's Medicaid program and vrith other third party payers.

Progress vwn be measured by the Recovery Community Organizations meeting certan
milestones, including';

•  ■ Operating a Recovery Community Organization (RCO);

•  The RCO meeting CAPRSS accreditation standards;

•  Engaging individuals wHh "lived experience' in completing requirements to provide
peer recovery • supports services, include completing the. "Recovcfy Coach'
curriculum training and becoming a Certified Recover Support WorKer (CRSW)
under the Board of Alcohol and Drug Use Professional Practice;

•  Having mechanisms and protocols in place to cotlect client information (including
process and outcome data);

•  Providing peer recovery support services.

We expect the RCOs to serve a significant number of people. However, since peer
recovery support services (PRSS) have not previously been widefy available and.because the
RCOs are In the eariy stages of development, the number of people accessing PRSS through the
RCOs supported by this contract cannot yet be determined. As data coDectlon systems come on
line. the vendor will be reporting on the numbers served within each of the RCOs.

Recovery Community Organizations will be expected to leverage additional public and
private funding resources- thereby sustaining and irKreasing capacity for the Peer Recovery
Support Senrices beyond the resources made available in this contract.

As stated in Exhibit A - Amendment #1. notwithstanding any other provision of the
Contract to the contrary, no services shall continue after June 30. -2017, arvl the 0ep3rtn>ent shall
not be liable for any payments for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and funds
encumbered for the SPY 201S-2019 biennia.

Should the Governor end Executive Council not approve this request the Department's
overaQ strategy to address the misuse of alcohol ar>d drugs will t>e r^egat'ively impacted, including
fewer individuals maintaining recovery wHh many of them cycling back Into needing more intensive
and costfy treatment services.

Area Served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 42% Federal Funds from United States Department of Health and
Human Services. Sut^tance Abuse and Mental Health Services Admtrustration. CFOA #93.959

FAIN TI010035 and 48% Other Funds from the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug
Abuse Prevention. Intervention and TreatmeiM and 10% General Funds.
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In the event that the federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

RespectfuDy submitted.

Katja S. Fox
Director

Approved by;

tey A) Meyers
Commissiofter

flu Dtporimtni 9fHtolth and Hu/naA,Strvitt$'kiUtion it to join eonmunitUt Ofid fomiiia
in providing fv eitian* ID ochitu* htoUh ond iodtptndtnct.



Now Hifflpfthlm Oepartrnom tA Hothh ind Humin 8orv}cto
PwRocovory Support 8orv!cosF8clUtBltrtgOrytntzatlon(FRSS FO)

State of New Hampshire
Departmefit of Health and Human Services-

Amendment 01 to the
Peer Recovery Support Services

Facilitating Organization (PRSS FO)

This 1st Amendment to the Peer Recovery Support'Services Fecililaiing Organization
<PRSS FO) contract (hereinafter referred to as 'Amendment #V) dated this 24^ day of
April. 2017, b by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and
Human Seivtoes (hereinafter referred to as* the "State" or "Department") arid Ha/t3or
Homes. Inc. {hereinafter referred to as The Contractor, a nonproru company with a
place of business at 45 High Street. Kashua, NH 03060.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an-agreement (the "Contract'), approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on June 1, 2016. Item PI 3. the Contractor egreed to perfdrm certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified In the Contract as amended
end loconsiderationofcertain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State end the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope-of
work,- payment schedules and terms end co^iticns of the contract: and

WH^EAS. pursuant to the Form P-37. GeneraJ Provisions, Paragraph 18. and Exhibit
C^l, Revisions to General Provisions, Paragraph 3, the State may modify the scopo of
woiK and payment schedule of the contract by written agreement of the parties; -

WHEREAS the parties agree to eirtend the term of the agreement for two (2) eddiHonaJ
years, incase the Prtce Limitation and. modify the scope of services to ^pport.
continued delivery Of these services, and

NOW THEREFORE. In considefalloo of the foregoing and the mu^l covenants and
conrfitions contained .In the Contract and set forth herein, the pa/ties hereto agree as
•foQows:

1. Amend Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.6, Accounl Number, to Include
the following: " - • '
05-95-R?-9205l0^3820000-102-500734. and
05-85-92-920510-3384000M02.500734

2. Amend Form P-37, General Provbions, Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read;
•  June 30. 2019

3. Amend Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8. to increase Price Limitabon by
$3,116,000 from $1,500,000. tp read:
$4,616,000

Hsrbor Homes. Inc. AmenCmercsi Conlractor ihRlilaV
Page 1 cT 8 Datt: 55^5)^



MVw Kittpfthlr* Dtptrtmofll of Heaftfi and Human SetiHcos
piaor tacovtry Support S«rvtco» FaeUlttllng OrginlaUon (PRSS FO)

4. Amend Form P-37. Genera' Provisions. Block 1.9, to read;
Jonathan V. Gallo. Esq.. Interim Director.of Contracts and Pfocufemenl

5. Amend Form P-S7, General Provisions. WocK 1.10, to read:

271-9246

6. Deiote E>d>lbit A. Scope of Services, in its entirety and repiaoe with A,
Amendment#!.

7. AddExhibltB-2, Amendment 1. Budget Form for SFY 2017.

• 8. Add Exhibit B-3, Budget F.orm for the Budget F*er7od FY 2018.

9." Add Exhibit B-4, Bi^get Form for the Budget Period FY 2019.

This amendment shaD be effecttve upon the date of Governor and Ex^tive Coundl
approval.

N- . ; • -

Hvbor Komet, Inc Amertdmontdt Contractor InQlali

Pe90 2of4 Oatt
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Peer Rocovoiy SuppoftSoMcos FecitUatb^ OrQenluUort (PASS PO)

IN WITNESS WHEREOF; the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date Kaba S. Fox
Director. Division for Behavior Health

Harbor Homes. Inc.

TITLE:
■Date

Adcnowledgement of Contr^lor's signature:

State of JJiUlilOiafiijutCounsr of. ^itelftQtX>A^ «"> i:3&!7
before the.underslgnecf officer, perionally appeared tmrpereon identified 8tx)ve. or
satisfacton'iy prt^en to be the'person whose name Is signed above, and acknowledged
that s/he executed this document in the opacity indicated above.

gnature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Nanv and Tide of Notary or'Justice of the Peace
WlLUAMC.UMmN

Jugilooofth«Petc»*NewKln93him '
ivty Comn^ssion.explras: < 2020

Ksrtxy rtorct*. Inc. Am^ndrveAtai Contnctor (nOlali:;

,Poat3cf4 D&Ia:



Ntw HBmpshhv Dep>itmont of Health and Human Sofvlcoi
Peer ftecoverySun>o^SefV(coaFacintaUn9Or9aAt0tlon (PASS FO)

The preceding Amcndmeht. having been re\newed by this office, is approved as to fo^,
substance, end execution.

OFFICE OF the FORNEY GENERAL .

Name:
ntte

Date

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendmcnl was appro™ by the Governor and
ExMuliw Counct) of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on:

C^ete of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

TiUe:

Hart)orHomc*,(rK. AmsfldmanlPI Comradpf tnWati:

Pago4of4 Dxta:



N«w Hsmp»htT% 0«p»rtm«m of HMtth %ra Human QarvWto
PA$S Focllitcth>9 Or^onbatfon Servtcos

ExhfUt A Am«ndre«nt91

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The- Contrsctpr wID submll a detailed descifptHsn of the language, aasbtsnoe

services they wfD provide to persons with (tmtod EngDsh prondeocy to ensure
meeningfu) to their progrems errd/or services wtthln ten (10) days of the
contTBd effective date.

1.2: The Contractor agren. that, to the esdent future legbtatlve action by the New
Hampshire General Court or fedefal or st^ court orders may have an Impact on
the Services described herein, the Stale /^ency has the rtghl to modify Scrvloe

/' prtortties and expendlura requirements under this Agreement so as to fichieve
compliance therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the con^ry. no services
shall continue after June 30. ̂ 17. and the Departmerit shaO not be Cable for any
payments for slices prffAtcd after Jime 30. 2017, unless end.untC'en
eppfoprtation for these services has been received from the .state t^blature end
funds cncurrbiefed for the SPY 2010-2019 biertAla

1.4. For the-purposes, of this contract, any r^erence to days Shan mean conseculNe
calendar days, unless otherwise denoted as business days.

1.5. For the purposes of this contract any referer^ to business days shall mean
Monday .through Prld^. excluding State Employee holidays.

1.6. The selected Vendor must conduct an assessment of Recovery Community
Organizations (RCOs) to'determine the level of. readiness for each RCO to
become accredited accortfng to the standards set forth by the CounoS on
Acaedftstion of F^er Recovery Support Servtoes (CApRSS).

1.7. The selected Vendor must coOaborate with' the CouncO on Accreditalion of Peer
Recovery Support Services (CAPRSS) to provl^ each RCO with assistance to
meet accreditation standards Get forth by the CA^SS.

1.6. The aelecled Vend^ must collaborate with'other PRSS technical asststarwe
assets to assess the capaclly of each RCO relative to the core and optional
standards defined by the Coundt of Accreditation of Peer Recovery Support

. Services (CAPRSS).

1.9. The selected Vendor rnjst wort wtth the Departmerrt and RCOs to determine
culturaBy appropriate process and outcome data coQeclion end analysis.

- 1.10. The selected vendor must provide program mana^ment and oversight as well aa
Implemenl a quaBty Improvement process.

'2.. Scope of Services • ^
'2.1. -The Contractor shad complete an acoedltation readiness scan of ell known

Reoovety Community Organlzstkvts (RCOs). statewide- The Contrsctor shaO:

2.1.1. Determme each RCO's ability to achieve Courtdl of Accreditation of
Peer Recovery Support Servtes (CAPRSS) accreditation.

2.'l .2; Determine each RCO's ability to open a Recovery Center.
•  . fit/

H»«erHwm.toc. CextS *1 CtftnevVCMv. *
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2.1.3. Oelenrnne eech RCO'e capadty to prwtte Peer Recovery Support
Services.

2.1.4. ^termlne each RCO'e convnttmcnt to becoming a-Mertlcaid provWef.
upon approval from the Center for MetfccaU end Medtoare Services
(CMS) of the esfabbshment of a 'Recovery Community Organtzation'
provider type under the New Hampshire Medlcald program.

i1.5. ProvWe a wrftten detefrntrwtton of RCO readtriess to the Oepartmcnl
- wtthln 5 business days of cornjpSethg the (mat RCO roadlnesa scan.

2.2. The Contractor shall enter into contrad with a minimim) of seven (7) Recovery
Community Organizations (RCOs) by June 30. 2017 and a mWmum of ten (10).
r6o's ̂  June 30. 2019. in b1 tessi five (5) different PubCc HeaOh Regions (See
Appendix 0 - Regionai Public Heatlh Networlcs). as approved by the'
Department in order to Incre^ capacity tor Peer Recovery Sopport Servfccs
(PRSS) within-each of the sdocted ten (10) Recovery Community Orger^zattona.
The Contractor Shalt

2.2.1. • Ensure that priority b pfven to PubOc Hcallh Regions that do not have
an RCO (See Appendix D - Regiondl PubQc Heahh NeWfc).

2.2.2. Provide a copy of each executed' RCO comract to the Department
within r/ve '(5) days of contract execution.

2L3. The Contractor shaD coBabcrate with Peer Recovery Support Services (PRSS)
tcchrticat assistance assets, .inctudihg. but not Crhlted to, CAPRSS, -to assess
each RCO for aocreditatlon readiness in accordance with the standard's set forth
by the CouncD of Accreditation of Peer Recovery Support Service (CAPRSS).
The Contractor shaff..

2.3.1. Cooipteto a written assessment of each RCO that Indicates the RC0*5
capadly lo.provide PRSS services artd current operationat statulards.

. 2-3.2. Develop a wrtflen plan v/ith.each RCO that Inciudas, but Is nc4 flmlled
to;

2.3.2.1. Timeframestorrieetlng CAPRSS eccredflatJon standards.

2.3.27. Goats that must be attained by each RCO In order to meet
CAPRSS accreditation standards.

2.3.2.3. Technical assistarwo needed for each RCO in pnJer to meet
CAPRSS goab. time' frame and technical assistance
accreditation r^ulremenb.

2.3.3. ' Ensure training and technicai assistance Wentlfiod In Section 2.3.2.3 b
provided to each RCO. M needed.

2.4. The Contractor shsD.collaborate with the CcimcU on Accredllstton of.Peer
Reco^ Support Services (CAPRSS) to provide asslstwce to each RCO to
ensure each of the five (5) RCOs meet ftccredttefion star^daids set forth by
.CAPRSS. The Contractor shaD ensure esststanoe Incfudes. but b not Bmlted to:

2.4.1. Personnel with theen>ertbe necessary to detlver high quaOty training.

H^twHoRMsirc. Ejiiba A Aewdfcets St Certnoar trffitt

PaetZtTft 0«®"s

JB/



N«w'Hta)pshlfe Depertment of Ht&m) and Human Sarvlcot
PRSS Fadlltating Orgenlatlon Servteet

ExMMt A AmendrTMnt 01

2.4^. Technlcai 3ssi$tance. as needed.

214.3.' OrgarUzaHona) coacMng.

2.4.4. Capacity development consuQation.

2.4.5. Adminlstrstive.sup^functlon's. ssneeded^
2:5. The Contrador. shall ooflaborate with the Center for EicceDorwe to devetop' and

provide traintng 89 wdf as technical as^lstanoe to RCOs In Older to:
2.5.1. Assist RCOs to fittafn accredltstnn.

2.5.2. P/ovWe technical-assljianco to RCOs to cnroD In MeplcaW upon the
eatablhhmcrt of 8'Peer Recovery Proflfam'provUef type by the New,
Hampshire Medlcald Program based on Federal Center for Madcaid

• and Mrfteare Services (CMS) and other Federal and State
requirements, which Include:

2.5.2.1. 42 CFR. Subpsrl B ( httpr/Awnvecffoov/eql.
-  . • MnfretrteYeECFR?ap^D^ai47{mbdOftQ8<tf?t^?mt^

016Wmcgtrveaf>«Ct42.4.45Saf=»PARTAtV»»KTMl flBn43 4
4S5,b ).

.  2.57.2. 42 CFR Subpait E ( httPrf/www.ecfr.oovfcQl-
.  ■ bin/rgtrl8vegCFR?ot>«&at>=2a147Q22bd0eQ89f2eff021Pba4

0ie30&mc=1njean"ao42.4.4S5.eaft^UBPART&tv=HTML V

2.6.2.3: 45 CFR i64.5l2(d) ( tTttp:tfV¥VQV.ecfr:QOv/cQl-blnflprt-
ldx?S10a07dOaSQ7d28ee03h2b09dfd7a2be33d2&mc»tfiifl&
node°9e45.l.1B4 lSl2amn=div81.

2.5.3. Ensure personnel providing RecoverySupport services (PR^ In
PCOs are Certified Recovery Support Worters (CRSW) arvJ meel the

.  CAPRSS recovery cdachlng stan^rds.
2.5.4. Assist RCOs to er^nd capacity to Include Peer Recovery Coschlng

' and Tetephonie Recovery Support Services.

23.5. Assist RCOs with ercpanding cspadty lo Include back ofQce supped
■fuhctior^s.

2.5.6. Assist RCOs In estab!lshir)o and a plan to sustain Recovery Cenltf.
2.6. The Contractor shaO utilize togistjcol support provided by the Center tor

ExccOenbe to facjlitate a Comrnunrly of Practice that aOows RCO administrators
and teaders to .establish end strengthen coSegiaiity, cobperab'on. coflaboratJon-
and hformal mentoring among RCOs. The Contractor shall*
2.6.1. Organize regular orvgotng RCO regional meetings wUh RCO

edminlstrstors and leaders.

Z67. EnsuTB meetings are vrWely advertised loan RCOs. statewide. .
2.6.3. Ensure that each subcontracted RCO engages In lls local Reglortal

Public Health Networt (RPHN) to partidpale in coriUnuum of care
development woili.

nrter Hamca. inc. EiMbQAA«unte>«/i#i
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. 2.7. The Coohectof shall assess the sbiHty of each RCO to open and sust^ a
Reoo^ejy Cofltef. The Contractor shaO:

-  2.7.1. Complete a vrhttenssseisment of eadv RCO that indicates each RCO's
readiness to open end usialrt a Beoovary.Center, that includes, but Is
not (ImAed to:

2.7.1.1. . The current oroankalbnal otructure of the RCO'a Reocnrery
C^Cer Of the F^'s resdlneM to open b Recovery Center.
BS appropriate.

2.7.1.2. The numbfSf of people that can be served by the RCOs
Recwery Center.

2.7.1.3. The RCOs financial vtabBty to suppbrt a Recovery Center.

2.7.2._ ' Worfc wlm each RCO to develop a wiWon plen to open a Reccwery
Center.

' 2.7.3. Ertsure tralnlnQ and technical assistance Is availatoe to Reopvcry
Center staff. which'maylnctiAto butts not Qmited to; .

■  2.7.3.1. Customer service training.

2.7.3.2. Peer Recovery Coaching Services.

2.7.3.3. Teiejrfiohe Recovery Support Servic^. •

2.7.4. Assist RCOs to secure funding from other pubHc and prtv8l9 sources to
ensure ongoing sustainabDlty of services.

" 2.8. The Contractbf shaD assist RCOs vdtb pcrtorrring beck office functions that may
include, but are not limited to: .

2.8.1.' Human resource fuhdions.

2.8.2. Flnanda) furtollons such as eccourrUng. bookkeeping and payrolL

. 2.8.3. Biffing functions.

2.9. The Contractor shaS'ensure b&rmg services are available to each RCO untB such
.  time RCOs can p^orm WIHng functions on ffwlr own. BiBlhg fund/orts shaO"

inctude. but are not Bmlted to: >

2.9.'l.. Accepting RCO invoices for PRSS services provided to cients.

'■2-9.2. Subrnming Invoices to the'Oeportmertt for dienl servtoes that are
provided .by the RCO end covered by furvds in this grant for
rDimbuTsemonl.

2.9.3. j Submitting'PRSS cUofltiervioes covered by Mcdlcald to the approprtate
managed careortianfaation (MOO).

2.9.4. .Olsburslng payments received from MCOs to the appropftate RCO.
2.9.5. - Accepting RCO Invoices for operational costs. '
Z9.S. Paytng RCOs for operattonal costs on a cost relmbursemcnl basis.

HaAaHoBW,!*. Ei«WAAm«nen«rt H Coitrw*'we»: IHdPaottflf* tvrrS
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2.0.7. Submitting RCO operational cost Invoices to the Department for
reimbursement.

2.10. The Contractor shaO cotoboTBte wflh the NH Center for Excellence lo:

2.10.1. Identity data evatuatiohatt^a.
Z.lOi. Imptemerd an evaluation process In each RCO.

2.11. The Contractor shall ensure technical assistance is available to ea^ RCO In
order to ooOoct, onatyeo oni utl&o dato. for tno evatuetion process In Section
2.10.2., which. shaO trvlude but b r)ot fimited to:

2.11.1. Demographics, which inctude but are not Qmlted to:

. -2.11.1.1." Gender
2.11.1.2. Age

2.11.1.3. Ethnid^. . ^

2.11.2. Prtmary drug of choice .

2.11.3. SAMHSA Natior^ Outcome Measures
(httDyAywwdasts.g8mhsa.QOv/dgste2mcfTT3morn3 anchl.pdn. wfiich
Indudo:

2.11.3.1. Abstinence

'  Z11.3.2. CMme and Criminal Justice

2.11.3.3. Emptoyment/Educstion ■"
■  2^11.3.4. ' Stability in Housing

2.11.3.5. Sod&l Corrhectedness

2.11.4. Relenaf Sovroe

211.5. Client Flnan^ Information
2.11.6. Healthcare Coverage Information
2.11.7. Substance Use Disorder treatment history
2.11.8. Substance Use Disorder or Co-occuntng Disorder rooovery needs
2.11.9. Partldpatbn in Commurrtty Services
2.11.10. Recovery capital

212 The Contractor wiQ wofit with the Departmant to identify the neid oohprt d RCOs
to prepare them (or CAPRSS aocredilalion.

3. Reporting Requirement
3.1. The Contractor shall provide 8 woH( ptan (or each slate fiscal year by July 1'of

that year. This work plan shall be sub^ to review end approval by the Bureau.
32. Report on.readtness (or ell oonsidered RCO. thai includes but is not fimtted toe .

32.1. Progress onlhe annual work plan.

HuterHctim.Xc. ExTftD AAnWiOMrAfi . Contnctar hStfc.
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3^2. Accrediistion leadineas.

3.2.3. Recovery center copacKy

3.2.4. Capacity to prov^r PR^
3.2.5. Comnritment to en^ng In Medicsld. upon approval from the Center for

MadicaU ar)d MedJcare Se/viceo (CMS) of lt^ eatabllshmant of a
^Recovery CommunlTy Organtzstion'provider type under the New
Kampahire Medicefij prooram.

33. The Contractor shaO provMe qusrterty reports that tncfude but ere not Dmhed ta*

3.3.1. Progress on the ennuaJ worh pt&n.

3.3.2. Progreas on each RCCawbrfc plan contponents.

3.3.3. •. tnfonmatlon on RCOtraimngs conducted. Including but not Bntited to.
type of training provided and number of attendees. .

3.3.4. tnformaUon regerding RCO meetings that occurred, so described in
Secbon 2.6. Inctuding but hot CmltEK} to. venue, number of attendees
and methods used to edvertltf meetings.

3.3.5. - Back offce support provided, as descried In Section 2.8.

3.4. The Ccntrector.shaQ sut}mh a final report to the Department that Includes, but is
rwtBmHedto:

3.4.1. Information oneach of the (tve (5) RCOs including the number of
indlviduais served during the three (3) months prfw to suboontracting
wfth the Contractor In comparison to the number of Indivtduats served '

• by the RCO from Aprill'^.to June 30^ of eoch subsequent year.

3.42. Hwr many an^ what type of trainings were prx>rided over the term of the
contract

3.4.3. The nuntocf of RCOs that are accredited by the CAPRSS.

3.4.4 . The number and location of each Recovery Center thai opened as a
.resud of contracted sorvioes.

3.4.5. The type of PRSS services delivered try each RCO.

3.4.6. Information rogarrflrig cEents served, which shaB Include but net be
ttmhed Id:

3.4.6.1. Analysto of diem data referenced tn 2.11 by InldMduaJ RCO.

3.4.6.2. Anaiysb-of aggregated cfient data

3.4.7. Gack OfRoe functions performed fbr each RCOs. which may indude but
b not Cmftcd to:

3.4.7.1. Human Resources.

, 3-4.7.2. FlnandaJ. ̂

i  3.4:7.3. ' Ciient billing to Other funding sources not in thb contract

KSAvHoa«s.hc Cun&idiM
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3.4.8. At] oontractctf work has started end any prt^gresatow^CAPRSS
accredtl^ton fof the f>exl cc^oit of RCOs ttentiTied to the bepartmem.

4. Delfverablea

4.1. The Contractor shaO provida copies of the executed corrtracts descrtbied in Section 2.2.
to the Department wfthin ttve (5) bush>es9 dejre of fulty oxecutlng the documents.

4.1.1. Each wb-corrtract and renewal is sub^ to 80AS review end approvsL

4.1.2. Each ̂ b^contracrehaO tnciude requirements for b{Uir>g BOAS (or cflent
recovery support services which sheO include:

4.1.2.1. C8enl uniquo (dentifter as deTuvd by BOAS.

4.1.2.2. - Only those clients with incomes below 400% of the Federal
■  Po\erty Level, who are not etiglbie for payment for these

services through another sou rco, e.g. public or |>rtvate
insurance, are cHglbie for payment

4.1.2.3. Agendes may bQ for Recovery Coeching. aooordbg to the '
New Hampshire Medicakf rates for Peer Reco^ry Support.

^  Incfivldual or Peer Recovery Support Gioup.

4.1.2.4.' Agencies may bSi for Telephone Recovery Support, Services
according to the New Harnps^re Medlcaid rates for Care
M^gement (CondnuGus Recovery Monitoring - CRM).

4.2. The Contractor shtfl.comptete an assessment, as desalbed in Section 2.3.1, tor each
of the RCOs - for e ihlnimum of five (5) assessments, within ninety (90) days of the
.oontradeffective date.

4.3. The Conbactor shall provide a-copy of each accreditation plan .described in Sedlon
Z3.2.. «^thln one hundred-hver^ty (1^) days of tfw contract effectNo date.

4.4. The C^tradc/ shaD provide a written Recovery Center assessment, as desdibod (h
* Section 2.7. fv each RCO. within one hundred^igh^ (f 80) days of the conirad
eftectf^date.

4.5. The Contracioi shofl provide the biding process and payment tuneb.ames for providing
.  the services in Section Z8, witftin one hundred-twenty (120) days of the dontract .

efiedJ^ date.

5. Milestones and Activities

tta^r
bCiostones

and AcfMtlos

Person Ro'aponattilo Date of

Compfetior),
In days ofter
contract

.effective date

Potential

Barrfereto

Achievement .

Plan to

- Overcome
. Barriers to

Actilovement

MSestone t:

Report crt the

degree of

Project Director 60(33ys No major •

barriers

entidpaled, as

Peter KeUeher

(President
endCEOlwni

Kutor H900, (nc EjMW A AewttMA

PtgaToro

C*«ilnctar toKtb:.

' OltK.

' ̂  ■
M3Min
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readiness of r  . .r 4(jig,.ts primariV a oversee this

esch"RCOIn ■ "ieetf-managed' • first etep of
the State of FOtask. One (he project.

NHfSee potential banter working

Section 2.1). . is Iflhe pereon closely with
setected to fill CCAR.
the Project .

Director role Is

not abts to atari

on time.

MtestQne.2; Project Oirectox and . 90Oaye Readiness/ability Cordractbr

tni^ CC^ in coUeboreUon of RCO to enter sKal] provide

assessment of g«h CAPRSS Irrto a TA to facDilste

each subcontract the contract

subcontracted agreement. neQotlations.

RCO- .

fhlitestooe 3: Prt^ed Oirectof and 120p3y8 If any of the There is Bcety

Oevetootnga CCAR in collaboration above tobea

wriltsnptan with CAPRSS .milestones take mmimum set

tor longer than of plan

acaedSalion - anticrpated, this oonrponents
• mSestone rr^ay epplicsble. to

occuratatoter ail RCOs that

date. can begin to
occur as a

coQective,

prior to formal
completion of

the IrulMdua)

plans.

Milestone 4; CCAR. Harbor Homes, WtMnSOdays The Contractor The

PfO\W)rt0 Welcoming Light,' NH btd upon shaO begin Cordractor

tralnlngand Cerder for ExceQence SutKontract providing shaO utUiz'e

technical and CAPRSS. TA Effective Date TA/lrainlng from web-based

assistance to provided by CAPRSS will (and during the beginning of and Ir^rson

RCOs be of no cost to Harbor the the pfocurement intftvldual arid

Homes or the RCOs. auboontractlng process. SpedHc group

process, as tralnlng/tA trah^gsto

needed) required for ensure

throughout the accrcdrtatlcn accesslbOity
fundliiQ period. rhay be delayed Issues are-

tfanyofthe eHminsted.

above Oiwslte (wfthin

Kvtor Homes. Inc. EiTM A Amen^nM e > CortfKtV Milts
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•

milfiston^s ere
delayed.
Additionalty. .
thero may be
arras albPfty
Issues that •

prevent some of
the RCOs from'

attending
trainings.

the RCO)

traintogsTTA
wiSalsobe
provided.

MnestoneS:
fnJbai

Project Diroctof and
CCAR

With'm 180 ■

days, find

ongoing
thereafter in

ficcoxdance

wHh Individual
ptans

forRccovefy
Cent&

redness

Mltestono 6:
Training
RCOsbOIin^
flmcdons

Project.
Coc^naloffAdmlnslrator
end HHI BacAend Staff

Within 120

•Days and
ongoing .
thereat

NKs

Implcrncnlation

planof r^ed
MedlcaW benefit

NofW-thlsis
0 barrier we

have no.
control over.
However, we

wDJworAwfth

Bi Stale

Primary Core '

provide pubGc
policy work
related to this.

M^ostone 7:

in!U&] Meeting
ofRCO.
Commumly of
Aacttee

Project Diroctof. NH
Center tor Exortcnoe

Within 60

Days (prior to '
the

procurement

process)

None Nortt

'mwiF fnc. &MM A A«««ndraer< #1

^•eaOdl

CoWKtsrirtfBtts;
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Exhibit B-4 Amondmont #1 Budget
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ComoMthaet

STATE OP NEW HANffSHTRE

department op health and hXjman services'

DIVISION OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

. m fLXA5ANT STRECr. CONCORD. KH OlMl
40)-27I«U l4t»45MM$KxLM2i

fax: TOO Actto: )'4a>-T)VnM ■ wwv.4hto.«t^

IXia^

May 5. 2016

Hef Excellency, Governor Mvgaret Wood Kaes^
and U)6 Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord. New Hamp^re .03301 Date

G&C Approved

Rom JP •.

REQUESTED ACDON

Authortre iho Department of Health and Human Services. Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Sconces
to enter Into an agreement with Harbor Homes, Inc.. (Vendor # ISS^Sd-BOOl). 45 High Street,.Nashua
NH 03060, In an arnoimt not to exceed $1,500,000, to fedTitate the devetepmenl and rwtworldng of
Peer Recovery Support Services available through f^covery Commurttty OrganiratiorTS In a mimmum
of five (5) Regional Public Health Regions in order to significantly reduce alcohol and drug misuse and
its sods), behavioral and health ccnsequertces statewide, effective the date of Governor Br\d Executive
approval iHrough June 30, 2017. 13 % GenCral Funds. 40% Federal Funds, 47% CXher Furxds

Funds to support this request are avallabte In the foQowir^ accounts in State Fiscal Year 20t6
and State Fiscal Year 2017, with abDity to ar^ust encumbrances between State Fiscal'Years
through the Budget Office If t>eeded and justified-.wlitKut further approval by the Gdvemor and
Executive (iqundl.

05-95-4^510-2389 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: DfV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC. BUREAU OF DRUG 7 ALCOHOL. SVCS, GOVERNOR
COMMISSION FUNDS

SFY Class/Oblect •Tltie Activity Code Amount

2016 102-500734 Contracts for Sodal Svc 49158501 .  . $2,820

2017 102-500734 . Contracts for Soda) Svc 49168501 $697,180

Contract Subtotal; $700,000

05-95-491610-2990 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICHS,.HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF.
HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC. BUREAU OF DRUG 7 ALCOHOL, SVCS, CUNtCAL
SERVICES

SFY CtaoaA)biect Thte Activity Code Amount

2016 102-500734 Contracts for Social Svc 49156501 $3,180

2017 102-500734 Contrecb for Soda) Svc 49156501 $796,820

Contract Subfotol;. 1600.000

Contract Total: $1,500,000
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EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request la to Ntiate. the creation of a statewide, geographicaUy (fiverse |
Recovery Support Services network by supporting the deveropmcnt of Recovery Con\rmir^
Oroanizallortfi In el Icb« ftve (5) of the iWrteen (t3) Public HcaKh Regtorrs. Ptts Recovery SupM .. .
Services are part of the Oepartmenfs-.ovcraD Btralegy.to respond to-substance misuse Issues that
negatively Impact New Hampshire citizens, families end corrvnunlttes. The need to resp^ to
substance misuse Issues Is heightened by the oplokJ epidemic, which caused 325 .opipid deaths In
2014 and to trendlr>g for a signlficani increase In that number for 2015.

. The vendor wlD conduct an assessment of Recovery Community Organoalbns to determine
level of readiness for each of them to become accredited according to ttie standards set forth by the
Counca on Accreditation of Peer Recovery Support Services and to provide peer recovery support
services. The vendor will enter into contracts with a rnlnimum of five (5). Recovery Community .
Organ'astions In different Public Health Regions. In order to;

•  Increase capacity for Peer Recovery Support Senrices within of the selected
OrganfciaVions.

•  "Assist the. Recovery Community Organizations to become ecaediled according to the
standards' set forth by the Council on Accredftatlcn of Peer Recover Support Services.

•  Ensure personnel providing Peer Recovery-Suf^jort Services In Recovery. CorpmunJly
Organlzatlofis are Certified Recovery Support Workers end meet the recovery coaching

-  standards set by the Council on Accreditation of Peer Recovery Support Ser^s.
The vendor wiQ provide Recovery Community Organizations with technical assislflnco to en/oO

in Modicaid as well as provide t)3ck office support lun^ona. The vendor will also assist RCOs vnth
estaWishsng a plan to sustain fteco^ry Centers.

This contract compelrtivety bid. On February 5. 2016 the Department issued a Request for
AppUcatiortt from non-profif organizations to facilitate the • development and. networkrng of Peer
Recovery Support Services^ The request was available on the DepartmenTs website from February 5, -
2016 through March'4., 2016. Three appfcalions were received and evaluated by a team of
Department employees with ertensive knowl^ge of the program requirements as well as significant
•business ̂  managemerM expertise. Harbor Homes. Inc. was selected as the vendor to provldo
services, the bid summary is attached.

The attached contract includes renewal language for up to four additional years, based upon the
Batrsfactory dcfivery of services, continued avellabifity of supporting funds, and Governor and Executive
Council approval.

It is the intention of the Department and the Governor's Commission on AlcoM arvJ Drug
Abuse Prevention. Treatment and Recovery (Governor's Commission) to ensure financial, operational
and techracai essistsnce and training that WiO support Recovery Community Orgsnliallons in each of
the'thirteen (13) Regional Public Health Networks In the state. There ere not adequate.funds avaiUbte
at this tin^ to meet the OepartmenTs and Governor's Commtsston'a full Intention to ensure, the
•financial, oper^ns and technical support and training to sujljport the Recovery Commur^ly
O'rgartollons. Th^ore. the vendor, through-this contract. wUI contribute to the Initial costs tor
developing afVJ ddivering Peer Recovory Support Services through -subcontracts .with Rocdvcry
Comnxnity Organizstions.

Recovery Community Organizations wOl be expected to loverege additions! public and private
resources ag^nst ̂  resources offered through the resulting contract, thereby increasing arxJ
sustaining the Peer Recovery Support Services beyond those funded through the State's contribution.



K* E*c*Ow>cy. Off»*oo» U»iV^ Wood
end Ow Honarsbit iMoAft CcuidT

Shodd the Govemof end Executive Council not appro^ this r^est. the Department's overeQ
strategy to respond to sutwtance mbusc issues will bo negalivety impacted

Area Sewed: StatevAJe.

of Funds 40% Federal Funds from United States Department of Health and<!«vleea ^^d ibu^arS Mental Health Services Admlnlslratlon. CFDA 491959 FAIN
Other Funds from the Govetnoda-Commission on Alcohol and Dnjg Alrusa

■prever\tion. Inlofvenlfon aixJ Treatment and 13% General Fonda..
in the event that the federal funds become no longer avallaWo. general funds not be

requested to support this pfogram.

RespoctWly submitted.

■ %
Katja S. Fox.
Director

yerey
Approved by:

J(
Commissioner

h^tori4f*t opp«n*i^ tr cititsas w #eWt»» iodaptpdinct/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations

Contracts & Procurement Unit
Summary Scoring Sheet . •

P#or Recovery Support Sonrtcee
(PRSSf

FefeiUtitlrtg Organtotlon

RfANamo

.01 e-OHHS-BOAS-GCF-PF A-<»

RFA Ntfnbee Reviewer t

Undy KePef. AdwWti

BIdilerName Pesf/^all
Mixtmum

Points

Actiitl

Points Lauren Ouarn. Proflf

1. ■ • •
Fedcap RehabUltative Services, (nc.

(00 3»

3.
Them a* Grtnley, Proi

MartJorHomes, Inc.
600 536 PelwReid^Admlnhli

' New Hampshire Alcohol & brug Abuse
Counselort Association 600 305 . 5.

<0 ■
600 0

6. '

5-0 600 0
-7.



FORM NUMBER P*37 (mHoa WIS)

Subject fT^S^FadHbrVrn

Notice: ThU»im<«ai»oa ill ef in «uctaneoUriiinbccoa» public opoowbmjUKKi to Oovtroor tadBitcSffiCwochbatVpnyti.
be ckirty itkotified to the t^cocy *0^ egrced to to wriaag prior to ngnieg the costncL

^  AGR£IM£NT 7
The Sti^f ofNew Huspshirt tnd (be Coatnd:oi hereby oartaally ogree o foQows.

general provosions

I. mgNTlPlCATTOW.
1  AceacyNene

DcpehDCQt A Kumu Scrvku
12 Suu A«c&cyAddrm
12 9 PUouai Socei

Cooc«rd.NH 03)01

U CcotzictorNioe
Hvbor Hocks, toe.

1.4 Ceotrsetoc Address

4$Hiib Street
Nesbus. NH 03060

IJ CeaBictorPbooo
^ ■ * - -

fntPUWr

(603)ni-3dl6

1^ Aceocnt Numbci

05-09M9lS10-29S90000>ld3.
4915&501
0 3^5-491S10-2 9900000-103•

49156501 •

1.7 Con^etioo Datfe

3uae30.2017

I.B PriceT imititleo

$1,500,000

1.9 CosCnciisgOScatorStsttAieocy
EricD.Botrlo

1.10 Sule Afcscy Te)c;AuaK Nuoba
(603)271.9551

l.n CaotcsctorSicrehsT I 13 NtcKsed Title of CoaonctcrSlfiDxtofy

■  PtW- \k\\tk^
Pfto«U/vV C6o

1.13 Actao-WtcnKoc Stiteof .Couiityof

SWk - ^ ..-.J
iMQto^tbep

Oo JlfcJini/ .bebretteQodenlgDcdcfBcer,pctsooifly
ptT^ tiK» tl» pasoa wboM pane is Mpcd to blocb 1.11. tod sciaoMalged Chit ? TipKiTy
hidiqied to blocfc 1.12. ;
1.13.1 Si^nroreofNotvyPubBcorJa^ofibePesce,

cadTSileof1.13.2

WXi
1.14 SatoAfEDcy

ttnaaqi

ami

jddi

orhtstlccofihePescey gr «u»ock vi .

Drte:^/"|lto ■

1.13 NtmoindTiae!y®^5SpncySig[tf^
p-VVi-tiy^v 70vA "Q '

.16 AfprofdbytbeHK Dcpertnrtttof AdaitoIjtriboii.Divi$tosofPa86ond (y»pfid6h/<l

Br
Director, Oa:

1.17

l.ll AppinmibytbeOovt

tb# ABomy Ooml (Form, Sub«tia« tad Eieealioo) (VeppiteebU)

By:

ExceSvcCm adl (l/eppilcvU^ ' f I
Oo:

page ] of 5



2. rMPWYMEN^OFCOPfTBACTOR/SEBVl^TO
B£ PESFOSIMED. "Rb Suu of New Kaajpabi/t, ocqdj
(hfou^ <b« *9^^ idcotilkd b block 1.1 C^Ute"),
owSaof idotiiScd b blodt IJ (Xoointton
todlbeCotfiictor daD pcfCDrnMbc wolSt Or »k of gooda. o*
boch. Idoitilkd Kttl mow pooeultrty de*a»bcd to tbctbcbctf
EXUIBrT A wbkb i» locotpoftted bereio.by rtCewoee
CSerrkca").

J. tJ?ECTTVE OATOCOM?LCnON OP SERVICES.
J.l Hotwithsuadiz^sivprovtsleo.oflhbA^ttmcDttoU*
cntfrvT. cad to the »ppeo*»l if be Govemar aadfaecutbo Couadl of tbt Sale of New H*o^ahifc» If
tscUcabtev tbb Afiteeanrt, ead »ll obUg^JJooi of ibc ptttksbemasto.iiaU become eflcclNe 00 be dele the Governor
erf Ececotivo CooacQ ipprove *hb A^rtemetl u indicstti m
bbw* MB. uataioosu^^ipTOvtl'urcqmrtd, towbicb ctie
(bcApcc^^ becooMeffective00thediteifae
A^onKti b liiscd by Ub S«e Agency ■* «bowQ b bUxk
I.U ("EfTccbwc Dcte'O-IflbeCootrtctoecoaaDewcjtbe SeTY{ce#j>Tior to6e

. EflccthePcic^iOScnrkt* performed by ckcCoctnotor poorto die Ef^w Dde idall be pofcroed ii ibc »oU ruk of ibc
.  Coobttfoei tod b the evcttihtilkbAgr««BeDt docs ool

cfCoctne. the Sote.ebftll bcve oo lUbOicy to the
Mibotd ItmrntiiM. «oyAUgttfoo m p*y

die Coitticioi for coy cods mcmtd or Scivloca pcrforoacd.
Coomctor oust complete lU Serrfcc* by tbe CoctptotoD Deie
ipccified b block i .7.

4. COWDTnONAL NATURE OP AGREEMW.
Wqewtdtfoedim cay provfatoo of.diii Agrtcoicnito tbe
«oanry, oH oHijrt^ of tbe Sate bcrcusder, (scludio&

'  'be enftria\aBcc ofpcvmccb beroiadcf. ere
«poa (be milabiUty ood cooilmted eppropKidoo

ef tiiti. Bfld m 00 cwM ibaU (be. Sue be loNclbr toy
payoaa berrodeT to excess of pjA eviIUbfc ejgwopriiUd
UmAt. bibeevcsaofircductlocvimsisidooof

" ^^tgwitted 6a*, (be Sate shsn have (be rigb ID wiihhoU'
pxymeoi tioiil cacb bods bcceime snQsbk. if cva. cod sbsH '

■ bsvetfcerijJiltotenmMtethix AgreenxotimasediHelyopoogivbs tbe Coonctor ootio of Mieb CExmiosiioo. Tbe Sate
stkiU oot he (cqiotd to tnosfcr funds fiom ifiy o<facr Kcouu
to tbe AceooDt identified to bl^ 1.6 m tbe evttd fiiods io tbsi
AecOQDi ere (Cdoced oroasvoikblo.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRIO: UbCTATlON/
payment.
5.1 Tbe coflttect price, oetbod of peymeot. ted tenu of
psymat tie nd mote ptftieuUdy deeoibed Ia
EXHIBrr B wbkb U tooorponitcd bereto by refeitocfc
5 J Tbe pxyoBOt by l^t Sole of tbe coobtct prke cbtQ be tbe
ooly cad (be ccogdele rexn^tncnsot to (be Coatrtctor for eU

of wbdDtef oatBTt innxTed by tbe Coctfricia io ibepcrfboBDce beteoi; tad cbcU be (be only tod tbe cooqdca
mm to (be Cootrtctdr for (be Sendees. Tbe Smc
thall biveoo IbbQity to (be CcKSrt^or otbcrihto tbe cmartd
pcfco.

P

5.J The Suic reserves the rlgbt to ofbet from toy tmo^otherwise peytble to the Cootnctor code this Agreeaseot
•'(hose Uquidited uDduots required orperotslled by NH ttSA
W:? through RSA B0:7< or eay other provisbo of tow.
5 i Notwiihstco^og toy proviiioo Intbls Agreemeoc to (be
comitry. tod ooCwUbrtuufiog uocxpectcd drcoiiwiBces, a
00 cvcol tbsH (be totil of tU ptymeot* tolborfrcd. or octuilly
cDsdc bemoder, exceed (be Prke Lhmalbo ui forth io NoA
l.l.

6. COMPLIANCE BY COJORACTOR WlTB LAWS
and REGin^nONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMDfT
OPPORTUNrrv. ^ j
6.1 locowectioo with tbe perfuUaifict of (be Scrncq. (be
CottBietor shill coopiy w(ib cQ sutaa. iw. repjlaJe^
sod ojden of Cederil. sa(c. couttty or osuteciptl tofboribetwhich te#06e coy cbVigation or di*y t^ (be CeotrttiOf.
bcluding, bai net Uau(od toj dv»l tod eq^ o^o^ty
Uwt. Tbb axy iocludo (bereqmrtmejitootnkioetioU^lids lod services to cttsurctbiipeiscfls with cetnfflumcxtiott •

voloo, btariog tod tpeub. cod
with, receive inftxTnxtloo ̂ (b. eoovcy

lofbrmciioD to tbe Cooinctor. In tddit»a, (he CootratorfbtU co(s;5y wilb tU tppUdblc copyngbt ttws.
6.2 During (be tma 0 f (to Agreeaiart, (he Cootrtctof ibaD .
ooT discrinilBste igxlftxt cogiloyee* or sppljcosts for
eoiployn*ni becssse-of rtcc, col«. rdij^ ««td, tge. ccx,

sexo^ drteouUoo, or pxdooxl eopo sad wiU tike
elTirmstive tctioo to prevcot such' dlserlmbittioa
6J IfthisAgircoMotls fbndedieiaypanbymooitsoflbc
United Suiea, (be Cootrtctor cball cot^y wi(b tU the
pfovuloos of Executive Order Na tlJAdC^uxl
Eopkyroept Opportaafty^ u cu^lcmniicd by (be
(cpilsSdosof tie Ufiited Sato Depctxbcot ofUbor (41
CF JL Pat 60), sod tritb coy r\fie», rtgdctiofls od gaidriinesu (be Sots of Hew Hsopshire 0 6e United Sates iouD to
t>ryVm»ni ibcic fcylttioos. Coootctw ftntbe* tgrea to
persdt (be Suic ot United Std0 ccceu to toy of tbe
Controctor's bodu. feeofd^ cad trxourti for (M.purpexeof
eseertiimng cooplitoce with cll ndes. regultooos cod orders,
end the coveocsti, tenos cad coodin'ons of this Agrccmeni.

7. PERSONNEU
7.1 Tbe Ccairtctw.ibcD si iu own expense provide dl
peisoeael octcsssy to peffcrtn (bo Services. Coolrtaoc

■ w«Ttta(laltnpeooo*lengifiedm (be Services sbsll be
quilifierf to pcrfcrte tbe Setvtees, tad ̂  be prapcdy
Uceotcd sod otherwise sutboriicd to do so oado cU wTTdde
bwt
12 Uolds otberwise cotberixed to wtWag, dnriog (be term or
tbli Agreement, sad for» period of fix (6) moatfai tfto (bo
Coogiteioo Dste toWock 1.7. (be Cotlrteiof ibsO ooi bbt.
sad sfasJl ttit permit soy jubconbtctwwolhcrperMO, firm or
corpdmioD wbb wboo it U enjsgcd b c combioed df^ toperform .(be Services to bir^ cnypcrsoo who Uc Sum

K ofBdsl, who b outeriiJly involved b the
sdmioistraion or ptiCw miBW of (bis

tge2of4
Coatactof Initiall .

DbteJmB.



Agrarscot TUi provUios (hiU sunrive tenniDition of this
ApoQDCsL i
73 Cootncting O(Bc0 tpedfiol hibtoek 1.9, or his or
beriucccttor,ihlQh«teSuie'srcpccKTitaUvc. lothce>«nt
of toy <l>3putc coocahlai (be ifitcrpTUiioQ 0 f Ihl s A greetDets,
(be OosfiwtSfiA Office's ibill be BotI for ihe Sutc

a. EVETTT OF D£FAULT/n£MEOIES.
t.I Any ooe or aoK 6f (be foflowtm tct> or offii teioos of the
Coenaar sbell ****"'■'*'**■ cs evcst of defish bemtoder
C^«a!0fDe£tuJ^:
II.1 fuhffetoperC^cbeScmcetttturftCterilyorco
id*4ulc^ .
LlJblhre^iiitnsttQynponrcqulnd bemador. tod/or
8.13 CDlare to pctfqro my otbci coy^jaoi, txrm or coaditioa
of (hll AgnemcnL I
83 l/pOD (be ocasTcsce ofmy of Oe&oit, the Stete

.cay oks my out, er oat, or of tbe foUowmi ictioxa:
83.1 pwe (be Coetra^ ■ oTincD fiosice ipedjying (be Evcsi
ofDefiultudreiquiri^ixiDberaaed]odwtiIuji,btbe- ■
rtococe of i greater dl! later ycdficaiioa ofdiDc, thirty (30)
days Boo the due of iheisticc; tod if (be Bvcat of Dc&oh b
fiot tiocly (tnxdjed, tonaixBte Ibb Aytemcsi, effective two
(2) days ificr givioi tte Coomctor qotke ofUrmiiuUaa;
833 (be CootxiAor a vrfon ootice spectfyiog (be Eveoi
afDc&itlt-cail iu^etdiog'tU paynculs to be oade. coder (hit
Apcameat md order^'lbas 6e pertioa of tbc coonct pries
wtwi vooH oth^E^ ■ccnie to (be Cootroctor durias (be
period Boq the"dm 'df nxb ootice udil »ocb time as the State
ddotntoer (fast dr Cootiaaor bis cored tbe Evtm of Dcfbb
ihiD ocva be paid to (be Cootractfr.
133 set off agtiast my otbtrobBgatiods the Sate oay owe to
(he Coooactof my dmiagb tho Sate mffera by rcisoe of aoy
Bvml ofDeCialt; aodfoc
13.4 tttst (he AgjceaieBl as breached ud puiue any of ill
ruDodiea at taw or n equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCSSStONFIDENTlALiry/
PaZSEaVATION. .
9.1 As tucd to this ApcctDcat, the word *dia* abiD caean all
iflfdnnidoo *pd tVmji dcvelywd or fhbfttpH tbe
pex&nnsDce o^ cr aoquirad or developed by reaaoit.ef. thb

hm nrt rmTltfrf tft' lH ffpftrtS.
fOo. focaolifi, aiflvcyi, mtpa, cbuts, aoood rtcotdiogs, video
reconliass, pictoria) rf{>roductioas, duwiop. aoalyaca,
gnfijc trpmnurtoai, coapotp pTOgraina. oootputer
prtotootx ootes, kOcr^ actrwiodi, papers, asd docapeott,
aD wbctbcr
93 AH dia aod any pioputy wtiidi has beta recdvcd from
(be Sttte or purchased with foods provided for (bal purpose
ntvte* this AgrccaeiB.'Shail be (be property of (be 6tate.aed
diril be-RtumBd to tbe Sate tyoo dcoazid Of cpoe
tcnmsaljosoftbli Agktmttfl (br myreasofi.

■ 9.) ConfidestUCty of data (ball be govexoed by NJi RSA
cbaptcr9i«Aor(KhcruIatlodtsw. Disclosure of daa
ceqabta prior writteo ̂ rrovtl of tbe Sate.

Plge

10. TERMINATION. Id tbe evmt of m uriy tamisstioo of
this Acreemeot for my rcuop o(ber Usap tbc com^etjan of tbe
Services, (be Costrtdor sball deliver (0 (be Cootnctiag
OfBcer, oo(Iiier(hu nflets (15) days afiadte date of
tcnnioitioo, a report CTcnobatioo Report^ dcxcribng in
dctail.all Serrites perforracd, tod the cootisct pria ctmtd, to
etrd tncZudiag tbc date of Icnnioetioo. Tbc fbm^ rdrjcci
fsaner.-caateitt. aod Dusdtcr ofcopies of tbe Tfttmsatioo
Report dtaD be idcrrtiral to (hose'ofaayFiaa] Report
described la (he toacbed DCKlBrT A.

11. contractor's RELATIGN to tee state. Is
the'p^rfortBuxeoftbia Agieemexd (be Cootnctor b baO
re^ecu ac bdcpendeot couo actor, gad U odlbcr as igeci oar
ascisployteoftfaeSUlei. Neilberlbc CtaoBictDroormyorUj
oSccrs, es^oytes, ageots or tmilbaa iball have utborby b
btod the Stm or receive toy bcaefrts, workxn* corapniiattoo

■ or other emoiiuoests provided by the Sate to hs eapbyiXL

12. ASSIGNMEfaffieLEGATICN/SUBCCNTRACrS.
Tbe Corttradorihali oot issi^.orcthmriK bamfcr my
istcrest is this Agjecebcat wHbout the prior written notioe and
coeacotofihsStite. NoBsofAoServlceoihaQbc '
tubcantractcd by (be Costraciar witbooi the prior wrioea
ootiOB asd coQscot of (he State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Tbc OmrrKtor shaU.dcfad,
iodannl^ and boU tiumlcsi the Sate, its officers aod
etaplo)fccs, from aad agaiost aoy and all lodKd suSbcd by (be

' State, its officers cod'cQqdoyccs.md my atd an ctsiffis,
litbl]it{aorpe&iI(lcsaS3ertcd>gal&st(beStste,{)iofficers' .

• asdeapbyca.byoroobct^ofatiypersoo»oosccoostoC ^
based or renddng fro^ arisng oat of (or wbieb tnay bo
cUlaed to arise out of) the acts or oedsrioos oft^
Coatractor.' Notwi(bstmdieg'(be farcgoittg, ootfaiog bath
eoQtixoed shall be deemed (o coostiintD a waiver of tbe
tovcreigo mmmnity of tbc State, which iouiiiaity is hereby

-  reserved to (be State. This eovmaatioparagr^ 13 ifasD
survive tbe taminatioa of this Agree u*nt

14. INSimANCZ.
I4.I Tbe Cofitnctof shall, at ha sole etqteose, cbtiis aad

a fyfte, tsd ihill reqotTc ioy fidcoatrtctor or
asrigoee to obodo sod oaintais Is Cbtee, (be foQdwtng
issuriDCt:
M.l.l conaprchcnstvegcacret liability iostvaoceagainst all
claims ofbodOyuunry, death or property daflwge, b atsouDts
of cot leas than SI ,000,000ptr ecatneoce aod $2,000,000
aggregise: and
14.13 special cause of Iocs covoigc fonn oovcrbg all
pfopg^ anbjcct to mbparagr^tb 93 bema, to an amctad ocd
less than 8044 of tbe whole'repUcemest value of (be property.
143 Tbe polictes described b cubpart^^ 14.1 bcrebsban
be OD policy forms aod codorsetxnta ^rprovcd (or use in tbe •
State of New Hi ayshire by (be Nil. Depoftznecl of
tosuruce, asd tuucd by iosurers h'censad is tbe State oTNew
HatEpsbire.

3 of 4
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lO Connetof ibtO finahb to U» Cootnciiaf OfRcci
idealifiediobbdi l5.orbborbcrtoccc»of.accxlificite(i}
j-Tuwjn*^^ (or iQ izaunoct rt^uind under chiiAsrcemcct
Contisetor cbtll tlio fumiib to ibo Cootnctios
Idcdlfied ta Uodt 1^, or ta or bcr succosor, coti6cstc(i>) of
tzaureee for tU reaeii^i) orifistiitooo rcsuutd ooder tha
Apcoscat u hter (bts (30) d*7» priot lo ibe explntioo
date of cac^ of (bo infftrtfyr potkia, ecitiQcaie(i) of -

tad my mwwU (bcrtof d»)l be stiacbcd ti«
incorporiled bstio by rtfimicc Eacboe2t)ficat^*)of

ihill a cliuio rtijabhifi (be Utsurer to
Cottnctioj Officer hlcobfied io btoek I or bU

» orbpiaceettor,®oteM(banllibtyOO)d«yipriprwrtneo ••
ootjcc of caoccBatioo or nod ificatioe of the policy.

15. WOUCEAS* COMPENSATION.
15.1 Ibb ifTWJatot, (be Costoctor Afrea,
ccrti5c< tsd wtnsali (bat (be Cootnttor b te coaiplbacc ur((b
or cccmpi fi«o»tbe rojuircmcob oTNJK. ASA cbspta ZSl*A
pJPwter*' Coayewttftor"/
tX2 TotbeateoilbeCaotnctor aubjccttotbe-
.luimi upcpti of RH. SSA chap(cr.'2l I -A. Cootractor ihrn

asd requin soy rxAeeetntior pr uiigccc to tccure
and p^rnust of Wodccrs* Cooptoulioo io
coateetlon wilb sctmtxs wbieb the penoo proposa to'
(Bdexoke pvTvast to thb A$rcenfloL Ccatrscior.cball
fkiraub-tbeCoatriOUBf Officer tdotiScd to block 1.9, orhb
crbcrsixttssor.proof ofWortcn' CoQpeasatioe m tbe

deacrfted toRK. RSA chapter 2tl*A lod my
ippGcabIc reaewsQt) tbereoC ^ stuebtd sod tre
iacorporstod bertio by ttfercocc. -The State ahaU not be

.  rupoostblc for psjfCDcnt of utf Worbm* Compemtion
|Hwiiiut«r or for toy o(ber citiD or beatfii ftf Contncior, or
my euboacosdor or myloycc of Cocztnetor, which might
vise Ststo of New Hanpshire Worlxts

laws In cockoectioo with tbe pcrfonoaoa of the
Scrvicca uoder thb Agreeoaot

16. WAIVEB OF BAEACB. No fidlurc by tbe Stats (0
enforce soy provuloos hocof after my Bvcot ofDclbuli thall
bedcenttd awaivoof ili rigbu with regard to that Evcsi of
Dcfoolt. or toy rtdBcqucni Evedt of DcfaoU No capreaa

'failure to caforce aay &reot ofDc&uU (htU be deemed a
wtho.of tbe right of the State to cofarce each aod ill of ihf
pcowbioQS hereof opoo loy fiuther or ofoer Evcfit of Oefauh
00 (ha psit of the Cootracior.

17. NOnCC. Asy ootice by a pany hereto to ibc echo pairy
iball be deciBed to bsve bees duty delivered or fivto at the
tins of mailsig by ccrtl6ed imQ,-pei|lag8 prcpeid, lo » Uoited
Stsici Post OfScs wUretscd to ibe parties St (be addmaa
ipvcn b blocfca IJ md 1.4. hetei&

lb. AMENDMENT. Thb Agrccmest may b« aoeaded.
wvivcd or dbeharfcd ooiy by m initrusent b •rilisf itgDtd
by (he psrlkt hereto aod ooJy a^ approve] of rxb
' ameodmciit. w^hrer or difchargc by the Goveieor sfld
EMOjtiv* CeoeQ of (ha Suie ofNew Kin^thirt unices oo

mch approval ia requutd tmder the cbcuinsUocca punumt to
State taw. rule or. policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TEAMS.
This AgreesKQt ihall ba cooctnxd b aceordana erilh the
bw3 of (he State of NewTUopshbc, and'b bbdbg 1900 lod
burcs to the bcaefit of (be parttca tod tbeb rcspcctiw

afwt r*"c^ The wording oscd b this Agreestcot
ia the wordbg by tbe psrtim to express tbelr lonttaJ.
tttcot, asd 00 rrdc of corutructioo *cban be applied ageiost or
b fovor of my party

20. THIRD PARTIES. Tbe psrdo hereto do oot inteod to
bcacfii any (bird paztia and (bis Agrccmezd thsU oot be
coatnted b coofcr any such beoc&L

21. KEADINCS. Hw bcstfings (hiwighoef the Agncsfflcet
are for r^nence purposes oaly, aod (be words coobmcd
(bcreb ihaU b do way be held to 0plain, tsodify, tnqdify ot
aid b (he isterpretslioo, coastroOtlm' or messbg of tbe
pftrvmoniofthii AgrcctaeBL

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. AddiOorat proviaiona let '
forth b (be stiacbcd EXHIBrt C art iocoiponted boeb by
rdereocc.

. 23. SEVERABtUTY. lolbeevcotmyofthepeovtsbasof
this Agrcezneot arc hdd by a court of cocpftcnt juiisdictioo to
be eootrvry to any state or fodetsi liw, (he icaiaiabg
provitbas cftba Agreemcsl will masb io ftiD force aod
effect.

24. entire AGREEMENT. ThU Agreatseot, wtscb iBsy
be b • inuuhcj of counterparty each of whtcfa stsll
be u) ori^Qsl, conitltutes the ctdtrt Agreemcot^and
uadcntaodbg between (be pixties, and lupcnedo aD prior
Agrceroeats and undcntaodiogi relating bcfflo.

Paged of d
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NtwHtmprtitw DcpwtmonI of'Health and Human SanHcoa
PRS8 FaemtBting Oroanlxatlen BeivlcM

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1 1 Tho Contractor will submit a detafled description of the t^uage essistenceservices thoy wlD provWo to pereono wtth limited English proftde^ to ertture .

moanlngftJl eccos^ to their'pfograma end/or servlcea .wtthln ten (-10) days of the .
contract effective dsle.

12 The Contradof agrees that, to tha' eitent future Icglslatlvo action by l^w
Hampshire General Court or federal or slate court ordarB may have
the Services descrtoed herein, the Stale Agency has the right to.modify S^Jdce
priorities aruJ expenditure requirements under this ̂ reemcnt so as to ochlevo
oompBanoe thore^Mth.

1.3. For the purposes of this conirad. any rtfennoalo days shall mean consecutive
caierxlar days, unless otherwise denoted as business days.

14 For the purposes of this contract eny reference to business days ahaD mean
■ Monday through Friday, exdudlng Stale Emptoyoo hoTidays.

1.5. The selected Vendor must condJd an assessment of Rewvery
Oroankaflons (RCOs) to delerrhlno the le^l of readiness for each RW to
become eccredited eccording to the standards set forth by the Counca on
Accreditation of ̂ er Recovery Support.Sorvices (CAPRSS).

1 e The selected Vendor must conabcrato with the Council on Acaedjlafion of Pw
Recovery Support Services (CAPRSS) to provide each RCO with assistance to

■ meet eccreditotion standards set forth by Uie CAPRSS.

'  1 i The seledod Verwlor must coDaborale with other Pf^ technical Ksbtance
assets to assess the capacity of each RCO relative to the core and opOor^-
standards defined by the Councfi of Accreditation of Peer Recovery Support
Services (CAPRSS).

.  1.8. The selected Vendor rrwst worti with the Department er*d RC^ to detannineculturally appropriate process and outcorrw data collection and analysis.

1.9. The seiocted vendor must provlds program management and wersight as vreD as
implcmenl a quality. Improvement process.

2. Scope of Services
Z1. The Contractor shall complete an ecaeditation readiness scan of en Kn^Recovery Community Organirations (RCOs), statewide. The Contractgr Shan.

2.1.1. Determlno each RCO'e ability to achieve Councfi of Acaedilatlon ofPeer Recovery Support Services (CAPRSS) eixreditallof^.

7X2. Determine each RCO'seblDty to open a Rocovery Center..
2.1.3. Determine each RCO's capacity to provide Peer Recovery Support

Services.

♦tiAorltwce.be.

Pt9»1crB
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Ntiw Hampshi™ Department of Health and Human Sorvicea
PRSSFcdIttstingOrBanlMtton Saivlcea

cxniDU A

Zf4 Dotefmfne each RCO's commttmcnl to becomlnQ a Me^caW provWer.
UDon appravaJ from the Center for Medlceid and Medicare
(CMS) of the establishment of a 'Recovery CommunUy Organization
provider typa'under the Nbw Hampshire Medlcald program.

2 1 5 Provide a written determination of RCO read'tnoss to Department
v^fU^ S.busirwss days of comptettng the final RCO readiness .scan.

!> 9 Th« Coti\ntiDr shafl enter Irdo contract vdlh a minimum of frvo (5)
(RCO.)in fiv. (6) dW«»nt Public

Appendix 0 - Regional PubQc Heanh Networks), as. aPP"^ cSJllt
Oapartmenl. In order to tnooaso capacity for Peer

.  fPRSS)wnhIn" each Of the setectod five (S) Recovery Community Organizat^s.
The Contractof shall:

2.2 1 Enwro each Reccrvery Community Organization (RCO)
.dJfrai^ PubJlc Health Replon (See AppendU D - Regional PuWlc
Hearth Network).

2^.2. Provide a copy of each exoCuted RCO contrect to the Department-
within five (5) days of conlraci execulton.

2 3 The Contractor ahali coBaborate with Peer Recovery Support (PRSS)
technical osslstarKe assets. Irttludng. but n« limited to, CAPR^. to ass^
each RCO for eccredttaHon readiness In accordance wjlh the al^ards ̂ fw
by the Councfl of AccfodHflUon of Peer Recovory Support Services (CAPRSS).
The Contrectof shall:

2.31 Complete a vwltten assdssment of each RCO that Indicates ®
capacity to provide PRSS services and current operational stendards.

2.3.2. .Develop a.wrftten plan with each RCO that includes, but is not limfted
to:'

2.3.2.1. Tlmcframcs to meclmg CAPRSS accredilatJon standards.
2.3.2.2. Ooels thai must be atlairved by each RCO in order to meet

CAPRSS accrodrtatJon standards.

2.3.2.3. Technical assistance neaded for each RCO h order to meet
CAPRSS goab. lime frarne and tschrdcal assistance
eccredrtaUon requirements.

2.3.3. Ensure tralnirig end 'ti»rfnictf assistance Identified in Section 2.35.3 b
provided to each RCO, as needed.

2.4. The Contnicto. shall coneborate. wtlh the Council onAcxrodit^ ̂ Peer
Recxwery Support SeMcea (CAPRSS) to prevkte ®
ensufe each of the llyo (5) RCOs meet aecreditaton
CAPRSS. The Cortrootof choll ensure assistance Includes, but Is not Urrmea ta
2.4.1. personnel v/lh the expertise necessary to deOver high Quality training.
2.45. Te^nlcaJ assistance, es rwedod.

2.4.3. OrgonlZBtiontf coaching.

Bc«eertt«nteM
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cxmoDA

2.4.4. Capectty development consuHation.
Z4 5 Admlnbtralive aupporl funcOona, ea needed:

23 -mo Conwctof Shall collaborate with the Center to develop find
provide traming ea wefl oa technlcal aasiatance tp RCOs In order to.
Z5.1. AssbtRCOstoottalnecaedliation.
252 Provide tachnlcol assbtance to RCOa to emoll In Medlcald wm

eatabOshmeitl ot a "Peer Recovery ProQiam provldet type by l^ Naw
Hanvshlre Medlcald Program based on Festal ̂ ter tor Me<^
andMedlcare Services (CMS) and other Federal and State
raquircmenls, which IncJudo:

ZSil 42' CFR Siibport B (
^^fi^Q&n)c=tniel^=pt42.4.4S6&r=PARTfttY=HTMl45P42.1«

. 455ib).

2522 42 CFR. Sebpart E (Kifv>rdUrUwftgCFR?QO=ARiPg2Hl47022hd0c989t2effD2f0b»4
p^pffl&mc=truflaf|=si>42.4,4S5o&f=Si;BPART&hP'HTft<U)-

2 5J3. 4S CFR, 164312td). (i^7SlD=07dflflS07d2Beetab2b09dtd7n2hf3?'Ptmg=tnje&
nrvle=aD45.1.t64 1S12&ron^dlv8 )■■

2.6.3. • Ensure personnel providing Peer Sup,^
RCOs are Certified Recovery Support Wortcers (CRSW) and meet the

V  CAPRSS recovery coacJtng standards.

2 54 Assist RCOs to exparxl capacity to Include Poor Racwery-CoacNngand Tetephorw Recovery Support Services.

2.5.5. Assist RCOs v»ith e*partding capacity to include back office support
furwtons.

■  ' 2.5.a Assist RCOs bi esta^hing and a plan 10 sustain Recovery.Center.
2 6 The Contractor shall utiBze toglslJcal support pridedEvcenence to facfiitale a Community of Practice that allows R^

and teaders to estabDsh and strengthen coHegofity, coopafation, coSaborBtlonand Infomuri mcntortng among RCOs. The Contractor ehaD:.
2.6.1. Organize regular on-going RCO regional meetings with RCO

edmtnistratofs and leaders.

2 6.Z Ensuremeetinga are widely odvcrtl^ to ail RCOs. etaiewWe.
263 Ensure that each subcontracted ^0 engages In^tocai Regl^'  PuWic Heatth NetvKxV (RPHN) to participate In continuum of care

development work.

The Contractor shall assess the BbiDty of each RCO to open and sustain a
Recovery Center. The Contractor shaD:

2,7.

Stfe* Senates

Ptg»^d9
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27.1. GompletB a vrritlen essossmont of each RCO that indicates each RCp's
feadlness to open and sustain a Recovery Center, that Indudea, but b
not Ilmtted to:

27.1.1. The current organliatlonal structure of the RCO's Recowy
Center of the RCO's readiness to open a Recovery Center,
B9 eppropriate.

2.7.1.Z The .number of p^opb that can be served by the RCO's
Recove^ penicf. *

2.7.1.3. The RCOs^ndelviabOity to support D Recovery Cemer.

• 2.77. Worit with each RCO to develop e wrtttw plan to oper> a Recovery
Center.

2.7.3. Ensure training end technical assistance b. available to Recovery
Center staff, v^lch may incfudo but b noi Crnlled to:

2.7.3.1. Customer service training.

2.7.3.2. Peer Recovery Coaching Senrlces.

2.7.3.3. Telephone Recovery Support Services.

2.7.4. Asslst-RCOs to secure funding frtjm other public and private sourw to
ensure ongoing sustainablBty of servfces.

2.8. The Contractor shaD assist RCOs with performing back office functiofB that may
.  Include, but are not b'mited to:

2.8.1. Human resource funcdons.

287. FtnandaJfundtarasuchBSBCcotmllng. bookKoeplngandpayron.

2.8.3. • BiDlng functions.

2.B. The Contractor shall ensure WlUng services ere avaJieWo to each RCO unta such
time RCOs can perform billing functions on their own.' Bilflhg fundJons shaB
include, txrt'are not limited to:

29.1. Ac^pUng RCO invoices for PRSS services provided to clients.

2.9.2 Submitting Invoices to the Department for cflent sendees that are
provW.ed by the RCO end covered by funds In Ihb grant for
relmborsemcrt.

29.3. Submlttir^ PRSS cDenl sefNtees covered by MedlcaW to the appropriate
managed care organlzstion (MCd).

29.4. OsbuTsing payments received from MCOs to the appropriate RCO.
29.5. Accepting RCOinvolces for operational costs.

29.6. Peytng RCOs for operatione} costs on e cost reimbursement basis.
2.9.7. • Submirting RCO operational cost Invoices to the Department for

raimbursemcnL

210. The Contractor shall coOaboratc with the NH Center for GxceDwo to:

K*/torHemM.^ Scope e# Seririw OonBtrtsr WStf*:.

p«9D«ors
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2.10.1. Identify data cvaluaUon cfllerte.

2.10.2.. Imptemcnt an evaluation process tn each RCO.
2 11 The Contractor shall ertsuro technical assistance is ̂ ila^

.  order to coOect analyze and uliUM data, for the ©valuation prowss In SecUon
2.10.2.. v«hich shell Indud© but ts net Dmlted to*.
2.11.1. Demoorephlcs. wtiWi Indude but ore riot limited to.

2.11.1.1. Gender

2.11.1.2. Aqc

2.11.1.3. Ethnicity

2.11.2. Prtm87 drug of choice

2.11.3. -SAMHSA ' National «^i rAnfhttD:f^vwwdfl^^l5,sa^^hsa.fl?Y/da5^s2/nnrm/r^0^r^s pttghl.PtffV
ioclud©:- •

2.11.3.1. Abstinence .

2.11.3.2. Crime and Criminal Justice

2.11.3.3. ErndoymenVEdufcation •

2.11.3.4. Stability in Housing

2.11.3.5. Social Connectedness

2.11.4. Referral Source

2.11.6. COentRnandallnformalion

.  2.11.6. Heatlhcare Coverage InformalJco
2.11.7.. Substance Use Disorder trcainwd history . ..

2.11.8. Substance Use Disorder or Co-occumng Disorder recovery needs
2 11.8. Participation In Cornmuruty Services
2.11.1 b. Recovery capital

2 12 The Contractor wffl v«wK with the Department to idenllfy the rysxl cohwt of RCOsto prepars Ihcm for CAPRSS accroditallon.

3. Reporting Requirements
3.1. Report on readlnitss for all considered RCO. that tncfudes but Is not limited tcx

3.1.1. Accreditation readiness.

3.1.2. Recdvery center capacity

3.1.3. Capachy to provider PRSS
■  3.1,4. CommllmenttoenroainghiModlc^.^Wroj^^

MedlcakJ and Medicare Services (CMS)'Recovery CommunftyOrganlzalion'provWef type under the Now
HampsWfo Medlcald program. .ftU/

CcrmvWJUsJll
Harto» >era«». Inc.

.p3tK.
p«g»Sor»
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3.2. The Connector shafl provide quarterty reports that Inctude. but ere riot Oro^ to:
3.2.1. Progress on each RCO'8 work plan components.
$2 Z (n/ormaUon on RCO trainings conducted. In^dir*9 boi not UmRed to.type qt training provided end r^umber of etierwccs.

3 2 3. Information regarding RCO meeUngs that ocojrrad. M dosorto^ 'Section 2;6. Inrfudlng but not Itmlied to. vono©.m^b«f of attendooa
. end methods used to edvortise meetings.

3.2.4. ■ Beck offloe support pfovWod. as described In Scctkxt 2.0.
33. ̂ The Contract shall submit e final report to the Department that indudos, bat b

not Bmfted to:

3.3.1. InfonwUon on each o( Ihe five (5) RCOe 2,.,,.
Individuals wrved during the 3 months pnor to ̂ it)Contractir^ w^thoConlractof in cdmperlson to the number pllndfvtduals served by. the
RCO from April 1. 2017 to June 30, 2017.

2.2.Z How many end what type o( trainings were provided ovor.theteimofthe
contract.. '

3.3.3. • . The number of RCOs that are accredited by the CAPRSS.

3.3.4. The number and location of each Recovery Center that opened as a
result of contracted services.

3.3.5. The type of PRSS services deOvered by each RCO.
3.3.6.- informaUon regarding cilenls served, wfiich ̂ aH include but not be

limited to:

3.3.6.1. Analysis of cficnt data referenced in 2.11 by Individual RCO.
3.3.6.2. Analysis of aggregated cHent data

3.3.7. Bock OfTice functions performed for each RCOs, v4dch may liKlude but
b not Gmlled to:

3.3.7.1. Human Resources,

3.3.7.2-. Rnanclal.

3.3.7.3. Client bi!Br*g to other funding sources not In this corrtracL
3 3 0. All contraOor work that has started end any progress towardCAPRSS

eocredilation for the second cohort of RCOs identified to the
Department.

4. Deltverables

4 1 The Contractor shaO provide copies of the executed ccniracte descrto^ in 2 2:
■  ' to the Department within five (5) business days of fully executing the documents.
4 A The CwUactor shall complete an assessment, as described In Secti^ 23.1.

of the RCOs - for 0 minimum of five (5) ossessments. w4thln nhely (90) days
contract effective date. "

Pfgiflfift
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42 Tho ContrecW shall provklo a copy of aacfi accredtftUoo plan descitbed In Sad/on
22.2., within one hundred-twenly (120) days of lha coolract effective date.

4 4 Tbe Controctof shall pro^da e written Rccovefy Centiar esscssfnenl, os described In
Secrton 27. for each RCO. vrithln one huridfcd-elghty (180) days of the centred
effectiwdate. .

4.5. Tbo Cootractor shell provide the btiling process and payment tlmefremes (or provWmg
the services in Section 2.8. within one hundred^wenty (120) days oMhe centred
cfTecthre date.

\

5. Milestones and Act^ltles

Major .
. Mllcstonos

and Acttvfttes

Person RMponsible Date of

Completion,
In days after

contract

effective date

Potential

Barriers to

Achleverr^t

Plan to.

Overcome

Barriers to

Achlevemerrt.

MQeEtone 1:

Report on the
degree of
reetSnessof
each RCO In

the Stale of

NH(See
Section 2.1).

ProjedO^edor 60 Days No major
barriers

enticlpated. as
thh is primarily 8
self-m^ged.
FO tosit. One
potential barrier
Is If the person

seieded to QD

the Projod
Director role is

not able to atari

on time.

Peter KeOeher

(President
andCEO)wlll
osrerseetNs

first step of
the prefect,
working
dosely with
CCAR

MBestone2;

InBtal
ftf

-Projed DIroctor and
CCAR in collaboration

with CAPRSS

90 Days Reetfiness/abilhy

of RCO to enter

Intoa

subcontrad

egreemertL

Contractor

shad provide
TA to facilitate
the contract

negotiationi.
each

suboontraded

RCO

MQedone

Devcioplno 6'
written plan

for

ecatdltstlon

Projed ptre^tcf e^" • •
CCARtnccnateratloh' ''

vrfth CAPRSS

120 Days
».\..

l( any of the
above

milestones take •

longer ttan
antlcipeted, this
mDestone moy.

occur at a later

Ttwlsratety
to be a

minimum sot
of fitsn
comportents

applicable to
bO RCOs that

can begin tp

►totteiHomei.be. Ocap* Scrrioo

P«g»7dS

CoKttidar

Mk
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PRSS Fodniatlnfl OrBenlxetfoo Setvlc**

ExtiQxt A

MUeston8 4:
ProvtdlnQ

training and
tftchnfcal

assistance to

RCOs

CCAR.>twbor Homes,
.Welcoming UgHt. NH
Certef for Excellence
andCAPRSS. TA

provided by CAPRSS will
be at no cost to Harbor

Homes or the RCOs.

Milestone S:

Initial

assessment

for Recovery

Carder

reedmess

Project Director and
CCAR

MAestone d:

Tralnbig
RCOs bCSng
functions

Project
CoordiriatorfAdrrenistrBtor

ar>d HHI Backend Staff

date.

Withh 90 days
but upon

Subcontract

EffectivQ Data

and during
tfie

subcontracting

process, as

needed)

throughout the
fundir^ period.

The Contractor
fthnit begin

providing
TAArainbg from-

the banning of
the procurement

process. Specific
trainlnofTA .
required for
accreditation

may be delayed
If any of the
above

milestones are

delayed.
Addition ally,
there maybe
accessibBity -

tesues that

preverU some of
the RCOs from
attending
trainings

Whhm 180

days, a/Id
ongoing

thereafter In
accordance

with Indrvidual

plans

Wllhln 120

Days and
ongoing
thereafter

occur as a

cotectlve.

prior to formal
completion of

the IndMdual

plans.

The

Contractor

shell uti&ze
web^ased

and In^erson
tndMdual and

groXip
Cralnmgsto

ensure

accesstbBlty

Issues ere

eSmlnated.

Orvsite (vdthin
theRCO)
traWngafTA
wtli also be

provided

NKa ,
intpjle mentation
plan'of related.
Medicald benefit

Nonc-thbls

eberrfef we

tiaveno

contrd over.

However, ee

will work wBth.
Bi State

Hwtor Hynci, He. Seepetf ficnfcw corcvctv

Oete;



M;wHBJnp»Wr«0.p«rtm«ntofH«Wh bwJ Human Sarvlco#
WSS FKlBtaUng Orgmnizallon Service# ^

j

Primary Care
Association to

proWlo public
poftcy wort
rdatedtothls.

MSestoTM 7:

Infilal Meeting

ofRCO
Commurflyof

practice

Pro)^ Director, NH
Center for Excellence

Within 60

Days (prior to
ihe

procuremenl
process)

None None

tnc.
Scapatf Scx«c»

P*9i«dB

ConB»c»rWtti

■jiimL



N«w H#mp»hlfo Department of HeiUh and Human Sarvlcea
PRSS FacllltaUnQ OfB«ntx®Uoc\ Serrtcea

Exhlbn B

Method and Conditions pror.edent to Payment

1  TU* mntnici k >d\h funds ftw Ow Oovemofa Cownisaton on AJcoW andPre%«wttoa Treatmert arxJ Rocovefy M wofl 05 Iho C^fl of F^^Dom^
#81958 Dapertmenl of Health end Human Sendees, Substance Abuse and U^^eim
SorvlocK; AOmhlrtBtton, Subrtunc? Abute BlockOrani m p™^
Gcepe of Sendees. Tho ewunictiu oBTwa te provlds the aendcet In.ExhWt A. Scope of Sendees
conpOafKo wbb funding'requUtments.

r Tho State ahaDpey the Controctof en omouruw* to exceed the on P<^pa7.Bte«fc1 .e. (or the swvfcea provided by the Cortrector pursuam to Exhba A. Scope of Senaaes.

3 Pmmeni fof expenses ahall be on a cost relmb»*seffl«nt basb only for
■  E^SSurea Shan ta bxaotofdencevdm the approved &>et\OTbodoets»hQwn In Exhftirta B-V .

4. pajmertfcraeiyteeaehaDbemadeMfafioao:
4 1 the Comnictor most aubmU monthly invoices for reimboreement for j '

■ A, Scope or ServlcoB. The SUto shafl.maJto parne^ to the (30) days of .recelpl of each Invoice for Controctof eendces pfOvWed pursuant to mia Aore.emonl.

4.Z The fovolpes must.

4J.1. OeertyldentJy the amount foquesiod and the services p«focmed<fortng^I period.
4.2.2. Iflciude e dotafled accaml of tho work performed, and a to of deCveriWea completed

durtng that pdof mortth. as outflnod In ExhlWl A, Scope of ̂ rncas.
4.2.3. ScpCfateJy Wenmy-eny work end amourrt of etlffbutabfo and perfonnod by en approved

tub<ontrpctor, if appllcsble.

4.3. Invokes and report# must be submlned to:
NH Departrnent of Health and Hurhan Servfos
Ftnandal Manager
Bureau of Drug and Aldohol Sorvlcos
128 .Pleaaard Street
Concord, NH 03301

5. Pajfnenl, mey be wlibhoW pen<Jlr.s.f««W «< "*
ExMrftA.

6 A final oevmcnt roarest ehaO be wJbmioed no toler than sWy (60) daya after the Co^aci erfoa.FoDure to cubmli the Irtvoice. erfo accompartying doaxmentallon couW result bi noripaymenl

7 ■ NobaQhatand^O "ftytMng to the contrary herein/ the Contractor agrees ̂Conlrart may be withheld, fo wtK4o Of In part, fo the event of rroncOTFfloj^ wth^ S^o^^
tow: rule Of fegiiatfon appfcaWe to the have nof been

•  ccmpteled In accordance with the terms and condaiont of thb Agreement

Executive Coundl.

C»«cbx«.-

Ptg* 1 d 1
Odijm
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Now HtmpoMro Debartmont of Hoalth end Human Servlcoa
EzhtbQ C

fiPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contracttfs Oifiiplions: Tha Cojiiroctor covenants and agrees thai oD funds rocafvod by iho ContredOf
undof tfw Cortract shti be used onty as payment to the Cpfltroctof (br aenncea prcrdded to eSgtbte
IndMduala and, In Iho Kirthoranco of tha afofwaW covenarts. the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as foOows:

1. ComptloneewlthFoderel ond.Steto Lews: IfchoConlmctbf te permlttadtodotennlnelhocnglUSty
of WMduib euch bOQlbOty determaiodon shall be made In accordance wlih applcoUe Mers) end
attte laws, regutattons, cfdWs, flutdellnas. poD^ er>d procediFss.

2. f>mo and eyiannof of Det»rmimrtJon:ei8WRtyda<«jmh«>onofthcB bo mode on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be rrtada er»d remade at such tlmee as ore preecrQied by
theOepartmbrl

3. OccumenWion: In edtUon to Ihe-dctermlTtatton terms rodulredbythe Department, the Contractor
shaD maintain a data file on each reclpknt o1 sondcoa hersimder, whkh file shdltoMe all
Intormatlon necessary tp support on engtonity dcterminetton and such.oihar tntonrBrtton as the

•  Deptftmert reguaste. The Contredor shaD fumbh the Oepnrtment wlh at forms and documentaflon
regsningellgrtClydetermlnatJqrtslhalthoDcpartmentnMyreduesta'requ^

4. Pair Heertnga: The Contractor imdcfstands Ihjtf al nppltconls for services hereunder, as woQ as
lAtfvteuab dedartd ineO^bte have a rtght to a ro)r hesrtog regarding thai determhat^n. The
Contractor hcfoby covenants and agrees that an oppBconts for servloes shaD be permJCod to Wl out
an'apjtation tenn and lhat each appQcont or re-applleonl shaD be tnformcd ct hh/her rtgW to a f^
hcartng to acoordanco wUh Departrnerd regutattens.

5. OrahrtUesofWclibacks: The Contractor agrees that It b a breach of this Cortract to eceyt or
make e payment, gratuity or offer of empteyment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-^orrtrador or
the State to order to toftience the perfo^nce of the Scope of Work detaJed to Ejthlbli A of ihts
ContrscL .The Stele may terminate thh Contract"end any sub-contraci or eub-cgreement If R h
detmrined that payments, gratuities or ofTerc of emptoyn^ of any Wnd w«o cfCerod or received by

. any otffclois, offioers. employees or eg^is of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. ftetreaetfvtt Payments: Notwilhstanding enythif>g to the contrary crrtelnod In the Contract or In any
other dooanenl. contract or understandtog. 0 la asprassJy understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments wffl be made hcraurteer to reimburse the Contractor fox coats Incurred for
eny purpose or for any servlees prodded to any todMduol prtor to (he Effecthe Date ̂  the Contrart
and no payments shaB be made for espenses tocurred by the Contractor.for ariy senAces prcMded
p/ter to the date on which the tndMdual applies for services or (except es oOwwtse provided by the
federal ragutetlons} prtv to e deterrrinstten that the todMdual is eligible for such ser^4ces.

7. Conditions of Ptexhase:Notwlthsta^ger\ylhtog to the contrarycontained to the Cortrad.nothtog
haraln contained ahrf be d«med to obtigato or requbo the Department to purchase ser>4ces
hereunder ate rale wrtchrclmbui^ th« CcrrtredortoexccssoftheContractormcoste, etaraie
wfid) eicceedi the amounts reasonable and neceaaery to assure the .qutilly of such aervtco. or at e

■  retowWchctteods the rate chofyod by the Contractor to toetlglblelhdMduab or other (hW party
funders Cor such servlco.D at orry time during the term of trtsCorrtracl Of after rocelpfol too Final •
ExpendZture Report hoeunder. the Departmem shcD dotcrmtoe that the Contredor hao used
peymonta her^tetder to rofrntxjfie Rams of eotpense other then such costs, of has received peym^
to fT*** of such costs or In o! such 'rates charged by ihc Contractor to IrwSglbte IndMAjals
cr-otherlhlrdportyfte*J^theOepartm«nimoy.etoteto:
7.1. -ftenegoUate the fries tor poymcnl hereunder. to wWch event new rates shell be estattlshed:
7.2. Deduct from eny future payment to (he Ccntroctor the om<^ of eny prtorrebntjoraemenl to ,

excessof costs; hi/

.  erfJ*C-Sp«ia)Prwfalom Coetf^tnr irCtt jl



Hew K«np«htre Depoftimnl of HeeUh ond Human Borvicea
-EihtbltC

7.3. Demand ropsymerd of tha excesa payment by the Contractortn %«hich event fntura to make
cudi ropaymem chaQ oonstluta an Event of Defautl hereundcr. Whan the Conlractar la
permuted to deterrnine the edglbCily of (ndMduali for earvteea. the Contractor asrete.to
retmbunse the Department for al] fUnds paid by the Oepertmem to the Corttractor for sa/vicee
proK^ded to any indMdual who Is found by the Oepenrrwn.t to be tr^Dglbte for euch eervtces at
eny Une thmng (he pvfod of retartUon of reccrds estabOshed herein.

RECORDS; MATNTENANCE. RETENTtON. AUDfT. OtSCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTlAUTY:

8. Metntanahca of Records: (n adcfilon to the eOglttnty records spedffed above, the Contractor
oowanonts end agrees to maintatn the foOowtng raco^ during the Contmct Period:
8.1. ■ Flscsi Records: books, records, documentaartd other dMcvfde'ndng and feflecttngeOcosU

and other cxpertsas tncurred by (he Contractor In the p^ormanoe of the Contract, and afl
hcoma receded or conectod by the Corttrector during the Contract Period, said records to be
rritfrdsUMd in eccordance wUh accounting procedures and pracdoes which exifToantfy end
property roftoct ail such costs and expenses, end whkh ere acceptable to the Oepartmertt and
to Incftide, ̂ Ihout Dmnaticri.-el) lodgari. boolcs, records, and orl^el evidence of costs.such as
-pur^tasa roQulsfUons ond orders, vouchers, requisldcns for matoftaU, Inventories. >«lua1lons of
(n-Und contributiorts. bbor time cards, pa^s, end other records reouestad or required by the
Depertment

6.2. St^stic8]Rooofds:Stabst]C8l.«nmQment.eQaf)dsr)CacrvtsUrecords(oreachrecfpIentof
sarvte during the Contract Period, which raoords shall Inciida eS reoordt of ̂pGcatlon and.
eOglblEty (Intfudbg fonns required b determirw eliglbSity for each such redptent). records

'  regarding the provtslon of-aervloes end afi Invoices ubmttted to the Doparimerrt to obtain
payment for such services.

<' 8.3. Medlca) Reogrds: Where appropriate end as prescrfbad by the Department reguiatlortt. (he
Contractor slWI retein medlcd recoil on bach petierYt/redplenl of services.

6. Audit: Cortboctor shall subnet an anftual audi to the oieparimont within 60 days after the dose'of the
agen^ fteqai years it Is recorrvnended that lha report be prepared tn accordance with tha provision of
Office of Mariagemem end Budget CtttuisrA-iaS. 'Audts of States, Local Govemmerds. and Non
ProTit Orgerdz2tt)orts* and the provisians of Standards for.Audd of Governmental QrgsnLzatloris.
Programs. AclMUes and functions. Issued by the US General Accounttng OfTioe (GAD standards) as
they pertain to ftnondei compUarwre eudlts.
g.1. Audit and Review; During the term of this Contrectend tho period (or retenOon heraunder. the

Department, tha United Stales Deparimant 6f Health and Human Services, and any of their
desJgnatad representadves.shafi have access to ad reports end records rnalnt^nod. pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of aurSL oxarrdnatjon, excerpts and transcripts.

62. Audit UabSities':- tn addition to arul not In eny way In Um&atton of cbdg^ons of the Contract, U b.
urvderstood end egraed by the Contrector that the Oorriroctor shall be held Dable for'any state
or federal audit oxcaptlona end sh^ return to thg Oepartmcnt. dl payments mada under the
Centred to wtdch exception has been taken on which have been dlsaCwwed becauie of such en
exoepdan.

10. ConfidentleOiy of Records: All Information, reports, and records rruiintainedhereunder or codectad
In oortnacBon with this perfcfmance of the saMoes and the Contract ehaS ba confidentIaf4tnd shall not
tMdbdosed-bytheCorcractor. provided however, that pursuaro to state laws and the rpgulatibrp of
the Oapeitment regartSrtg the use and dbdosm of su^ irtformatlorv dbdoure may be made to'
public ofBdabroqutring such tnformaticn In connection wUhlhalrofnclaltlulIn and for.purposes -
direcdy connectad to the edninbtrafion of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or dsdosura by any party of any tnformatton concerning a rec^Ient for any purpose not
(SrecOy connectad wtth the e^tnbbatton of the Department or the Contractor's responslbQities with
respect to purchase eervtces hereunder b prohlbn^ except on wrtlien ccrtserd of tha raclpJeni, hb '
attorney or guardian.

^sMbeC-epcdSlPro^bto'o CerOscsir MSib

p>0«2tf9 OdejMl



Now Hsmpth{r« Otpvtmenl d Hsstth and Human Sirvfcoa
ExKIbRC

NoMlhstandIng anylhlng (o Ow'contrary contained herein the oovonants and con^ons cont^ed In
the Paragraph shan survtve the tehnlnetlon of (he Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports; Rsca) ond Statbtlcct: The Contractor agreaa to tut>mit the reports at-the fcflcn^g
•  limes If reqirested by the Department.

11.1. ^deftm Rnands) Repons; Wrttten tntertm ftmdai reports oor^ir^ a detaUed deaotpUort of
en costs end norv-enovyaUo expenses tncunad by the CohtrBdor toith'eilslfi'of the report end
eontti/^O attch other InformsUon as ahafl be deemed ssttsfectcy by lh« Deportment to -►tftify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Fhandal Reports'shidl be eutynltted on the fom)
deslgnatad ̂  the Depoitment or deemed asUstadory by the Deportment

11.2. FbtalReport A final ropcrlehaB be aubmlOedaitWnthbty (30) doya after the end trf (hie term
of thb Contract The RnsJ Report ehoO be In o fonn aotiffoctapy to tho. Oepenmertt ond shaO
contain o eummary statement of progress toyvard goah and o^ecthres stated In the R'op^l
and other In^jrmatlon requM by the Department

12. Cofnpl«ttonof6drvtccs:DlsaftowancoofCo3ts:Uponlho purdtasabyihpDBp8rtmentofthe .
moAnum nurrtior of imfta provided for in the Corrtfoct ond upon peymert of Ihe price Dmitstioo
hareundor. the Coitract ond ol the obligations of (he por^ hereundar (except such obQgatlona as.
by the terms of the Osntmet are to bo porforrnod after the" end of iho term of Ihb Contract andtor
aurvhe the tormlnotltft of the Contract) shaD termtrtate. prwddad however, that If. upon review of the-
Final Expenditure Report (he Department shall disaB^ any expenses claimed by the Contmrtor as
costs hereundar the Department ahaO retain the tigN. at Its dbcretlon. to deduct (he amount (d sud)
expenses-as are (fisa&owed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Crodhs: AH documents, noitoes. press releases; research reporta and other matedsls prepareddudng or resulttr^ from performance of the services of the Centred shall Indude (ha foOowtng
statament:
131. The fx^tfuticn of this (repcrt. document etc.) was financed imder a Contract wtth fto Slate

of New Hampshire, Depertment of Keallh and Human Scfvices. wilh funds provided tn port
by the State of New Hampshire and/or sud» other funding ecirrces as wero ovoaaWo orroqulmd. e.g., thaUnlted States Department of Koafth and Human SoMws.

14. Prtor Approval and Copyright Ownership: All matcrtala (written, vWco. audio) produced orpurchased under the oontract shsfl! have prior spprcvsl from DHHS boforo printing. preAKllon,
dbtribution or use. The 0«HS wO retain copyright ownership for arry and an onginal maiertab
preduced, indudHrg, but not imftod to, brochures, resource directories, prolocob or guldoflnes,
pcoters, cr reports. Contrector shaO rwt reproduce any meterlds produced under tho controct wllhool
prior writtan appr^rat from DHHS.

15. Operation of FariDdos: Compfiance with Laws errd Regulations: In the operation of any fodWes
for provUtrrg aorvlces, the Contractor fhall compfy with dl lawa. orders and rogiiatlDns of federal,
state, county and murtdpat authorities and with any direction of any Public 0«icor of offlcors
pursuant to lawswWch shafl Impose on ordef or dirty upon (ha contractoir-wllh respect to theoperation of CadJty or the provision of the aervtces at eur^i fadBty. If any govemmentat tkenaa or
permU chaD be rediriril for the operation of tho aaW ladBly or the performance of (he ed^ervtces.
the Ctfttractor wO procuro sold llcens e or perrrtt, and will el oH times bomply with tho terms end
cordBons of ead) suehteense or permit In connection with (he foregoing let^kumants. theCortrsdorherebycovenarttsehdegrwthatdurlngihotefmoftNsContraa.thefe^^ahan •
coilpfy wBh oil niies. crdars, roguletkins, end requirements of the Stale Office of the Fire Merehai and
the btttf firo protection ftgaf>cy, ar)d shs)) bo (n confarmence with local buWmg er>d sorring codas, by
laws end reguIsOons.

1 fl. equal Employment Oppcmmtty Pten (EEOPJ: Tb# Contractor win provide an Equal Emptoymenl
OpportUT^ Plwi ̂ eOP) to the Office for CNH Rights, Office of Justice Progrems (OCR), B ft has
lecelvpd a alngta award of 1500,000 or mtfe. If the recipient rec^res 825.000 or more and has bftcf

wCorWatfwtnfiab

motu PegaScfS
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Now Htmpthlfo Dopartmonl of Heollh and Humm Sorvfeeo
Exhibit C

mor«emrfoyoe*.ttwnimalnla!nocutTenlEEOPonrBeandwbmnaneEOPC«rtWc«tionFofmlDlho •
OCR. certifVtno ih« U EEOP Is on file. Fof redpicnts reecMng less then 125.000. or put»Oc yantoes
wtlh fevw man 50 empbysas. roflanlteps of tha amount of lha awaid. redpteit^
EEOP Certifteotto^ fiorm to tf* OCR certifying It to no) rwjulrod to submit or maintain anEEOP. Non-
crefit croanbflttois. Indian Tribes, and medlcd and educational Instltullcns are «»mpt frtm the
EEOP fequlfefrtertt, but arc requlrad to submfl a certiflcattoo form to the OCR to datrn the exempfioa
EEOP Certtteallon Forms era evaftoWe at; hnpV/www.ojp.u$doi/abouVocr/pdfe/c»rt.pdf..

17 UmJted English Proficiency (LEP): Aactortlled by Executive Ordof 13168. lmproirinQAc<»w to
Services for ptfwns with Umlied Engltoh Proficiency, and fwUttng originditcrtrrtrialkm bcWes dbcftmlnatkyj on tho basto of Bm^ted E/yll^p^Wan^LW T^o
ccmpOtfice w)m the Omnibus Crt^ Contnri end Safe Sirtrta Ac*of 1988 ^ ^

•  Rj^iiActof1984,Cwtr*iomrniBttokoreasonabto8tepatocnsurelhalLEPpe«onshavo
meaningful access to fla'programs.

18. PItet Program for Enhancemsfrt of Contractor
foCpwing iftril appfy to aS contracts that exceed tha SlmpItfled AcquWtion Threahdd aa defined hi 40
0^2.101 (currcrtly. $150,000)

cownwCTcn EMPidvcfe Whi3TI£Blow£r Rights and ReowREUEm To iHFOfiw EuptOYtES op
WHlSTX£BUCNVEfl RKP1T8 (SEP 2013)

(a) Thto contrad end employees wortdr^.on this contract ^
andromcdles In tho pilot program on Contractor emjtoyee wWsttottoswr ,.
41 U.S.C.4712 by aedioo 828 of tho National Defense A*rir»crtiation Ac! for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L
112^38)and FAR 3.908;

RjtTho'Ccrtraciaahaa tnformte emptoyoes to wAlng. In the prcdornlnant tangua^rf the w^oroo.
■ of employee whbtteblowerfighla end prolcdiona under 41 aS,C. 4712, as drtoibcd to eaction
3.808 of the Federal Acqutsnion Regulation.

(c)The Contractor shall tosert the substance of this clause, tockjding pa/egreph (c). to all.
subcontracts over the ttoipClled ecquisltlah threshold.

"ifl 8ubeorilf»rtort:DHHSrocoffitzostfwitl«.Contradormayctooc50lousewtx»ntr»cfortwllh
greater expertba to perfoftn certain health can services or functicrts lenience.bto the Coofroctof shaD relato the responaibltty and aa»untabiay la the fun^on(8).
BiKomradtoa. tho Cctotrector shaB cvQluato the subcootrwtor'e abiay to poftorm^ d^
fiSKXkirrfil Thto b accanpCshed through a Mitlon agreemert that apedfies edh^vd rep^

of the lubcontTBCtwand provides for rovoWng Ihe ddogstion or tmpostog "
the subcontractbria pofformonce b not adequate. Subcoftredors ere subject to the yne

■ conditions as the Contredof and the Contractor b responaibto to ensure suboontractor complance

Whi^^S^S'delegales a function to a
10.1. Evduste the prccpectfve subcontractor's abaity to perfbim tho odivflies. before detogsttog

19J2 fl̂ menl with the sutrcooyeclof that spedrtos actMUrd andrep^Ing
responibaBes end how sanctbns/rcvocatton wlB be maraged V tho st^conlrodor's •.
performance to not odoqusto ^

19J. fiflortilor Iho.BUbconlractor'o pcrfDrmanceooen ongotog bass

/
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Niw Hampfhlra Oopvytmenl of Moohh end Human Sorvleoe
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1B.4. Provide to DHHS en onnual e^iodule IdenUf/ng bQ lubcontrecbsre. ddegeted fundiofts end
responslbSitlei. end wtwn the lutKortmdof'a potfonnenco ̂  be revwv«d

19^ DHHS shell, etttsdiscredon, review and approve oDsubcontrocti.

tr 'the Contredor IdenlKies defidendes or areas for Improvtmem ere identified, Ihe Conpecior shaO
lake cotredNe action.

DCFINTTIONS

As used In the Contract, the foOowtng terms shaS have the fdlovdng meanings:

COSTS: ShaO mean those direct and tndbect Oams of expense'dotarmM by the Departmera to be
flftfftrttwf end rebnburubla In accordanoe with cost and acoounttng prtndples estebfohed In ecooMance
vd^ state and federal laws, regulaOons. rules and orders.

DCPARTMENT: NH Depeiiment of Health end Human Services.

financial management OUtOELlNES: ShaO mean (hat socdoh of the Cbntroctor Manual which Is
tfitlUed Ttrtandal Management Guldeflrxes' end wh'ich contains the regutaOons govemine the.ririarxdd
octMilcs of gorttredor ogondes which lisve ccntracted with the State i NH to receNe funds.

PROPOSAL: If sppUcabtd, shoD rneen the document tubmtSed by,the Contractor on a form or forms'
retired by the Oepanmerd and oontalnbig e deschpUon of the Sorytces to be provided to eliglde
Mvidueb by Ihe Contractor tn .accordance wfth the terms and condhjons of lha Contract ar^ seOlng forth'
the cost end sources of rwcnue for each service to be proMded.iinder the Contntd.

UNIT: For each oervtce that the Corrtractor te to provide to al^lbta IndMduats hareurtder. sheD moan thot
period of time or that ap^ed octivtty determined by the Oepartnenl and spedned tn Exhlb& B of tho
Contract.

FEDERALfSTATE LAW; Wherever federal or state laws, regutattoftt, rUos, orders, and pofides, etc. are
referred to In the Contrad. the seU referenco shall be deemed to mean d) such (awe. reflations, etc. os
they may be amended or revtsad from (ha bme to Qme.

•CONTRACTOR MANUAL Shall mean that docurnerit prepared by tho NH Department of Admmlstradve
■Skrv<cee6atidnlng a oompOation of all regulatlcns promUgaed pursuant to the New HampshtreAdr^tratf^..Pr:^urps^. NH RSA Ch 541A for (he purpose of Implement2r>g Stale of NH and'
federal regulaticrts j^i^u^ltld'thdteundor.
SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Tho Conlrector guarantees that funds provided under this
Contrad wtl) neA suppisnl any extstlng federal funds evaloble for these servlcea.

EiXbS C - Spedil Pr»*lene
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New Hampshire Department of Hoahh end Human Services
'  ■ EihlbltC-l

RCVtSIONS TO beWERAL-PROyiSIOMS
\

Sybparagraph 4 of the General Provisiorw of Ws contract, Cor^dittonal Nature ctf Agreement, b
replaced as follows: ^

4. CONDmONAL NATURE OF A6REEME^^•.
NoWlhslarKflng any provision of iWs Agreement to the cionlrary. en ofcOgatiorts of the State
hereunder. Includhg wtthoul iimllftlion. the conflnuence of payments. In whole or In part,
under tW» Apreemcnt ere conttngont upon conttnuad opprotxtoUon or eveltobinty of hjnds.
bdUd^ 6ny44jhsBfti»n! char^ee to Ihe approprtoUon or ovaflabBlty of funds affeeled by
aw state w Werol teglslative or exocuttvo ac^ that reduces. oQmlrtaies. or ctherwitt
rrodWos the approprtaOon or'avefiabRty o# fundh^ for thb Agreement end bw Scope^
S^es provided In EjWWt A. Scope of Servicea, In whole or h part In no evora chal the
State be EaWo fbr any peymente herotrndcr b) excess ot epproprialed or evattablo fun^ tn
the evert of a reduction, termlnaflcr or modlfice&an of appropriated or ovaDabb fundsi the
State Shan have the rigH to wtthhoW payment until such funds become avaOable. If ever. The
Stale shflD have the rtght lo reduce, tarminate or modtfy servicea tm^ tWs
immediately upon 9wir^ the Coritjactof notJce of such reducOon. lofmlnaiipn or mptfftcallon. •
The Sola sttaJl not bo requbed to uarafer funds from any other source or eccourt bdo the

• Accour<(5) Wenllfbd b) btedc 1.6 of the General Pfovtstorw. Account Number, or eny other
account, bt the evert fUrvJs are reduced or uitavallable.

SubpoByojrfi 10 of (he Ganeral Provisiora of thb cortrect, Tcrmbwlion. b amended by adding the
foOowing language;

10.1 The Stata may tertrtnala Ihio Agreemort el any time for eny reason, at Iho ta^ disoeton d
•the Slate; 30 days after giving (ho Controctof written notico lhal the Slate is excrdsing Its
option to termbttto the Agreen^rt.

10.2 tn Iho ovwrt of early tormihadon. the Contractor shafl, wHhln 15 days of notice
lOfTTjlnetlcn. develop end submit to the State e Trortsltlon Plan (or services
Agreement. Including but not Gmhed to. IdentifybiQ the presort and future needso^erts

" roceMng serdccs under the Agreemert end cstabbhes a.pfocess to meet these needs.
10 3 The Caitroclof shea MIy coopcrote wtih the State and shall prompfly provjda detailed

irdormaSon to support the Trendtton Pton hctudlng. but not CmUod lo. any Irtorma^or
data reamled by (he Slate related lo'lhe IcnntrtfllJon of the Agree/^ ̂  Transaw Ren
and shea pro^e ongo^ communicafioo and revisions of (he TrensWon Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In tfw event thai services under the Agreement. tocAJdlng but net Mted ̂  eflerts recei^
serVicos onddr the Agreement are transftionod to having services deCvorcd by anoUw omfly
bdudlr^.contrected provldars or the State, the Contrector shell provide e process (or
uhbtteTTUpled daOvery of service# In 0>e Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shaO cstablbh a method of notifying cnerts end other
ebout the transWon: The Contrector shaD b>dude the proposed comrmailcetoos m Its
Trensftion Plan subrttted to the Siala as descrtbed above.

The Depslmcnt reserves the right to renew the conimcl.for up to four (4) oddttonal yea^v
subject to iho'oontijwed ovellabaity of funds, satisfactory pcrformanca of services and approval
• by tw Governor and Executive Council.

euOMontoo
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'N«w Hompshl/e DftpstmentoT Hoslth ftnd Human Scrvlcaa
'  ExhlbttD

CBtrmCATIOH REQARIMNG DPUG-FPEE WORKPLACE REQUIRHMEKTS

The Cofitractw UenOSed Irt Secfion 1.3 oJ the Oaoera} Provnjiom DOf®« to compty u'Qh Iho pro^tolona ol
Secb<ms515l«6160dlheDrv9-frcaWoA^ce Add 1986 (Pub. L 100-fi30, Ttta V, SuWUt D:4l
U.8.C. 701 at leq,). and further agrees lo have Ihe Controdor's repreaentaltve. e« IdentSed Secttona
1.11 end 1.12 of the Genera) Provtsiottt execute the foOoMlng Certlfoelton:'

ALTERNATIVE t - FOR ORAMTEES OTHER THAN INDMDUALE

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION. CONTRACTORS,
US DCPARTMCNt OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

TWi cetTcelta U required by the regubtKBia Implemenllng Scdiona 5151-S16D of Drug-Freevgbfto!BceAdofl«8(Pub.UlOO«30.TaieV.SubliOeO:41 U.S,a701cl«eq.>. TheJ3nu»y3l.
1889 rcQulaboei were amended and pubfiahed a Part V of the May 25.1990 Federa! RegWer (page*
21881-216S1). end reqube cerUftcoOon by granteca (are) by Inference, eub-granteea and wb-
cordrtctonX pdor to award, thai they wfl) maintain a dnjQ-free wortpJaca. SedJon S017.630(c) of the
reoubtld) pravtdaa thai a granlae (end by Inference, aub-granteea and •uheortmdprt) thai U a Stale
may ded to mate w c^eallw to.lhe Deportment fn each foderBl.fUcaTyear In Deo of certiftcrtM for
each wart durfng the federal fHcal year covered by the certification. The cerilftcalc ad out befcw ta a
maierbf fejreaentotton of tad upon whfch.reCancc la pieced when the agency awanla the grant Fatae
cartfflcdJon or violBtJon of the certiflceUbrl'shaU be growdi for auspenaten of paymenta. suspenabn orIcflninflflonofOfento.orgovcmmentv^dcsuapenstonefdcbannenL ConVactOfa using ̂  form ahaud
aend 8 to: ■ . ;

Conmisaioner
NH Dapsrtment of Hedlh ard Human Servicea
•129 Pleaaant Street.
CorKord, NH 03301-6»S

V The QtanteecertJftes that Bwffl Of ̂continue to provide a drug-freowortcptftce by.
1.1. FWihIng.ostatemcninotifytn9emptoyeeathdtheunlawfulrn8nufecbjra. didrlbutto.

d}gpytsbig poaseatbn or use of a oontroOed substance b prohibited In the grcntee a
workplace and spring the actions that wfll be taken against employees for vWsUon of auch
prohibition; .

12. EstoMahIng an odgdrvg dnrg-free owarer>e»« program to inform emptoyeca elrout
12.1. The danger* of drug abuae In the workplaca;
1.Z2. The grantee'e poGcy of maintaining D drug^re a workplace;
12.3. Any evalat* drug courtteGng, rehattfloUixx and emptayee asibtonce programs; and
t2!4. The penaWes Out may be Imposed upon ertvployees tor drug abuse vidattons

ocaming In the vrorkplaea;
1.3. Makbrg B o re^OTont that each empto/ee to be engaged In Iho performance or the gram be

Qtvon a copy ofthettatemerilraquked by paragraph (e);
1.4. Notlfytng the e/nptcyee h lha ftatement required by paragraph (a) lh8t as o condajon of

employment under the grant the employee wO
M.I. Abide by tyutemuol the statement end
1.4.2. NoOfy the cmployef In wf«ng of hU Of her conviction lore vttalton of ocrbninal drug

statute occutrtr^ In the wofkplaco no later Ihsn frw calendar day* after auch
corsHcCon; x.

1.5. Notffyttig the egen^ In wrWng. wlthln.ten cetendar day® after rcceMng notice under
• subparagraph 1.4.2 from an emptoyee or otherwIsoreeeMng actual notice ̂ »uchconvtctJon.Emptoyen d con^ded employees must provide notice, tndudlr>g poiUlon tide, to ev^ gr»fl

officer on whose grant aetrvfty the convicted employee we* woddnft unlesa the Fedcrd og^

ConWvetar
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hndaslgnflted a central point tof the receipt of such notices. N6Uc« shall includa tto
(dent^eUon numbar{8) of each affected Qrant; *

■  t.6. TcWng one of the foDowfng octiona, wfthin SO caicodor dey« of ccceMng notco under
• mbperagraph 1.4.2. wthrcapocl to any empJo^^*»t>ob»oconvtetcd

1 .ai. TaHng eporoortaic personnel action egalnst such on envteyee. up to end hdudmg
tefmhetlon. conshlent wtth the roqul/etnertt of the RehabBlirtlon Ad of 1973. es
emended^ or

116.2. Requiring wd) employee to partidpoto aothfectorty In e drug obuso esalstsnce or
fehabllltBlton'pfOflram approved for sodi ̂ apoees by e Foderel. 8UUa. or local Keaflh.
lew enforcement. Of other eppropddte agency,

1.7. Mak^v o good fotlh o#l6rt to cortinuo to maHatn e drug-ffoo worftpbce through
bnptcmentatoofrfparegrgphsl.l, 1.2,13, t.4.1.5.end 1.6.

2. Tlwgranlao may Insert b the »p3c» provided l>dow the 54e<e) for the pwfomonceofwork done in
connection wtlh (ho apedfic grant

PUce at Pcrfonnence (street address, city, courity, state, zfp code) Otst each toc^n)

Chocfc O If there ore worltptoces on fSe that are not ldenlir>ed here.

ContractorNamo: l^bf^

M.
Dele Kt^.Nome;

™e; (jCO

CijetatintCfM
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Exhibit C

C^HCATIOH RECAHDINS LOflfiY^

'I5f^ ^ P^ovt»k)nJ agroes to compV wilh the provWofts'of
siller GovcmmemwideGuUflncoforNewRwtricilonaonUbbyfofl.and

^ Contractor't reprtsenlatwo. as identified In Sectfons 1 1 iand 1.12 ol the Oancnd ProvUlofts execute the foQowlng C^tMcsUon:

Hi SS^SIilS^ ̂  health and human services - CONTRACTORSUS DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONmACTORS

Progmme (bdleate eppAcable pfogram ccvtred):
Temporary AoislaAce to Ne^ Femi&ed under TlBe IVVN
"CHJd SuRxwt Enforcement Program under Tftfo rV-D
'Sodal Serytces Btodc GranI Program under Tittp XX
•MedcsU Program under TUe XIX

•Corrwnunfty Scr>docs Bfock.Gfanl under TtJe VI
•Child Cara Dm^lopmenJ Btoch Grant uf^der Tide iV

The undertigncd certHet, to the best ofhb or her krto^ledge end twSef. that

1. No Federal approprtsted fondi have been paid or .wfll pe paid ̂  or on beheU d the understood, to
^person for Irrtuerclno or attempting to Irflucnc© an offtedror cmployoe qf any agency, a Member
d Congress. aA ofTiw or emptoyee'of Congrau. or en emptoyee d 0 Member of Congress h

•  contract contfmuition. renewal, emendm^ ormodncetw d-any Federal contrad; grant, loan, or cooperetlve agrecmant (and by spcdTtc mention
eubgrantae or sdxontrador).

Z [f jny^s other, than Federal approprtaled funds hove been paid or wU be paid to any person for
Infwendng or attemding to Wtoence an offlocr or empteyee d any agency, a Member d Congress

® •mptoyea d Congress, or an emptoyee d a Member d Congress to connection wQh thbFederal conlrad. grant, loarv or oooperattve egreenrvert (and by tpecfic mention sub-grarttee or sub-
contrador). the ondwslgncd ihafl comptele and submfi stand^ird Form Ul. pisctasurt F.dm toReport Lobbying, to accordance with Ds tostnicttoru. attached end idenliSed as SUndwd ExhlM E-i)

1 The undesigned shaa require thai the language d this oettficabon be Wuded in the award
dooffnert fof sub-awards at aO liert (Indudtog tuboordrads, eub-grarUa, and corttreds tmdef grants
Bans, end cooperatNe egreemenU) end that all sub-redplenU ehal certify and disdose eccordlngfy! •

This certificaBon Is a material representation d fad upon which reDance was when this trensadion
wos made or entered hta Sibrdtsfon d thb eertrficotion b o profequh&a for maktno or orttertno Into this
trwedton ImpoMd by Section lS52.TUe 31. U.6. Code. Any pe^on who falls to fib the requlnto
cotWcalton ahafl bo adsjod to a cMl penalty of not less than »10,000 end not more than 1100 000 for
each lud) fslhjre.

Cordractor Name:

m.
Date

cm>*cn<g»

Name;

oio

EjeCfiE-CcnBcsettiRrawdtoguebe^a Cvtnctvbdib
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CgRTTftCATtON REQARDfflQ DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTWEW RESPONSimUTY WATTERS

•The Cortrador Identmcd In Section ̂ .Z of the Seneral ProN^ions eorees to comply wtth the provtstono of
ExecutKeOITroeof tho Preaidertf, Exsctiive Ordei 12549 end 45 CFR Pert 76 regerdlng Oetement,
Suspension, end Other Responstbility Matten. end fuilhef egrect to have the Contrector'i
represefltatlire. esldentned In Sections 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provblons execute the foBowIng
CertiCcBUon:

instructions FOR CERTIFJCATIQN

1. By sigrmo end eubmfctlnglhb proposal (oonlrad), the prospective prim 8>ypaitidp«7tt$ pio>Afir>6 the
' certttatlon eel out bctoo.

2. The InebOiy of eperoon to prodde the ceftBtcsUonroqvitredtMlowwtS not necessehiy mull fas dental
. of pertidpetion In this eoMerod tronsectton. If necessery. the prospective perttdpont sheO submit en
e^ienelion of why D cannot pro^e the cenificetlon. The cc^cdion or explenation wfll be '
consdcred In conrttction wttt) the NH Department of Health ertd Human Servtees' (OHHS)
determtnalion whether to enter Into this trartsedlon. However, faiture of the prospective primery
parthipanl to fianlsh a oerttriceUon or an ei^tanatbn thaO disquafify such person from partlcfpAion In
thblnnsectkm.-

а. The certKceUonh this ctsuse Is a metartst representation of fact upon which reCanca was pbo^
when OHHS determlrwd to enter Into this transacUoa If Bis tater determined that the prospccth^
prfrnary parlidpent knowingly rendoed an erroneous cerV^tio ̂  h oddfiicn to other remedies
ovalaUe to the Fed^ Government. DHHS may terminate this iransactlon for cause or ddeul

4. The prospective primary pertlclpsnt shaD provide fenmedlste written rtotice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (oontrocl) Is submitted If at any time the prospedhre primary pailidparri teams
thd Its cert^icotion was erroneous when submitted or has become erro^ous by reason of changed
circumstonces.

5.- The terms 'covered Imrrsoctlon.' 'debcrTed,' "suspended.* TpefiglWo.' Tower tier covered
tronsocUdn,* 'partldpartt.' 'person,' "prtmary covered transaction,* "prndpal* "proposal,* and
VcAmtarOy e*riudcd;'.as used In ̂ is dause. have the meenlngs set out In the Oefinfiions end
Covero9esectior\softherute8bTipIamaAtingExecutlveOrder12S49:4^CFRPo>l78. Seethe
ettDdieddcAnfilons.

б. The prospect^ primary partidpont agrees by sufamfiting this proposal (corttrsd) that, shoubj'the
proposed coverod transodion bis entered Into, it shall not kno^n^ enter Into any low tier covered
tronsedion with e person who b debarred, suspended, declared IneCglble^yoluntarDy axdudad
from partldpatlon In thb covered transaction, u^ss authorized by OHHS.~^

7. The prospective primary perttdpant further agrees try submltttng thb propoael that It wCl tnduda
d3Uselrtied.*Certtfic8tion Rags^sig Debarmcnt Suspension. InefigMty end Voluntary Exduston-
Lower Tbr Covered Transeotiom,* provided by DHHS, wtthout modification, tn' eO lower Cer cc^rod
transadiorts end In eO sdicflatitns for lowor tier covered (ransoctiorts.

6. A pcBtldpsnl In o covered transaction may rely upon e cofUncation, of e prospecthre parttdpertt In a
lower Oer covered trerwrctlon thai fi b not deterred, suspended, Ineligible, or tnvotuntarOy axduded
from the covered transadldn. unkss It knows that the cnttftcatkm b erroneous. A paitldpaht may
dedde the method and froguency by which It determines the eligibny of Its prlnclp^.
partldjaani may, but Is not reqidrod to. check the Nonprocurcment Ud (of exdud ed parties).

9. Nofhlno contained in the foregoing shaO b« corvftxued to require estabCshment of a syetam of rpoor^
In order to rarder (n good folth the oeiltncation roqulrad by this cbuta. The knovHedge and /

4
CttinOv

Ard OOkt ResponSbOy Mlttcrt
iRcpebanOcb
rResponnfiyI

ojo«w*um PipslcTZ oat.
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Infomotfon of o partidpcnt a not roqulred to exceed Out which U norrriafly posoeised by a prudent
person in the ordhsry course of bustnees dcaOnos-

10. Except for transacdont euthortz^ under paragraph 6 of iheie instructicm, tf a porticipent rn a ■
co>md'tr8r\A8Ctian knowtngty enters into a loiver tier covered trenaacUonwtth a person who is
suspended, debarred, tne&gOto. or voluntarQy exdxtded from parUdpaUon In this trensacUorv In
adtftion to other remedies avaM}le to the Federal govemmerrt, DHHS may temiinste this transaction
fdrcausaordefaiA.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary pailrdpant ̂ Hes to the best of b kncMtedge and-beOef. (hat it and Ds
prVKipeis:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debsrmenl, dedared ineOglble. or

MkmiAhly asccluded fnim coN«red transacUoni by any Fedffsl depaitmart or ogertcy:
11.2. have not «^tn a three-year period preceding this proposal (contrec1)_been convicted of or had

a cMI julgmerd rendered against ttwm for commission of fr^ or a cdrntrval offense tn
cortnecDon wth obtaMng. ehttmpthQ to obtah, or performtng a ptMc (Federal, Gtate or local)
trsnsectjon or a contract un^ a pubSc tramacUon; viblallcn oi Federal or State antitrust
statutes or oorm^ltsion of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, fatstfleatlon or'destruction of

'  records, making tahadatamenti. or recaMnp stolen property,
11.3. em not presently Ir^dlctedfofOthefwisecnminaOy or cMUyd^ed by a govemmantal entity

(Feder^ Slate or local) wfth commhsion of any of (he cffensas enumerated In paragraph {0(b)
^ thb certificaOon;. and

11.4. have riot wtthbn o three-year period preceding thb appjicalbryprGposal Had one or moro pubDc
transactions (Federal, State or locaJ) temitnated for csu^ or,'d.efiiutL

12. Where (he prospectlvB prbnary partidpan] is unable lo'certrfy to any of the stslements In this
certflcation. such prospective participant shaO attach en explanaticm to thb proposal (contract). ■

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By itgrmg end submitting 0^ lower Her proposal (contract), the prospective bwer liar portidpont, os
defined In ̂ 5 CFR PmtTS. certifies to the best of ftsknowiedge and beSe! that h and Its principals:
13.1. 8reno(pr«s«nt]ydebaned,suspended, proposed for dabarmont, declared htfgble. or

votunbuily exdudad from partidpellpn in this transact by any federal department or agency.
13Z where the prospective Iom^ tier pait'idpant is unable to certify to any of (he above, such

prospective parbdpcnt shaO ellach an explanation to thb proposal (contrsd).

14. The prospective lower.tier paitfdperd further agrees by submRling thb propose) (contract) that fl wit)
hdute thb dsuse entitled XertJSeatlon Regarding Debarmer^ Suspendon, IneSgbClly, and
Vduntsry Exclusion • LoworTltr Covartd Transactions,* without modificstlon in aQ lower tier co>mred
transoctnrw and in aO soSdtatlora for bwer tier covered transecdans. t

Contractor Name:

Data
k

y/
QKMCntfnS
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N8W Kampshir* Department of Health end Human Services
Exhtbh G

CEWTIFICATIOH OF COWPLIANCE WITH REQUIHEMEMTS PEftTAIWlWQ TO
FEPeHAi. HOHDtSCRIMIWATlON. EOOAL TREATMEm" OF FATTB-BASEO ORGANg^lONS AND

WHISTIEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contmctor IderrtjAed tn Sectioh Uof the Oerteral Pro^'tions egress by slQn&ture of Che Contrsctor's
rcpresentDthre u tdentlfled In Sections l.ii end 1.12 of the Ocr>eraI Provisions, to sxeouta the foOovdng
oertlfkalioni

ConSvebr wU compfy. end reoulre ony sub^remees or euboorttrectore io cempty. vrfth any sppOcebte
federBl nondlsoirntntfion requirements, Mhlch may Include;
• the Onvtlbus Crime Control end Sefe Streete Actof 1050 (42 U.S.C. Section 9760d) vrMch prohlbtts
rodptems of fodoml funding under this statute bom ̂scrtmlnallng. .either (n empfovmem procfices or In
the deOvery of services or beneTits, on the Insis of race, ccfor, reD^orv natlorts) origin, end eex. Tho Act
requires certain recipients to' produce en Equd Employment Opportunity Plan;-

• tho JuvepBe Jusbce OoHnqueneyPrewitibn Acto(2002(42 U.S.C. Section S672(b)) which edopts by
referervo. the cM) rights obllgafi^ of the Safe Streets Act Recipients of federal fUi^g under thb
ilatuts ere proh&Ited from dlscrlmlrve^. either In employrnent practices or'In the'deUvery of services or
faeheOts, on the basis cf roce. color, r^lon, natiar\e) or>^, ervl sex. The Act includes Equ^
•EmfSoymsnt Opportunity Ren reqiirements; '

. the CM) Rights ̂  of 1054 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohftdts redplcnu of federsl (Inancfei
assistance from discrimlnefing on.the basis of race, color, or national origin In any program or ectMtyX

- (Im RehebiQtstion Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohlfafis recipients of Federal finendal
esststanoe from dlsalmtriotlng on tho bash of dlseblCty. \n repaid to employment end the delivery of
services or benefits, In program or ectMty:

• the Amencans with Olst^iStios Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sectiofts 12131-34), whfeh prohlbile
disotlmlnallan and ensures equal opportunity for pereorts with dbebililies in empioyment. State and local
government services, public adoofrtmodailons, commerclBl fodBOt^ end trarvsportefion;
- the Eduotion Amendmionts of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Soctions 16S1.16B3,1665-56). whfdt prohaiits
rflscrirrtinallon ch (he basis of sax In federeSy assisted education programs;

- the>ge OsoimlnBtlon Act of 1976 (42 U.S.C. Sections 610^7). which prohibits dbchminatian on the
basis of .ege in programs or ocdvtties roceMng Fedofsl Hnsnclal assistance. It does rut include
cmptoymertfdlscrtmtnation;

• 28C.FJt.pt 31 (U.S. Ocpsrtmerilof Justice RegulstiorO'OJJOP Orant Programs); 28 C.F.R.pL42
(U.S. Deportment of Jusdce Rcgidbtbns - Nondiscrlmlnotlon; Equal Empioyment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of (ho taws for fatth-basod and community
orgsntzaOons); Exooullve Order'No. 13659, wtdch provide fundamental prtndples end poOcy-maldng
crftaria lor parbwrsNps with fallh-based and neighborhood organlzstions;

.  k

• 28 CFJ). pL 38 (U.S, Department of Arstlca Regulsdons - Equal Traabnertl for Faith-Based
Orgsnbsdons); and Whbtleblowef pnjtegiortf.41 U.S.C. (4712 srtd The Nalkmal Oofaroe AudKXtzBlion
Act (NOAA)iorFlsc8l Year.2013 (Pub. L 112-239. enictod January 2.2013) the PQol Program for
Enhanoomert of Controct Employe. Whlstlobtower ProtectloRs, which protects employees against
reprtsal for. certaki wtdstta Uowtng actMties In conrwdlon whh federal grants end contracts.

The certificate set cut below b a materlal/epresantaticn of fod i^ron which. reQanca b placed when the
egeney awards the gmnl Fabe ceitrflcalion or viotadon of the certiricstlon shall bo grounds for
tuspenslon of payments, suspension or termlns^n of grants, or govoinmenl wide suspension or
dehamenL

enm
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Npw HvnpsMre OtfMrtnMnt of Heatth and htuman 8erv>caa
EjihtbttO

In Iho evonl a Federol or Slata-'court or Fedsrs) or Slate odmhlstrs^ agency mokes a nndlr^ of
dbcrlninailon after a diw process hoadng on the oroonds of race, color, reSg^ r^aUcr^ai origin, or sex
egotol erodpWn of funds, the redptont win forward 0 copy of ihc finding to the Office for CMl Rights, to
the et^Bcobie ypfncy or dMrion wftihln the Ocpartment of Heatth and Human Servtce^-end
to the OepartnerO of HaaSh and Human Servtces OfTlcc of the Ombudsmen.

77m omraclor Meriifled In SacOon 1.3 of the Oenerti) Provtitooj agrees Oy signature 6S the CcrOrecSor's
repmsentatNe as toentmed tn Sectltfis 1.11 end 1.l3of the General Provisions, to execute the foOoeing
certncsllon:

1. By si^ttr^ aM submlning proposal (contract), this ConPector ogrees to compty wtth (he prov4sbns
Indlotod eboire.

Contractor Name:

Osta ^ Nsme:^ flcW [O.
TW«". p^oSixA pni

/CiMteo
ConSedBrMStfi

errM*

MiD«te
wrrtr ^
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'N0W Hsmsahire Departinent of Hu}th end Human Sefvleoo
'■ Exhrbh 0

Controctor Neme: '|4e—t 9/"

Data Nomer
C^O

EsNflC
Cmgwctai Inttdi

liL*» n

.toovu Pi9*2<tf2 0^,

m the event a Feddral or Stflp.cpurt or Pederai of Sleto edrnin^tfallyo asenpy makea o finding of .
dbcrfrnlnatlcn ahor a ̂ e process hsanr^ on the ordunds of rece, cpUtf, refiglorv, neUonsI ortgln, or aor
agatn^ oredj^ of , the.rddpioni wtD. forvrard 8 copy of the finding to (ha Omce tor OvO RJghts, to
the 8;v)ftcable cb^trecCrtg -^ency or d^l^n wflhtn the Department pf Heatfh and Kurnan Services, andto the OepartmeAl of H^h and Human Servfcea OfRce of the Ombudsmen.

The Contiactor tdenliftod In Se0on 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by sigrxature of the Contradofe
.rvros^b^ as IdentM tn Sodons-1.11 end t.-12 of the Genar^ Provtslons. to execute Ihd foOdeilrtfl
eerdfkcflfion:

1. By efgr^ng end eubmltting this prppoaeJ (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply vKih the provisions
tndlcoted ebov^

</ /



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

rPPTlFlCATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQU)REMEMLS_KBIAIM!!GJfi

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAfTH-BASED 0RGANI2MI0NS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS ^

The' Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representativo as WentiTied In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certiflcation;

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondlscrimlnatlon requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either In employment pradices or In
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national prigin, and sex. The Act
requires cerlein recipients to produce ar> Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquer^cy Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or In the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, rellgton, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
8ssislar>ce from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin In any program or adivity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits redpients of Federal finandal
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with DisabiliUes Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities In employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial fadllties, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sedtons 1681.1683.1685-86), which prohibits
• discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age DiscriminaUon Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age In programs or activities receiving Federal finandal assistance. It does not Indude
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice R^ulaticns - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Reguiatiortt - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental priridples and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

• 28 C.F.R. pL 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
EnharKement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the
agency awards the grant False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debamnent.

A
Page 1 Of 2 Date

EjtftlbltG
Contractor InttAb.
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Nttw HamDshlre Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit O

in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, natiorwl
eaalnst a recipient of funds, the recipient win forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the appncable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, end
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 ofthe General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
Indicated above.

Contractor Name: *5^^

5/Ulig
Date a

9c /iTOftA ̂

Name:

Tttle:

ExhlMG
Contractor Inittds

d Ce-efcrw pe-tt«ng t» F«dw< owti*"vw-w— ^WttH^kmrnpftmetorrn

Poo® 2 or 2 Do^t{WV14 *



Now Hampshiro Departmont of Haatth and Human Servlcas
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as'the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Ad), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contrad. loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's senrices provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, end portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatmenL Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the Imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contrador's
representative as identtfied In Section 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the (oDowing
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contrad. the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to compiy
with ell applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C, known as the Pro-Children Ad of 1994.

Contrador Name: HorV#'-

Date Nerrfd^ tdtjitkc/

EjtfiibRH-CeftJflcationRe^artfng Contractor WtlA
Environmentfll Tobacco Snotis
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N«w Hampshiro Department of Heatth and Human Services

Exhlbttl

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AQREEME^nr

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. "Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor.that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity* shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Senrices.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as.the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entrtv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set'shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record sef
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aggreoation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation' In 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXHl, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term 'individual' In 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall Include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
Information' In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. .aIi

3^14 Ccntredpf InWato ^
Hearth Inauranca Portability Act r I i it
Buaineu Auodata Agreement C j I Ij/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit 1

I. 'Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Senrices or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

o. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health Information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health Information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Ir^trtute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to all
fts directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate:
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Assodate Is permitted under the Agreement to discJose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure Is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that It Is required by law, without first notifying j
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure ada
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the BusineM/

F3/2014 EjtNMI CortJBctof WtJab
Inaursnce PortabSty Act

Business Assodato Agreement
Page 2 of 6 Oete



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI In violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) ObHoationa and ActlvKies of Business Asaociate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health Infofmation not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health Information and/or any security Incident that may have an Impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when It becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall Include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health informatjon or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health Information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health Information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make availabie all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Se^rity Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of Its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provide under Section 3 (0- The Covered Enti^
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associ^
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving Pl^

3/20t4 ExWWI Contractof InKftls ^ «
Health Insurance PdablOty Act
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibh I

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and Indemnification from such
business associates who shall be govemed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use end disclosure of
protected hearth information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business A^odate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, t)Ooks, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a D^ignated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and Incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

I. Business Associate shall document such disclosures'of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a vflltten request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI In accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, If forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Wrthin ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered ̂ tity. all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the

, Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protectioris of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction Infeasible, for so long as Business

3/2014 Eidilbtl Concnctor initials.
Health Insurance PortabCIty Ad
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in Its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

{4) Oblloatlons of Covered Entltv

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or iimitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) MIftcellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not othenwse defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference In the Agreement, as amended to Include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Assodate agree to take such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state Jaw.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interoretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity In the Agreement shall be resolv
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HiPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/2014 Contractor tnUBb
Heahh Insurance PortaUntyAct
Business Assodate Aoreement
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New Hampshire Department of Heanh and Human Services

Exhibit I

SeofeQatlon. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held Invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can t>e given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions In this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destnjction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

The State

Signature of Authorized Representative

s.

Name ofXrthorized Representative

V r£

Title of Authorized Representative

• 11 (.
Date

theC tra

Sigi^re of Authorized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

Tftle of Authorized Representative

Date
£1M.

3/2014 ExHbftl

Health Imuranco Portability Act
Bualneaa Auodate Agreemeni
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New Hampehire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTinCATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCYV T^iiri n niih^nnr. t- " 7^p;;^;^;cOMPUANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and swarded on or after October 1.2010, to report on

related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sul)-grants of $25,000 or more, tf the
Initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result In a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Pert 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive CompensaUoo Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following infonnation for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Namoofenlity
2. Amount of award
3. Funding egertcy
4. NAICS code (or contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
6. Principle place of pertormance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS#)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annuaDy and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or awiard amendment is made.
The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions erf
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reportirrg Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agws
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below reamed Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act

Contractor Name: Vl&.'-W'' •

Date Nanfe:" KtlUfw
Title:

ft.'*- i aro

ExNbtt J - C«rtil>c8tlon Reqartfing the Federal Funding Cont/Bctor inttefa
AccourtaWnty And Tramparenq^ Ad (FFATA) Compfiance
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New Hampeblro Dopartmont of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
bek>w listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 13 - 7

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or aganbation
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, 6ut>-grant8, end/or cooper^rve agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more In annual
' gross revenues from U.S. fedefal contracts, subcontracts. loarts, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

.^^NO YES

If the answer to #2 above Is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 above Is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 7eo(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to 03 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to 03 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the frve most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization ere as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

cuoHHsniorn

ExhibrtJ-CeftJRcflOonRe^BnJlno the Federsl Funding Contrsctor tnitisb
Accounlabiniy And Tren^rency Ad (FFATA) CompBance
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